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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,

          3  everybody for being here. I just want to let you

          4  know that there are going to be several members of

          5  the Committee missing and the reason is that, as

          6  most of you know, we are going to be starting budget

          7  hearings very shortly, and so we have to do a lot of

          8  things that can't be done next week today, one of

          9  them is this hearing, so we have to do this hearing

         10  today.

         11                 Many of the members are principals

         12  for a day. Today is the day that the Board of

         13  Education selected for principals for a day, and

         14  therefore some of our members who are not going to

         15  be here in the beginning, they are going to try to

         16  get here noontime, if we go that long, which I

         17  assume we will, they are not going to be here. But

         18  this is too important an issue to put over for too

         19  much time in the future, so we have decided to go

         20  ahead today, even though some members are going to

         21  be missing, and they will be separately briefed and

         22  they will have an opportunity to read all of the

         23  documents which are quite thorough.

         24                 I would also like to say that Mr.

         25  Paul Gallay (phonetic) from the New York State
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          2  Department of Environmental Conservation is here.

          3  They will not be testifying, but they are going to

          4  be monitoring this hearing, and giving us whatever

          5  documents they think are relevant, because we all

          6  realize what we are trying to do here today is a

          7  joint effort.

          8                 Recognizing Council Member Leffler,

          9  the former Chairman of this Committee and the

         10  Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, is here.

         11  And Council Member Oddo of Staten Island is here,

         12  and Council Member Fisher of Brooklyn. Not

         13  necessarily members, but this is an issue that

         14  everybody is interested in, for obvious reasons.

         15                 I am going to start and next to me on

         16  my right is Alison Sacks, the Counsel to the

         17  Committee; and to my left is Jim Gennaro, an

         18  analyst, an a well-known geologist.

         19                 As some of you may realize, we don't

         20  have a reporter here taking notes on the hearing for

         21  the transcript, it is done by tape so we have to

         22  coordinate that.

         23                 Good morning, I am Council Member

         24  Stan Michels, Chair of the Environmental Protection

         25  Committee, and I want to welcome all of you to this
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          2  very important hearing, I extend a very special

          3  welcome to our new Sanitation Commissioner, Kevin

          4  Farrell, as well as representatives of the elected

          5  officials and members of the Citywide Recycling

          6  Advisory Board, and the Borough Solid Waste Advisory

          7  Boards and other environmental advocates.

          8                 As a matter of fact, I had a recent

          9  opportunity to say I think we have the best

         10  advocates in the country, probably who knows, in the

         11  universe, but we do have some great advocates in the

         12  City who really give us a lot of information and are

         13  very helpful, so we are always glad to have them

         14  here and take their advice.

         15                 By being here today you are going to

         16  help the Council and this Committee to accomplish

         17  one of our most important objectives, and that is to

         18  ensure that the City's plan for the management of

         19  our solid waste is both efficient and not unfairly

         20  burdensome to any of the communities of this City.

         21                 By sharing with us your views and

         22  concerns for your neighborhoods, we will be able to

         23  advocate effectively on your behalf in the solid

         24  waste planning process.

         25                 Today's hearing focuses on the issue
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          2  of retrofitting of the existing City-owned marine

          3  transfer stations. The communities are very

          4  concerned about the possibility of additional solid

          5  waste transfer stations that may be sited to

          6  accommodate the City's long-term waste export

          7  strategy.

          8                 But before we contemplate building

          9  new transfer stations, we must explore all options

         10  available, including retrofitting the City's

         11  existing marine transfer stations.

         12                 Today we will hear from the

         13  Department of Sanitation and others on the

         14  feasibility of retrofitting the existing City-owned

         15  MTS's.

         16                 Earlier this month the Department of

         17  Sanitation released a report prepared by a

         18  consultant who evaluated certain alternatives for

         19  converting the existing MTS's to facilities to

         20  containerized waste for direct export to disposal

         21  facilities. The report found that retrofit

         22  conversion is technically feasible, at four of the

         23  eight MTS sites, Marine Transfer sites. The

         24  Department will discuss these findings in more

         25  detail, that is why they are here today at today's
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          2  hearing.

          3                 There are many problems associated

          4  with building new waste transfer stations of the

          5  City. There are concerns of truck traffic, possible

          6  rodent infestation, and air and noise pollution. In

          7  addition, without adequate community review and

          8  approval, the City risks jeopardizing the timely

          9  closure of Freshkills landfill, if there is one

         10  thing we all believe in and we all agree on, and

         11  that is we cannot risk delaying the closure of

         12  Freshkills.

         13                 As we all know, several alternatives

         14  have been offered to achieve a dual goal of closing

         15  Freshkills on schedule, which is, as you all know,

         16  January 1st, 2002, when it will be closed for the

         17  purposes of receiving waste, and the other dual

         18  goal, in managing our waste responsibly.

         19                 One alternative includes the using of

         20  the City's existing marine transfer stations to

         21  barge containerized waste to appropriate sites for

         22  which it can be transported by barge or rail to its

         23  final destination.

         24                 There has been strong support among

         25  elected officials and environmental advocates that
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          2  conversion of the MTS's to allow for

          3  containerization would eliminate or minimize the

          4  need for waste transfer and containerization at

          5  enclosed unloading facilities, as we now know them

          6  EBUFs, as envisioned in the recently issued

          7  long-term plan.

          8                 This option merits our most serious

          9  consideration. The City Council has already

         10  conducted several hearings on the closure of the

         11  Freshkills Landfill, and the Council will continue

         12  to work together with all of the entities involved,

         13  including the Department of Sanitation, to discuss

         14  this and other alternatives to the proposals to

         15  build new waste transfer stations that are embodied

         16  in the Solid Waste Management Plan.

         17                 I am optimistic that we can and will

         18  get Freshkills closed and be fair to all our

         19  neighborhoods. We all agree that Freshkills must

         20  close, and I repeat, closed on time. That is a

         21  Council commitment. The decisions regarding how this

         22  is to be accomplished must be made as part of the

         23  open process that inspires public confidence by

         24  producing a well thought-out plan that actually will

         25  result in the closure of the landfill and fair
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          2  treatment for all our communities.

          3                 There is a lot at stake here, we have

          4  a lot of work to do and need the help and input of

          5  all of those here today, as well as others all over

          6  the City.

          7                 As I said, our first witness is going

          8  to be Commissioner Kevin Farrell, but I might say

          9  what is important also is the fact that timing, not

         10  only the timing of closing of Freshkills, but the

         11  timing of how long we will have to be utilizing the

         12  interim plan, depends on how quickly we can put the

         13  long range plan into effect. So, one of the main

         14  considerations in doing the retrofitting is it would

         15  take a shorter time to do, as well as, of course,

         16  the affected communities, so we would be able to go

         17  into the long-range plan, which would be less

         18  onerous than the short-range plan.

         19                 Commissioner Farrell, welcome. This

         20  is your first appearance before the Committee as a

         21  Commissioner, I believe, and we will look forward to

         22  having you here and your predecessor and the Acting

         23  Commissioner Mike Carpinello has always been a good

         24  friend of this Committee and a good friend to this

         25  issue and somebody we are very pleased is sitting
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          2  beside you.

          3                 I know with the two of you, with his

          4  help as a good right arm, you are going to have a

          5  very successful administration of the most

          6  important, one of the most important agencies of the

          7  City of New York, and we look forward to working

          8  with you.

          9                 Do you have a statement, sir?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Actually, not

         11  only is it my first time here in testifying, but

         12  having changed careers, I no longer carry a gun so I

         13  am a little insecure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are very

         15  relieved at that, because we hesitate to get in

         16  arguments with people carrying guns.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Depending on

         18  how the hearing goes, I may wear one the next time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will make

         20  sure the safety is on.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Good morning,

         22  Chairman Michels, Council Members and Members of the

         23  Committee on Environmental Protection, ladies and

         24  gentlemen. I am Kevin Farrell, Commissioner of the

         25  Department of Sanitation. I am here today with First
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          2  Deputy Commissioner for Operations Michael

          3  Carpinello, Deputy Commissioner for Solid Waste

          4  Management Martha Hirst and other staff members.

          5                 In order to present studies

          6  undertaken for the Department up to this date of the

          7  alternatives for converting the existing marine

          8  transfer stations into facilities capable of

          9  containerizing waste for export to out-of-city

         10  disposal facilities.

         11                 As you know, the existing marine

         12  transfer station system is an important resource for

         13  the City. These facilities were developed to provide

         14  an efficient, reliable and economically sound method

         15  of transporting solid waste and have proved reliable

         16  over the years. During efforts to develop a new

         17  infrastructure for processing, transporting and

         18  disposing of New York City's residential waste after

         19  December 2001, questions have been raised concerning

         20  the feasibility of retrofitting these existing

         21  marine transfer stations.

         22                 We are attempting to answer those

         23  questions. As part of that continuing effort, and

         24  after consultation with Councilman Michels and

         25  others, the Department will soon issue a request for
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          2  expressions of interest, otherwise known as an RFEI,

          3  in order to evaluate fiscally sound and

          4  environmentally responsive concepts to accomplish

          5  this end.

          6                 At this time, I would like to

          7  introduce First Deputy Commissioner Carpinello, who

          8  will present an overview of the existing

          9  containerization options that have already been

         10  explored by this Department. I stress that this is

         11  an interim report, and Mike, if you are ready,

         12  please.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Sure,

         14  Commissioner.

         15                 We will attempt this morning to not

         16  only describe the current operation of our marine

         17  transfer stations but also discuss two of the most

         18  common proposals for containerization, and I would

         19  like to get right into it right now.

         20                 Currently within the Department of

         21  Sanitation there are seven active marine transfer

         22  stations. Up until July of '97, there had been

         23  eight, that eighth one being in the Borough of the

         24  Bronx, but when we began to start exporting waste

         25  through private transfer stations, we selected the
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          2  Bronx back in 1997 and then we took the South Bronx

          3  Marine Transfer Station out of operation.

          4                 So therefore, the remaining seven,

          5  there are three in Brooklyn that are active, three

          6  in the Borough of Manhattan, and one in the Borough

          7  of Queens.

          8                 The operation of our marine transfer

          9  stations are such that there are two level

         10  facilities, and what I think I would like to do is,

         11  I will try to carry this mic with me, because the

         12  boards help explain, particularly to the Council

         13  members, how the operation works right now an also

         14  how the operation has been proposed, given the two

         15  containerization scenarios.

         16                 The current scenario for the marine

         17  transfer stations as they operate right now is a

         18  two-level facility, one level is at the water's edge

         19  called the barge slip level, where two barges, in

         20  most of our facilities, of the seven facilities that

         21  we operate currently, all but one are capable of

         22  handling two barges. The only one that handles one

         23  is out in Brooklyn, southwest Brooklyn, in the

         24  Bensonhurst section.

         25                 Basically our current operation is
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          2  such that two empty barges are brought in by tug,

          3  put into slips at the water's level, and as you can

          4  see up here on top, both of them fit in these slips

          5  which are about 140 feet long and ready to receive

          6  waste that is delivered by the Department of

          7  Sanitation trucks, as well as other city agencies.

          8                 The next level to our current marine

          9  transfer stations is a tipping four level, it is

         10  approximately 20 feet above the barge level, the

         11  water level. Trucks will come up a ramp, hit a

         12  scale, get weighed in at a scale, back into any

         13  number of any one of the 12 positions, unload their

         14  waste, the waste falls by gravity, once the tailgate

         15  of the vehicle is opened, falls by gravity into the

         16  barge below, and this goes on over the course of the

         17  day, throughout the day, we load anywhere, dependent

         18  upon which of the marine transfer stations we are

         19  talking about, will load anywhere from 950 tons to

         20  about 2,100 tons a day in the marine transfer

         21  stations.

         22                 A very important point to note,

         23  though, about the current operations is that the

         24  amount of material that can be processed in the

         25  course of when we need the material to be processed,
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          2  and that being the peak periods, even though our

          3  marine transfer stations are open 24 hours a day,

          4  there is really two peak period times when they have

          5  to operate at maximum efficiency, and during the day

          6  shift, usually a 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. shift, those

          7  peak times are anywhere from about nine or ten in

          8  the morning to about 1:00 in the afternoon, and our

          9  facilities have been for many, many years very

         10  reliable and able to handle up to 30 trucks an hour.

         11  Each of our trucks on average hold about ten tons.

         12                 So, that means that on average at the

         13  peak period these facilities can handle 300 tons an

         14  hour. This is very important to us in the Sanitation

         15  Department, because many of those trucks have to

         16  dump their first load, get back on their routes,

         17  complete their route and get back to either dump

         18  their second load or go back to the garage at the

         19  end of the shift.

         20                 So, the ability to handle a lot of

         21  volume very quickly is very important, and handling

         22  30 trucks an hour means that every two minutes there

         23  is a truck, one of our trucks or a truck from one of

         24  the other City agencies, that is going over that

         25  scale and dumping its load.
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          2                 The two most common containerization

          3  options that have been proposed are as follows: One

          4  is a direct dump. I just described how our trucks

          5  will go up to the ramp which is the second level or

          6  the tipping floor of the marine transfer stations

          7  and dump by gravity into a barge.

          8                 Our barges on average hold about 620

          9  tons per barge. The first of the containerization

         10  scenarios that had been proposed was to take our

         11  existing barge or a barge very similar and put in 15

         12  containers that would fit in the well of the barge.

         13                 These containers would then sit in

         14  there, you would have to put, since these containers

         15  will not abut air tight, the one, the company who

         16  proposed this says that you would have to put cones

         17  that would bridge the gap between both containers so

         18  that none of the refuse that is being dumped from

         19  the trucks would fall between the containers or fall

         20  into the water.

         21                 So, the barge, the current well-type

         22  barge would have in it 15 containers, our trucks

         23  again would come up to the second floor, the tipping

         24  floor, dump the material into the barges, and fill

         25  up these containers.
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          2                 Also, what you would need is, since

          3  the loads when they are dumped need to be leveled

          4  off under this scenario, because these containers

          5  will have to have covers put on them, the proposal

          6  suggested that you would need a backhoe that would

          7  be positioned on the tipping floor with a long arm

          8  that would reach down into the barge itself and to

          9  level off those peaks that would be formed as a

         10  result of the garbage being dumped into those

         11  containers, and level it off in such a way that

         12  containers can be put -- the covers, I am sorry, can

         13  be put on the containers.

         14                 Some of the issues with this

         15  particular scenario are as follows: And in fact one

         16  company did in fact submit this as a proposal. I

         17  mentioned that the way we currently dump the

         18  garbage, that our barges hold 620 tons. The company

         19  that submitted this proposal, even by their own best

         20  estimates, this barge, using this scenario, can only

         21  hold 350 tons. So, it is about a third less capacity

         22  doing this scenario, as the way we currently do it.

         23                 Now, the problems that creates is

         24  that if you can only fill up a third less per barge,

         25  means you will have to move that barge out and bring
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          2  an empty one back in. That whole operation takes a

          3  minimum of about a half hour to do that, and while

          4  you are doing that, trucks are waiting on line to be

          5  dumped. And it gets back to the earlier point I was

          6  making, the need to get trucks in, dump their loads,

          7  get back on their routes to complete their routes

          8  within the eight-hour shift.

          9                 Another problem with this is that

         10  this machine that will have to be up on the tipping

         11  floor leveling these loads, is taking up space, an

         12  active space where trucks could dump. And also while

         13  it is doing this, and letting out these loads, you

         14  cannot dump into that barge.

         15                 Another very important point is that

         16  even if this barge capacity in some way was able to

         17  meet our current tonnage requirements, once you put

         18  the covers on the containers, this barge will be

         19  pulled out, this loaded barge will be pulled out, it

         20  has to be taken to another site, somewhere in the

         21  New York Harbor, the container is taken out, put on

         22  rail car or put on a truck or put on a larger barge

         23  to be exported out of the New York City area.

         24                 So, even if this system worked well

         25  at the marine transfer station and didn't reduce the
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          2  throughput capacity, which it does, you still would

          3  need a site somewhere in the New York harbor where

          4  this barge once loaded with covers attached would be

          5  taken, off-loaded, and then shipped out of the City

          6  by rail, barge or truck.

          7                 The other scenario or other plan --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can I just

          9  interrupt you a second?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are finished

         12  with that scenario?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         14  we are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is a good

         16  time to let you catch your breath a little bit.

         17                 We are joined by some other Council

         18  members, I want to identify them, they came in while

         19  you were speaking, and one is Council Member Sabini,

         20  from Queens, Council Member Rodriguez from Brooklyn,

         21  and I guess that is it.

         22                 Also, we are also joined by a class

         23  from the Berkley Caroll School which is up there, an

         24  they are raising their hands. They are in the fifth

         25  and sixth grades, and they are there with Michael
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          2  Stoller, who used to be with the staff of the

          3  Council, and I am sure he has filled them in as to

          4  what we are doing here, but basically this is the

          5  Committee on Environmental Protection of the

          6  Council, and we are having a hearing on how we are

          7  going to dispose of that waste which you will not

          8  recycle.

          9                 We understand that you are going to

         10  recycle everything that you possibly can, and that

         11  which you cannot recycle is going to have to be

         12  disposed of also.

         13                 So, we are looking forward to you and

         14  your schools doing recycling and learning about

         15  recycling and going home to your parents and making

         16  sure that they recycle, right?

         17                 CHILDREN IN AUDIENCE: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right, good.

         19  That's the proper response.

         20                 And you have seen all of the ads on

         21  the television and in the newspaper and everywhere

         22  about recycling, because the more you recycle, the

         23  less problem we have in getting rid of our other

         24  waste.

         25                 So, thank you for coming. Michael,
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          2  thank you for bringing them here. I appreciate it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And Mr. Fisher

          5  would like to comment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: I just want to

          7  caution you. I know that the witnesses always do

          8  their best job, but I want to caution you that there

          9  is a crack investigative reporter in the making up

         10  there, Danielle Stoller, who interviewed me for one

         11  of their school papers, so you better watch what you

         12  say because we are all under observation today by a

         13  future Pulitzer Prize winner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Also known as

         15  Michael's daughter.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: And thank you

         17  to their teacher, J.J. Kroner, for bringing them

         18  down today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. Thank

         20  you. We appreciate it. We encourage business by

         21  school children to come here to learn. These are the

         22  things they can do and it is very positive.

         23                 Michael, sorry for the interruption.

         24  Please continue.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  That's okay.

          3                 Just two other points I would like to

          4  make about the scenario that I just described, is

          5  that the proposer of this scenario, when he gave us

          6  the dimensions of the containers that would fit

          7  inside this barge --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The scenario you

          9  just went over?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         14  proposer gave us the dimensions of those containers.

         15  Those containers, the height of those containers,

         16  while you want to maximize the amount of waste that

         17  you can put in the barge, are somewhat problematic

         18  in that once you take those containers out of the

         19  barge and put them either on a rail car or on a

         20  truck, that 15 feet height would be a problem in

         21  going under many bridges and overpasses throughout

         22  the highways up and down the east coast.

         23                 The other scenario is that of

         24  compaction. This is a little more detailed, a little

         25  more complicated in its design, and I would like to
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          2  describe this one.

          3                 Under this compaction scenario, two

          4  very large compacting units, one to fit in each of

          5  the slips, we put on the dry dock, they would be

          6  built at some other site, shipped or floated to the

          7  marine transfer stations, and these dry docks, one

          8  on each side, fit into the slips or the MTS's, would

          9  be put into place where our trucks would then dump

         10  refuse into it, and I would like to describe that

         11  process.

         12                 Our trucks, again, would come up a

         13  ramp, go over a scale, back into one of the 12

         14  backing bays and would dump their refuse into this

         15  system.

         16                 Now, this system is comprised of --

         17  you will have five bays on each side, not dumping

         18  bays, but five individual bays beneath about ten

         19  feet below the tipping floor where our trucks would

         20  dump into and these bays or containers are about ten

         21  feet below the tipping floor, and the reason it is

         22  ten feet is that it is estimated that you could dump

         23  a whole load of garbage into a containment area ten

         24  feet below, and not reach the peak of the tipping

         25  floor.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Under this scenario, the truck would

          3  come in, dump into these five containment areas on

          4  each side, the floor of these containment areas have

          5  conveyors on them, and it would take the garbage

          6  once it is dumped, move it on what is called a

          7  walking floor, and move it away from the pilot that

          8  just was created, and move it onto a larger, what we

          9  call a pan conveyor that would move the materials

         10  into a chute.

         11                 Now, what will happen is that

         12  materials dumped into this containment area about

         13  ten foot below the tipping floor, there are

         14  conveyors that start to move the material to a

         15  larger pan conveyor, that moves the material into a

         16  chute where the garbage will fall by gravity into a

         17  compacting unit.

         18                 The compacting unit that is designed

         19  under this scenario has been in use. It is figure

         20  five in the handout that the City Council received.

         21                 This type of compacting unit has been

         22  in operation from the early eighties in many of the

         23  private transfer stations. It is a very reliable

         24  system. It is a system that you can calculate the

         25  weight because these compacting units are on load
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          2  scales, so you know exactly how much weight you are

          3  putting in. There is an 80,000 ton limit for tractor

          4  trailers to go over the highways and it is important

          5  to know how much material is in that trailer part of

          6  the unit.

          7                 So, under this particular scenario,

          8  the material will be dropped into a compacting unit

          9  similar to what the Councilman just has shown, and

         10  it would be compacted, there would be scales on

         11  there to weigh and make sure it didn't go over the

         12  required limit. It would then be pushed into a

         13  trailer that is at one end of the compactor.

         14                 Once that trailer is loaded, it is

         15  moved to the end, the outer end of the marine

         16  transfer station where overhead cranes will take

         17  that loaded container, move it and put it on a

         18  large, what we call a deck barge, or an ocean-going

         19  barge. These are barges that are probably about 45

         20  feet wide and about 200 feet long, and you can put

         21  about 2,000 tons, at least 2,000 tons of material

         22  that have been packed inside containers for shipment

         23  out of the City of New York.

         24                 Now, under the scenario here, which

         25  is more involved with machinery, the concerns here
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          2  naturally are when you involve machinery in

          3  anything, there is bound to be mechanical problems,

          4  there is required maintenance that is needed, and

          5  then you have to shut it down to do the maintenance.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you

          7  referring to what we commonly known as "Murphy's

          8  law?"

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: That

         10  happens.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That which can

         12  go wrong will go wrong.

         13                 No slight to the Irish, I am sorry.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         15  manufacture of these containers rate the ability to

         16  pack garbage in these containers at about 100 tons

         17  an hour, but we have asked our consultants to take a

         18  look at that, and we think that given the normal

         19  maintenance, normal breakdowns that occur, the wear

         20  over time, that the rate of capacity drops somewhat

         21  from about 100 tons an hour down to 72 tons an hour.

         22                 So, if you consider that you have one

         23  of these compacting units on one side of the MTS,

         24  and a compacting unit on the other side of the MTS,

         25  capable of doing 72 tons an hour, when you add that
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          2  up you come to 144 tons an hour, it's over 50

          3  percent less than the 300 tons an hour that

          4  currently passes through the transfer stations.

          5                 Here again, it reduces the throughput

          6  capacity of the transfer station, thereby it is a

          7  concern for us who are responsible to pick up the

          8  garbage on time when it is scheduled to be picked

          9  up, and to do it in the most cost effective way, and

         10  if you have a system in place that reduces the

         11  throughput capacity by 50 percent, you can begin to

         12  see some of the problems that you will incur.

         13                 We looked at the seven marine

         14  transfer stations -- I mentioned earlier that there

         15  are seven active marine transfer stations, and we

         16  looked to see, given the geography, given the layout

         17  of the surrounding facilities of those transfer

         18  stations, where this might be done.

         19                 As the Commissioner mentioned,

         20  shortly an RFEI will be going out to ask for

         21  proposals, for their ideas on how they might be able

         22  to retrofit the marine transfer stations.

         23                 I might mention that we have been

         24  looking at this for a very long time, and over ten

         25  years in fact, and the only possible places that it
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          2  might, and I repeat, might be able to be done, are

          3  three locations, and they are, the South Bronx

          4  Marine Transfer Station, which is currently not in

          5  operation, as you can see, has enough room on both

          6  sides of it, as well as in front of it.

          7                 As we get to some of the others, you

          8  will see where the pier head line becomes a limiting

          9  factor and restriction and that is why we can't do

         10  it at all of our marine transfer stations.

         11                 The South Bronx Marine Transfer

         12  Station is one of three where we feel that there is

         13  sufficient room to do this.

         14                 The other marine transfer station --

         15  and the South Bronx naturally is in the Borough of

         16  the Bronx.

         17                 The other is the 135th Street marine

         18  transfer station which is in the Borough of

         19  Manhattan, this facility also has sufficient space

         20  on both sides, as well as at the end of the pier. It

         21  is our estimation that if it was feasible in all

         22  likelihood, both the South Bronx and the 135th

         23  Street MTS, the configuration for containerization

         24  would be that the overhead cranes that would move

         25  the loader containers and put them on the barge
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          2  would be at the end of these facilities, given the

          3  room that is available.

          4                 The North Shore Marine Transfer

          5  Station, which is in College Point, Queens,

          6  Community Board 7, is one of our marine transfer

          7  stations. Now, this here has a little different

          8  configuration, a little different problems, but we

          9  still think if it was feasible to do, under this

         10  scenario, you would have to put the crane structure

         11  -- you would have to put the barges, these deck

         12  barges on either side of the marine transfer

         13  station, because you could see the pier head line is

         14  very close to the end of the transfer station, and

         15  these pier head lines limit just how far a

         16  structured facility can go out into the waterways

         17  and not block the navigable waterways in this area.

         18                 So, again, in the North Shore MTS, we

         19  would put the deck barges on either side and go

         20  through with the retrofitting there.

         21                 In the areas where it is not

         22  possible, the Greenpoint MTS in the Borough of

         23  Brooklyn is right off of the Newtown Creek in

         24  Community Board 1, and you could see here, first of

         25  all, the pier head line is very close, very close to
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          2  the end of the marine transfer station, and the

          3  waterways here, in order to turn barges around that

          4  would be required with a large crane structure, just

          5  doesn't allow for this to happen, so over here it

          6  would not be possible.

          7                 The Southwest Brooklyn site is a

          8  facility also that is problematic in that the

          9  property line for the Department on one side of it

         10  abuts the facility here, and while it might be

         11  possible to do it out here, this is also the site of

         12  a former southwest incinerator, this is off the Belt

         13  Parkway, by Bay Parkway, going towards Coney Island,

         14  towards Community Board 13, this is actually

         15  Community Board 11. But our thoughts here would be

         16  while this is also only a one-slip facility, I

         17  mentioned earlier that six of our seven facilities

         18  can handle two barges, this is the only facility

         19  that can handle one barge. And given some of the

         20  problems I mentioned earlier, that the throughput

         21  gets reduced, it really wouldn't make sense on that

         22  one-slip facility to do something that even further

         23  reduces the throughput.

         24                 But what we might do here, might

         25  consider, and hopefully if responses come back in
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          2  the RFEI, would be look to do something what we call

          3  upland, or on shore here, since we have the room to

          4  do some containerization.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

          6  just to clarify. The sites, the three sites that you

          7  selected that could possibly be used, that is

          8  basically for the compacter-type proposal; isn't

          9  that right?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         11  it would be for either one. Well, for the compact,

         12  you are correct. Given the layout of the land, you

         13  are correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because they

         15  would either have the barges outside the MTS itself.

         16                 What about the first proposal, which

         17  is the dampening down, which you say limits the

         18  tonnage and the barges, that could probably be done

         19  in all of the facilities.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         21  one of the problems, and the company that submitted

         22  that proposal wasn't very clear in their proposal as

         23  to how they would put the covers on. When we read

         24  through their proposal --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have to find

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  another place to put the covers on?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that

          6  wouldn't be limited by the same thing, limitations

          7  that you have with respect to the second proposal.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          9  again, one of the problems were, is when they

         10  submitted a proposal and we went through it, since

         11  they didn't explain in any detail how they would put

         12  those covers on, and you can't move a barge out of a

         13  facility without having a netting, which we

         14  currently do, or having some type of cover. So, my

         15  guess is that, hopefully coming back in the RFEI we

         16  will get a more detailed explanation --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that point

         18  has to be made that these two proposals which you

         19  are looking at were proposals which were not as a

         20  result of the RFPEI (sic) as proposed by the

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These were

         25  actually submissions that were made to an RFP, which
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          2  specifically said we will not consider retrofitting.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So we have to

          6  look at it in that context. So, these are the two

          7  people who say, well, notwithstanding the fact that

          8  you said don't tell us about it, we told you about

          9  it, and that is what you have examined.

         10                 But now we are opening up the

         11  process, but we still have to look, because these

         12  very well be proposals that they come back with

         13  again but in more detail. And you are asking in the

         14  RFPEI more detail.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         16  we are.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         18                 Continue. I am sorry to interrupt

         19  you.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         21  Hamilton Avenue Marine Transfer Station, which is

         22  right off of Hamilton Avenue, it is in Brooklyn, it

         23  is in Community Board 6 there, it is right by a Home

         24  Depot, a recently built Home Depot. We have an old

         25  incinerator there that is no longer in use. But when
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          2  you look at the width of the Gowanus Canal, if you

          3  look at where the pier head line is and the tight

          4  fit of this facility, it is clear to see that

          5  putting overhead cranes and what have you, it just

          6  doesn't fit at this location.

          7                 The last of the marine transfer

          8  stations, actually next to last, is the 59th Street

          9  Marine Transfer Station which is on the west side of

         10  Manhattan, it is on 59th and 12th Avenue. This is a

         11  facility that was built, and it is somewhat a little

         12  different than a normal two-slip facility that has

         13  barges on both sides of the slip, given the narrow

         14  area that was under the Department's control, we

         15  built a facility here that is long and narrow and

         16  instead of having one barge on one side and one on

         17  the other, what we have is two barges, back to back,

         18  on the south side of this facility.

         19                 Now, one of the problems here is,

         20  number one, you have a Con Edison pier right over

         21  here and the distance between these two here is not

         22  very large. And as you can see the pier head line is

         23  very close to the end of the pier. Now, if you look

         24  this way, you might say there is a lot of water on

         25  this side and that is true, but the slip is on the
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          2  south side of the pier here. There is no slip on

          3  this side here. So, this is also a problem.

          4                 The final marine transfer station

          5  that we looked at, this is on East 91st Street,

          6  about two blocks north of Gracie Mansion, the

          7  facility here is also a problem, given the distance

          8  here to the pier head line and the way this facility

          9  is structured, that when our engineers looked at it

         10  said this was also a problem, and the room that you

         11  would need for the overhead cranes to go outside

         12  here, that they would jut into the navigable

         13  waterways, which we are not allowed to do.

         14                 So, having looked at the seven marine

         15  transfer stations, we feel that if it is at all

         16  possible, it would probably be done at the South

         17  Bronx, at North Shore and 135.

         18                 I should also mention, though, a

         19  couple of problems that would be encountered if we

         20  were to move forward with this, that being that

         21  while you're retrofitting the marine transfer

         22  station, it will take approximately about a year,

         23  and while that work is going on, all the trucks that

         24  were going to there and dumping there day in and day

         25  out, would now have to go to some other facility,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  either further away through someone else's

          3  neighborhood, but nonetheless, additional trucks

          4  would have to go to some other facility while the

          5  rehabilitation was going on at the existing marine

          6  transfer station.

          7                 And our estimates at today's dollars

          8  is that it would cost about $30 million per marine

          9  transfer station to retrofit it to do

         10  containerization.

         11                 Keep in mind, though, we still have a

         12  concern that the throughput is drastically reduced.

         13                 I mentioned that the throughput was

         14  reduced by about 200 tons per barge in one of the

         15  proposals, even a little more. We did some

         16  calculations, that would cost us about -- cause

         17  about 320 trucks a day that would normally dump on

         18  shift, on either the 7:00 a.m. or 3:00 p.m. shift,

         19  to have to be dumped on a night shift, either a 4:00

         20  to 12:00 or 12:00 to 8:00 shift. So, that is an

         21  additional number of trucks that would be put on

         22  nights that have to be dumped because they dump on

         23  the day shift since the throughput had been reduced.

         24                 At this time, this is the end of the

         25  presentation, and we are ready to answer any
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          2  questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would like to

          4  acknowledge the presence of the Majority Whip,

          5  Victor Robles, who just joined us from being

          6  principal for a day, and that is for another

          7  hearing, and Council Member Fiala from Staten

          8  Island, who has got more than a passing interest in

          9  this subject, and Council Member Freed from

         10  Manhattan, and Council Member Carrion, Adolpho

         11  Carrion, from the Bronx.

         12                 A couple of interim questions and

         13  then I am going to open it up to the members of the

         14  Committee. As I said in the opening statement, one

         15  of the considerations, one of the two main

         16  considerations, is how long would it take to get not

         17  only these particular scenarios on line, but of

         18  course, the other scenarios which you haven't seen

         19  which you are going to get in the RFPEI? Because one

         20  of the considerations is how long are we going to

         21  have people suffer under the interim plan.

         22                 Would this in your considered opinion

         23  be quicker to get on line than having to build

         24  EBUFs, with all of the problems that you are having

         25  now with the EBUFs, in locating them, and New Jersey
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          2  turning us down, Carteret and all of those things

          3  going on? I know it is a loaded question. We realize

          4  there are a lot of issues here.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is a

          6  loaded question, and I thank you for acknowledging

          7  that, but it is very hard to tell the future. The

          8  EBUF construction is something, as you know, that is

          9  problematic; however, it is our present proposal and

         10  we stick with it. It is hard to say what kind of

         11  opposition we will continue to face and whether that

         12  opposition will be successful.

         13                 On the other hand, the construction

         14  -- well, first of all we have to talk about finding

         15  an alternative method of compacting or of loading.

         16  And I am willing -- that is the purpose of the RFEI,

         17  the Request for Expressions of Interest, I will

         18  entertain any reasonable or even slightly

         19  unreasonable approach to the subject.

         20                 It is not a question of whether or

         21  not a marine transfer station can be physically

         22  retrofitted. Certainly it can be physically

         23  retrofitted, but as Mike so well put it, the

         24  consequences of that retrofitting, the consequences

         25  of slowing down the process, the specter of
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          2  disrupting for several years, the current system

          3  that we have, increased night collection and

          4  continuing expense, you know, kind of argues against

          5  entertaining this thought, these thoughts here,

          6  should the RFEI result in a more viable proposal.

          7  And I don't know what is out there, I don't think

          8  any of us do, and that is why we are asking.

          9                 There may be a system that can

         10  quickly expeditiously and economically load the

         11  barges and no one would be happier to see it than I

         12  am.

         13                 I think that, to answer your

         14  question, however, in an adequate but brief way, I

         15  would think that the construction of the EBUFs,

         16  given our eventual victory over the opposition,

         17  would be a quicker method of addressing this

         18  problem. Quicker.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, you have

         20  anticipated my question, because I was going to say,

         21  the first question was with all the complications,

         22  then the question is going to be, let's suppose

         23  hypothetically in a pennglosian (sic) type of way,

         24  that we are living in the best of all possible

         25  worlds, and that we can do the construction without
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          2  any problem, and just looking at these two, about

          3  how long would you say you could do it without any

          4  difficulty, with the three MTS's that you could

          5  retrofit, how long would it take you to do that

          6  retrofitting under the current proposals? Because we

          7  can't deal with ones we don't know.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: These two

          9  proposals that Mike just explained, is that what you

         10  are saying?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right, how long

         12  would it take construction?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we are

         14  talking about seven sites, and I don't think --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, I am talking

         16  about three sites, because you have just said you

         17  can only do three sites.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we have a

         19  total universe, however, of seven sites. To retrofit

         20  three of them --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. I want to

         22  deal with what we have in front of us. We are only

         23  saying it is feasible of the three --

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Especially with
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          2  respect to the compactor plan. Of the two plans that

          3  we have in front of us --

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Which one would

          5  be quicker?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, I am not

          7  saying which one is quicker, which one would be more

          8  efficient once it was put into place --

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I

         10  understand.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It seems to

         12  indicate it would be the compactor.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I think it

         14  would be the compactor one. Specifically my own

         15  feeling on the subject is that the problem of

         16  spillage was not adequately addressed in the first

         17  proposal, in terms of the gaps between the

         18  containers and falling into the waterway.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't want to

         20  get into that. I am just trying -- let's say we do

         21  the compactor proposal on the three sites where it

         22  would be feasible.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Approximately

         25  how long would it take to construct that? What are
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          2  the experts telling you on that?

          3                 I imagine one of the questions you

          4  ask them is how long --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: In

          6  our studies of this, once we got approval to go

          7  forward, it would take about a year to retrofit the

          8  MTS --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Put it on line

         10  in a year.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: From the day of

         14  where you go forward.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         16  Right. But as I am sure you know, whether we

         17  eventually go to retrofitting or EBUFs, under either

         18  method it still would be first required, the

         19  approval, by the City Council --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

         21  that. I am just trying to get the actual

         22  construction time.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  Right, about one year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We know
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          2  bureaucracy as well as you do. About a year.

          3                 Now, how about an EBUF, how long

          4  would the actual construction take that you have

          5  done? How long would the actual construction take?

          6  And that you are starting from scratch.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Approximately about two years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         10                 So, we are talking about, which is

         11  also going to have some problems with complications

         12  with EIS' and everything else that is going on

         13  there, so you are talking about a year, you save

         14  about a year. I am trying to get what we would save

         15  if we do this, just so I can get an idea of what is

         16  going to happen if we get a plan that is even more

         17  acceptable. So, it will take about a year to do, and

         18  that would save us about a year of the interim plan,

         19  that is the point I am making.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, Chairman,

         21  I might point out that the retrofitting proposal,

         22  should we find an adequate alternative, I mean a way

         23  of doing it, we would hope would apply to all seven

         24  sites. To retrofit one or two I am not sure if that

         25  is our goal.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is

          3  speculation. I am trying to deal with what we know.

          4                 We know that three sites are amenable

          5  to retrofitting.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: To this

          7  particular time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We know that you

          9  have had experts look at them, we should know from

         10  them, from what Commissioner Carpinello tells us,

         11  that it would take a year to put that into place,

         12  physically doing the work, without the complications

         13  which necessarily ensue whenever we do anything in

         14  this City. And we do know that the EBUFs are going

         15  to take two years. So the answer to our question is

         16  whether we do it or not, and that is what we are

         17  trying to find out, we would save a year, having to

         18  be under the interim, approximately a year, having

         19  to be under the interim program. That is what I was

         20  trying to establish.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Are you

         22  presuming then we would shut down the three marine

         23  transfer stations at the same time?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Obviously. You

         25  are going to be doing that anyway under the interim
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          2  plan. You are not going to be utilizing the MTS's

          3  under the interim plan anyway.

          4                 The interim plan doesn't contemplate

          5  using the MTS's.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right? So

          8  you are going to be shutting them down anyway, so

          9  you are not going to be losing anything from that.

         10  That was the point I wanted to make before.

         11                 Okay, questions from Council Member

         12  Fisher.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you very

         14  much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 This is actually a very important

         16  hearing, a major announcement by the Department

         17  today. Commissioner Farrell, I don't think you and I

         18  have met, at least not in your present capacity. I

         19  am sure you know from Commissioner Carpinello and

         20  Martha Hirst that I have a long and intimate

         21  relationship in dealing with some of the issues in

         22  your Department.

         23                 One of your predecessors was

         24  memorialized in Al Gore's book, Earth and the

         25  Balance, as saying that people can march and they
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          2  can protest and write letters to the editor, but in

          3  the end the garbage always wins, and at least the

          4  history of the last few years has been that we have

          5  been trying to shape a policy where the City of New

          6  York and its residents win, and we understand the

          7  pressure you are under to move all of this garbage

          8  every day, as you probably know between the

          9  commercial and the residential waste steams about a

         10  quarter of it moves for Council Member Robles' and

         11  my district on its way to its final resting place,

         12  and we played important roles in trying to get the

         13  Department to agree to close Freshkills in

         14  abandoning the incinerator plan which in retrospect

         15  it turns out we were right, it would have been a

         16  costly mistake for the City of New York, and in

         17  pushing the Department into considering the MTS

         18  retrofit alternative.

         19                 Here is the problem that I have, as a

         20  result of the fact that this decision-making process

         21  has been driven by political pressure in the best

         22  sense of the words for such a long period of time,

         23  the Department doesn't have a lot of credibility

         24  with the public on this issue, it doesn't have a lot

         25  of credibility with the elected officials on this
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          2  issue, and this particular subject that we are

          3  discussing today is one of the examples of it.

          4  Because consistently for the last several years the

          5  Department has taken the position that this simply

          6  couldn't be done, and today you have acknowledged to

          7  us that it could be done.  It was unaccceptable.

          8                 In fact, I am told by our staff that

          9  they were at a bidders conference on the long-term

         10  RFP back in 1997, where members of the staff in

         11  effect got up and said which part of no don't you

         12  understand when they offered to propose retrofitting

         13  solutions.

         14                 Now you have come forward and said,

         15  look, this is technically feasible and we want a

         16  Request for Expressions of Interest, and at this

         17  point in the game I am not as concerned about your

         18  credibility with us or your credibility with the

         19  public, I am concerned about your credibility with

         20  the industry, and given the resistance that the

         21  Department has had to this, why should the companies

         22  that we would expect to respond to this, whether in

         23  the garbage business or in the engineering

         24  community, take a Request for Expressions of

         25  Interest seriously, given the history, given the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  reluctance of the Department to pursue this option,

          3  and wouldn't we be better off and wouldn't we save a

          4  lot of time if we are going to pursue this option to

          5  issue some type of a more formal request for

          6  proposals and show the construction, the waste and

          7  engineering communities that the Department is

          8  serious about embracing this option and that you are

          9  not simply going through an exercise of soliciting

         10  expressions of interest so that you can then reject

         11  it on economic or some other basis later on.

         12                 How do we demonstrate to the people

         13  that we are counting on to be our partners in

         14  closing Freshkills and getting this done, how do we

         15  demonstrate to them that we are serious about doing

         16  it?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I am not

         18  sure that the Department lacks credibility in the

         19  private waste industry. If you have some specific

         20  knowledge about that I would be enlightened --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: I would be

         22  happy to share that with you, maybe we can do that

         23  at another forum.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me say that

         25  the decision to go with the Request for Expressions
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          2  of Interest, rather than a Request for Proposal, was

          3  my decision, and it may be that I have a simplistic

          4  view of these things, but I was seeking to open up

          5  the field to other interests, other engineering

          6  firms perhaps, who are not specifically right now in

          7  the solid waste business. I want to see new thinking

          8  on it. Contrary to some people's opinion, I have

          9  been told that the Department has consulted with

         10  waste industry officials and engineers before, and

         11  it has been pretty much their advice to us that

         12  given the state-of-the-art and given the

         13  requirements that we have an efficient and thorough

         14  system that it could not be done.

         15                 I want to take a second look at that

         16  area. And of course, let me be clear, you can

         17  retrofit anything, the question is does it cause you

         18  more problems than you solve.

         19                 The problem is in a sense is that the

         20  current system is so efficient that it works. I want

         21  another workable system, and it has not been

         22  demonstrated yet that one has been proposed, and so

         23  I go back to the industry, I go back to whoever is

         24  out there. Give me an idea and let's talk about it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Let me see if
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          2  I can summarize the Department's position, and I

          3  appreciate your willingness to be creative on this.

          4                 In addendum one to the RFP for the

          5  long term waste export, basically the DOS took the

          6  position that structural modifications to the

          7  existing MTS system were "unacceptable". So, I

          8  gather now what you are saying is you have

          9  determined that it is not unacceptable, and you want

         10  to see what options there are for demonstrating that

         11  it is acceptable?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: What I am

         13  saying is that the proposal thus far, given the

         14  delay, and given the need to reroute trucks, to have

         15  them idling on the street, the increased overtime

         16  costs, that the proposals thus far, and in fact in

         17  my presentation here, we actually only saw one that

         18  physically worked, the other one may or may not have

         19  worked, depending on the spillage. I want to know

         20  the system, I want a system that works, and I want a

         21  system that works as well as what we have. Simple.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you,

         23  Commissioner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:
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          2  Commissioner, how are you doing? It is a long time

          3  since I speak to a commissioner and I smile, so --

          4  everything I am hearing today I think sounds really,

          5  really interesting to me, and I am pleased at what I

          6  am hearing right now but I have a few questions and

          7  I just want to make sure that these things are

          8  addressed to a certain point.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In my

         10  experience that is known as an ambush, Council

         11  member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Is it? Be

         13  prepared. I will be ready, you will be ready. They

         14  told me you were ready. They told me that yesterday.

         15                 You know that since I got elected,

         16  and everybody here has always said we need to make

         17  sure that Freshkills closes on time, it's a

         18  commitment that I heard and I know that you have and

         19  we all have, and at the last several hearings we

         20  have been at, I always ask the questions are we on

         21  schedule to close Freshkills on time, and everybody

         22  always says yes, yes, yes, it is all on schedule.

         23  And I hear about an RFEI -- is that right, RFEI?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right. I

         25  have a little difficulty with the term myself, I had
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          2  to admit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I didn't

          4  know what it was, so that's okay.

          5                 And I hear about RFPs and I hear

          6  about all of this, and I say, wait a minute, what is

          7  the timing? How long is it going to take to get the

          8  RFEI out? How long is it going to take you to get

          9  the responses back? And then once that happens, I

         10  presume there has to be another step taken, so it

         11  seems to me as if the people in Staten Island are

         12  going to sit here and look at this and say, hey,

         13  wait a minute, they are not on schedule anymore.

         14  They are not looking at an RFP. They are looking at

         15  an RFEI, and that will take two, three, four, one

         16  month, whatever time it takes, a week, I don't know

         17  how long it is going to take. And then once that

         18  happens, you identify five or six companies or ten

         19  companies that you think are interested, then you go

         20  back and prepare. And I remember from, if I recall

         21  correctly, Commissioner Carpinello told me it takes

         22  about six months for an RFP just to get out there,

         23  so it is another six months after this period, so at

         24  the very best maybe a year from now we put out an

         25  RFP, and that would be the Year 2000, and it took
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          2  them last time months to study the RFP, so at the

          3  very best we will be close to the Year 2001, and we

          4  are all trying to get it closed by 2001, it is

          5  supposed to be done around that time.

          6                 So, I am concerned that, though what

          7  I hear everything is fine and everything is great,

          8  that the timing just may be a little bit off. Can

          9  you explain to me where my thinking is off on that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, actually

         11  your thinking is correct with one small exception,

         12  and this is something I went through with my own

         13  staff, and they said that if I asked for an RFEI, I

         14  have to say that slowly, Request for Expressions of

         15  Interest, they said that I would confuse people,

         16  that it would look like we were abandoning our

         17  present plans. That is not the case. This is an

         18  additional procedure. All other things that were

         19  being pursued continue to be pursued, the interim

         20  plan, the long-term plan, I am looking for more

         21  information, I want an alternative.

         22                 The Council, some members of the

         23  Council, want to explore retrofitting. I think that

         24  that is an excellent idea. Were we doing it? No, we

         25  were pretty much closing the door on retrofitting, I
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          2  opened it again. I apologize if I have confused

          3  anybody, there is no delay caused by this process,

          4  it is an additional process.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, let me

          6  see if I understand you correctly.

          7                 The proposal that the Mayor put on

          8  the table, that there be an EBUF in Carteret, an

          9  EBUF in Newark, and an EBUF in Red Hook are all

         10  still on the table?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They certainly

         12  are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

         14  expect those to move forward?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I expect

         16  them to move forward.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And they

         18  are going to all use the MTS's?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         20  correct, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you are

         22  putting out proposals to retrofit the MTS's, so

         23  someone is going to build an EBUF, some people are

         24  going to build three EBUFs --

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, no.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, maybe

          3  I am wrong.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am asking for

          5  someone to suggest to me a plan that is as efficient

          6  as the one we have but more acceptable to the

          7  community and I will use that plan in the event that

          8  the long-term plan does not go through.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me say one

         11  further thing.

         12                 The Interim Plan, such as it is, is a

         13  series of three-year contracts, which normally

         14  include two one-year extensions. There is no

         15  conflict here. Absolutely none.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let's talk

         17  about the long-term plan. Let's take a second to go

         18  through the long-term plan.

         19                 You said that the long-term plan that

         20  was proposed by the Mayor in December, you said you

         21  still plan on moving forward with that?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, you

         24  expect three private companies to invest maybe

         25  hundreds of millions of dollars in infrastructure,
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          2  that will allow them to move all of New York City's

          3  garbage through these EBUFs; you expect that to

          4  happen?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I expect the

          6  long-term plan will result in an efficient way of

          7  moving New York City's garbage, and I expect it will

          8  do that and prove viable before any alternative plan

          9  comes through. If there is an alternative plan

         10  offered.

         11                 I am just asking for suggestions, I

         12  am asking for help from the communities, from the

         13  industries.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez,

         15  maybe I can try to clarify.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Give it a

         17  shot, because I am not being successful.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you saying

         19  that the plan for the EBUFs and the possible use of

         20  a retrofit, if we find one acceptable, are not

         21  mutually exclusive?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, they are

         23  not mutually exclusive, no. But because I have no

         24  plan --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There would be a
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          2  purpose and reason for both of them?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is room

          4  for both of them. Seeing as how we have no

          5  retrofitting plan --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Especially if we

          7  can put the retrofitting on line a year ahead of the

          8  EBUFs.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, it --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My objective,

         11  among other things here, as I have said before, is

         12  to try to limit the use of the interim plan.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes,

         14  expeditiously.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The results --

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We want a

         17  system a system that will work expeditiously.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The results,

         19  possibly if we could both the EBUFs on line,

         20  whatever problem --

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: -- Let me

         23  finish. And the retrofitting, that there is a

         24  possibility that we might utilize this for taking

         25  care of commercial waste as well.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I had not

          3  addressed the problem --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know we had

          5  not addressed it.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I guess that is

          7  still a possibility.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But anything we

          9  can remove the truck traffic from the streets

         10  carrying garbage, whether it be residential or

         11  commercial, is something that is desirable, and I

         12  think you would agree with that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Perhaps I could

         14  restate the interaction between these two different

         15  proposals.

         16                 We have a proposal, and the Mayor has

         17  announced a plan that I am fully committed to, that

         18  we will have three EBUFs. There has been, as is

         19  noted, opposition in some quarters to different

         20  EBUFs, not all three, but individually, should one

         21  of them or two of them not be approved, do we not

         22  need a system to address the unaddressed portion of

         23  our garbage.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So my

         25  interpretation in what you are saying is, you are
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          2  now looking at the retrofitting as perhaps a

          3  fall-back plan.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: It is a

          6  fall back plan. It is not a real plan.

          7                 If something goes wrong, if

          8  everything goes right according to plan, then we

          9  don't need to retrofit; is that what you just said?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If everything

         11  goes right we don't need to retrofit.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So you are

         13  not committed to retrofitting. You are committed to

         14  the plan that was put out in December --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, no.

         16  Wait a second.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, I am

         18  sorry if I am misunderstanding you.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am committed

         20  to getting the problem solved. We have a plan. The

         21  plan is the long-term plan. The interim plan is only

         22  a bandaid --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I am fully

         24  aware of it.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As a manager, I
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          2  feel it is responsible -- I am responsible for

          3  developing fall-back plans.

          4                 Now, if in this search, this RFEI, it

          5  should appear that here is a wonderful system that

          6  works at half the present cost, well that would

          7  change a lot of people's thinking now, wouldn't it?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me just

          9  go back to --

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: -- Not half the

         11  cost? One-quarter of the cost.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: -- When are

         13  you going to find out that this exists --

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I have to ask

         15  first.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: After the

         17  company has already built their EBUFs?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I have to ask

         19  first.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: After you

         21  have already signed contracts, because you have to

         22  sign contracts so they can do their EBUFs and your

         23  timing is going to be sometime in the middle of the

         24  Year 2001, these EBUFs will have been started

         25  already or built already at that point.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Council Member,

          3  contracts have to be signed. They are incumbent upon

          4  both parties who sign them. Should the companies not

          5  be able to produce the EBUF, then we must have a

          6  fall-back plan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can I

          8  finish this, Mr. Chairman?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please. Go

         10  ahead.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That is not

         12  what I am saying, Commissioner, and the smile is

         13  going away. I just wanted you to know that.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That works both

         15  ways.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, I was

         17  ready for that, so that's okay.

         18                 You are saying that you expect

         19  private companies to go out there and invest money

         20  in infrastructure, and invest money in getting

         21  certain things going, and you expect then at some

         22  point to maybe tell them, you know what? Somebody

         23  came up with a great idea that we think works better

         24  than anything else, whatever that idea is, which I

         25  don't know what it is, right? You are expecting that
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          2  may happen. We don't want to do business with you

          3  anymore. They maybe have invested hundreds of

          4  millions of dollars, they have already invested

          5  millions of dollars getting to the point where they

          6  can bid for it and design plans like this for it and

          7  get to that point.

          8                 You are saying that if it is a

          9  fall-back plan, then you are saying I really don't

         10  intend on doing the retrofitting of MTS's unless

         11  something goes wrong with one of the EBUFs, that is

         12  what I heard, maybe I am wrong, and if that happens,

         13  if one of the EBUFs doesn't work, then I need a

         14  fall-back plan, you are saying that, and I think I

         15  heard that, and you are saying, however, if all of

         16  the plans work then I don't need a fall-back plan,

         17  but if a great plan comes along I will look at it.

         18                 You can't have it both ways. You

         19  can't expect a company to invest --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Is it your

         21  suggestion --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me

         23  finish the question.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Is it your

         25  suggestion that I withdraw the RFEI?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: It is my

          3  suggestion if the plan is there put out an RFP and

          4  make it real. That is my suggestion. Not to have it

          5  as a fall-back plan. It is my suggestion that you go

          6  out there and you say, you know what - we need to

          7  close Freshkills on time. Let's stop playing around

          8  with the process and let's get it done right. That

          9  is my suggestion. Not that you try to figure out a

         10  way to make it sound like I am suggesting that we

         11  don't have a proposal for retrofitting MTS's,

         12  everybody in this room knows I am for that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You don't have

         14  a proposal.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

         16  know I am for that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You don't have

         18  a proposal.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I didn't

         20  say I had a proposal.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am looking

         22  for one.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I am

         24  going to get on that in a second --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could I
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          2  interrupt a second?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: -- Let me

          4  just, I need to actually address that for a second.

          5  I don't understand what you are saying to me almost

          6  and I understanding the language quite well and I am

          7  hearing two different things and I am somewhat, you

          8  know, I had this smile and it went away and now I am

          9  sitting here going what is he saying?

         10                 Is it or isn't it, and you haven't

         11  answered it, and maybe that is a result of being

         12  from that side of the hall, but try to answer our

         13  question the way it really is. If it's a plan, it's

         14  a plan. If it is not a plan, it is not a plan, that

         15  is what we want to hear. Is it a fall-back? If all

         16  the EBUFs go in place then we are going to keep the

         17  EBUFs? Then say that, just say it. If that is not

         18  the case, then tell us, you know what, Mr.

         19  Councilman, we are looking to make sure that our

         20  plan goes through, and we will do everything we can

         21  to do that, and if we do do that, then we are not

         22  going to do the retrofitting. And if the greatest

         23  plan in the world comes out there, then we don't

         24  care because we have our plan in place because we

         25  have to close Freshkills by the Year 2001 and we
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          2  have committed to that, the Mayor has committed to

          3  that, the Council has committed to that and

          4  everybody has committed to that. And the reason I

          5  started with timing was, because we need to make

          6  sure that we have a sense of urgency to close it on

          7  time, and I think you do and I think we do and I

          8  think if we are real, if we are real, we can do

          9  that.

         10                 If we keep going back and forth with

         11  RFEIs, and I didn't know what it meant, RFEIs and

         12  this and that, then at the end of the day, if it

         13  doesn't close on time for whatever reason, don't

         14  blame us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think you have

         16  made your point. The point I want to make at this

         17  particular point, you know, you have gone over it a

         18  number of times, because I got you to say it was a

         19  fall-back plan, I think very good points are being

         20  made by Mr. Rodriguez on this issue, and I tend to

         21  agree that an RFPEI (sic) is something you try to

         22  explain as to why you think it would be a good idea,

         23  and I am listening very carefully and I will

         24  evaluate what you said, but it seems to me that if

         25  you are serious in doing the retrofitting, and if
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          2  you intend, to be taken seriously, more important as

          3  Mr. Fisher said, if the industries which will bid on

          4  the RFP for an eventual -- if you decide you want to

          5  have that, which I hope you do -- for a

          6  retrofitting, they will not take very seriously on

          7  RFEI, if number one, they think it is a fall-back

          8  plan; number two, if you are only doing an EEI and

          9  not doing an RFP, and I think what we need is more

         10  than a fall-back plan, because you said originally

         11  they are not mutually exclusive, that you can have

         12  both, and I think there is a need for both, because,

         13  one, you are going to perhaps be able to put on line

         14  earlier, which would be the retrofitting, if you

         15  come up with a plan --

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: -- A proposal

         18  that is good. But for the industry to take you

         19  seriously, and for this to really happen, maybe you

         20  misspoke when you called it a fall-back plan, but I

         21  take the blame for it because I gave you those

         22  words.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But I think what

         25  you really should be meaning, if I might make the
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          2  suggestion and try to be helpful, because I want to

          3  work together, is, number one, we should go to an

          4  RFP as soon as possible, say to these people who

          5  have been successful in the RFP for the long-range

          6  plan that this does not affect you, this is

          7  something that we can have a long with you and as a

          8  matter of fact, if you would like to bid and come up

          9  with a proposal, come up with a proposal for the

         10  retrofitting as well, and that we hope you will be

         11  able to put this on line earlier, and then you may

         12  find this may even be more desirable to do it in

         13  retrofitting than to do an EBUF, and that we would

         14  be able to work together and resolve some of the

         15  issues that we have here, and that this solves some

         16  of the problems, and I hate to say it, but there is

         17  plenty of garbage to go around. You could probably

         18  accommodate more than you really need, and you can

         19  even tap into the commercial and get paid for that

         20  and make money on that.

         21                 But I think what you really should be

         22  doing is taking this seriously, the retrofitting,

         23  you have come up with something, maybe you are going

         24  to come up with something, but try to shrink the

         25  time situation, because as we say, number one, we
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          2  are concerned about the neighborhoods and not

          3  inconveniencing and causing problems in the

          4  neighborhoods with the problems which we enunciated.

          5                 And the other thing is, trying to

          6  limit this bandaid which you call that can turn out

          7  to be a big compress, if it lasts six years or seven

          8  years, we want it to be a very short time, and if we

          9  can do that by doing the retrofitting, because I

         10  think that is why most of interested in the

         11  retrofitting, I think that is something you should

         12  be doing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

         14  let me go on another area here, I guess I beat that

         15  one to death a little bit.

         16                 Commissioner Carpinello, you referred

         17  to two common proposals when you made your

         18  presentation, and I was wondering, when you used the

         19  word common proposals, exactly what that meant?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         21  the proposals that we got in, one was from a company

         22  known as ECDC, the other one is Newark Recycling,

         23  talked about the direct dump into the containers

         24  located within the barge. When we had put out an

         25  RFEI back in August of 1996, when the Fresh Kills
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          2  Task Force Committee had been formed and working on

          3  coming up with a plan, we put out an RFEI at that

          4  time and had gotten some proposals in that talked

          5  about compaction, but they weren't very detailed

          6  proposals.

          7                 So, given the fact that we had looked

          8  at it in the past, and had gotten the proposals,

          9  albeit not very detailed, we had asked our

         10  consulting firm HDR to give us their best proposal

         11  based on their years of experience and we had set

         12  certain criteria; the criteria being:

         13                 Number one, that the compaction and

         14  the containerization into containers would have to

         15  be as efficient as the MTS currently operates, that

         16  it would have to work within the footprint of the

         17  MTS which is approximately a half acre, and that

         18  basically it would have to meet those requirements,

         19  and that was our marching orders to HDR. And what we

         20  presented this morning was their best proposal given

         21  what is out there in the industry, as far as the

         22  compaction equipment that is used by many, many

         23  private vendors, and this was their idea as how this

         24  might work, and even working at this, the throughput

         25  capacity was no better than 150 tons an hour.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, you

          3  are getting bailed out on this one.

          4                 Okay, thank you, Commissioner.

          5                 Let me just say that, have you

          6  considered other technologies, have you looked at

          7  the possibility of other technologies? You are

          8  saying that you use two proposals that you

          9  specifically have told companies not to submit, that

         10  is the information that you basically gave the

         11  consultants to work with. And then you told them go

         12  out there and find out what is out there.

         13                 Maybe you should have went out there

         14  and put it out to the industry to find out what is

         15  out there?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Have you looked

         17  at other technologies?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We,

         19  again, back in August of '96 when we put out an RFEI

         20  we did ask companies how they might export waste and

         21  there were no restrictions, there were no

         22  restrictions at that time, and what we got back was

         23  a host of different proposals. One or two talked

         24  about containerization but in fact were very --

         25  lacked a lot of detail, but there were no
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          2  restrictions back in August of '96, when we put out

          3  the RFEI for exporting waste out of the City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So by saying

          5  that, are you telling us you are not too hopeful

          6  that you will get any new proposals, new technology

          7  under the RFPEI, or an RFP, which we prefer?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

          9  not at all. I think that that is almost three years

         10  ago now, and given the City the announced its plans

         11  in wanting to make continued use of the MTS's, that

         12  maybe we will. We will see. Again, we have looked at

         13  this for a long time, but it doesn't hurt to look at

         14  it one more time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         16                 Mr. Leffler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Good morning,

         18  and good luck in your new position, Commissioner.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you.

         20                 Recently Virginia has passed

         21  legislation that will restrict the amount of waste

         22  that we plan to send there. How do we plan to, does

         23  the City plan to make accommodation for that, and

         24  dispose of what we otherwise would be sending there,

         25  and more broadly, can you address, do we have in
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          2  place contracts to take all of the trash at the end

          3  of the Year 2001?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler,

          5  does this relate to retrofitting? Because he is not

          6  going to get into every aspect of the Solid Waste

          7  Management Plan here today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It relates to

          9  it in this is the back-end, I mean it is one thing

         10  as to how it goes in, but it is another --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please relate it

         12  to that, because we are not going to discuss the

         13  whole Solid Waste Management Program today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: That is what

         15  I wanted to ask, if you think it is out of order,

         16  then we can go on with --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I want you

         18  to ask your question, but I would have hoped that we

         19  could limit ourselves to try to discuss the interim

         20  plan, long-range plan or any other thing with

         21  respect to that, the problems we are having. We are

         22  having a problem, obviously, it is in the

         23  newspapers, of locating a place to eventually bring

         24  them, but what we are really talking about is the

         25  means to deliver.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes, but if

          3  we don't have a place to deliver it, I mean it seems

          4  to me the whole thing ties together.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If I may, let

          6  me address the question.

          7                 Thank you for asking, Mr. Leffler,

          8  Council Member Leffler.

          9                 The large private companies actually

         10  had many landfills and many facilities throughout

         11  the United States, and while the laws of Virginia is

         12  just that, a law, it is certainly not a major

         13  impediment.

         14                 And let me go further and say that

         15  the City of New York, as an initiative of its own,

         16  and I am sure you know this but I just wanted to

         17  restate it for those people who might not, will not

         18  under any circumstances export its waste to host

         19  communities that do not welcome it. So, not only the

         20  state, but at the local level.

         21                 We are not looking to make enemies,

         22  there are plenty of people out there who want the

         23  waste, our problem is just to find an economical and

         24  efficient way of getting it there.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: What
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          2  percentage of the waste was Virginia going to take?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, off-hand

          4  I have to admit I don't know that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have

          6  another question, Mr. Leffler?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Do you think

          8  there are other states that are going to follow the

          9  Virginia pattern now that Virginia has done this?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Unfortunately I

         11  can't tell the future.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: The basic

         13  question and last is, when will the City have

         14  contracts in place to take all of the waste?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is a

         16  continuing process.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Will it

         19  continue after 2001? Or will we have it in place by

         20  then?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, it must be

         22  in place by then.

         23                 The process is one of quality, you

         24  know, quantity. Can the companies that submit

         25  proposals, can they actually produce? I mean, you
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          2  would be surprised, but I have actually seen people

          3  who said, we can take it but then they can't prove

          4  they can take it.

          5                 We will not enter into a contract

          6  that is not feasible.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

          8  very much. Mr. Leffler, we have many other people

          9  who want to be asking questions on this.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         12  Freed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         14                 Yes, I have a couple of concerns. One

         15  of them is that there are so many communities that

         16  are currently burdened by marine transfer stations,

         17  that the idea of potentially doing something that

         18  would shift or move some of the burdens around so

         19  that the same communities not continue to get

         20  overburdened by that, strikes me as a good idea, and

         21  you are looking at me like --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, to be

         23  truthful, are we talking about marine transfer

         24  stations or just transfer stations?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, marine
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          2  transfer stations because, I mean maybe I am wrong

          3  but would the EBUFs allow you to -- I mean, since

          4  you are looking at maybe Carteret, could you also

          5  look at other areas to put them? And, yes, even

          6  marine transfer stations, because the other thing

          7  that I am concerned about, and I was flinching when

          8  you were talking about during the interim period

          9  where trucks might have to make all of those --

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, be

         11  rescheduled or rerouted. Certainly, of course, or

         12  night collections.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly those

         15  are unfortunate, and we would like to avoid it, but

         16  there are unfortunate consequences of shutting down

         17  any part of the present system. Because while I

         18  don't endorse the anonymous predecessor who said

         19  garbage wins, I don't say that, people win. But

         20  certainly if we only have seven marine transfer

         21  stations, and I shut down one or two of them, then

         22  the remainder have to take the burden.

         23                 Yes, unless there is some other

         24  alternative procedure. And I think, although

         25  Councilman Rodriguez has left, perhaps I will never
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          2  again use the term "fall-back", but will only use

          3  the term alternate. Well, duly noted, and perhaps

          4  you could buy me lunch some time then.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I took the blame

          6  for it, I did it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

          8                 Well, obviously I am concerned

          9  because my district already gets 200 to 400 trucks a

         10  day and the idea of potentially getting another 300

         11  --

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, it is

         13  something to be avoided.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I hope.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because

         17  occasionally we would like to get a little oxygen in

         18  between the soot.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Have you given

         21  any thought to proposals that would take advantage

         22  of rail use as opposed to trucks?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And is there

         25  any innovative things you can do, like maybe give
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          2  preferential bidding or points or something to the

          3  use of freight, or anything that is much less

          4  polluting than trucks?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, trucks

          6  are generally used to bring the garbage to the

          7  transfer stations.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I understand

          9  that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are of

         11  course -- I didn't mean to be condescending, I am

         12  just trying to, you know present a context.

         13                 The trucks that are used to transport

         14  waste from transfer stations, are of course trucks

         15  that are mostly used in conjunction with private

         16  transfer stations. Our marine transfer stations only

         17  require the garbage be brought to them and then it

         18  is brought out by barge, which is of course what we

         19  thought was the strong point of the EBUFs, they are

         20  enclosed barge, unloading facilities, barges come

         21  in, barges go out, there is no truck traffic

         22  whatsoever, no pollution, not noise.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: All right, well

         24  then we do get back, I guess, to the transfer

         25  station --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Because I am

          4  looking for some way that we could potentially cut

          5  down on the incredible pollution that these trucks

          6  do provide, and maybe when you are looking at new

          7  systems there would be some way to inculcate the

          8  idea of locating even --

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Councilwoman, I

         10  would welcome any proposal that dealt with the

         11  removal of waste by rail. Why would that be? Because

         12  then there are fewer complaints.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Certainly.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And I am very

         15  much interested in fewer complaints.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And the other

         17  couple of quick questions: One of the things I am

         18  concerned about is so many of certainly the current

         19  marine transfer stations, the commercial transfer

         20  stations are owned by one or two major companies.

         21  Have you given a thought to potentially trying to

         22  get different companies or somehow limiting the

         23  control of those particular companies because the

         24  idea of a potential monopoly?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, monopoly
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          2  busting or, you know, that kind of thing is really

          3  outside the purview of the Department of Sanitation.

          4  But in our dealings with any private company, we do

          5  require background checks and things of that nature.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: True, but on

          7  the other hand, I know that if you look at the Trade

          8  Waste Commission and the background checks, they

          9  started a certain year in a lot of the major

         10  companies, the two major companies in particular

         11  that have come in since that didn't operate in New

         12  York, so I don't know that the background checks

         13  would do anything. In fact, if anything, it might

         14  make it more likely that the currently largest

         15  owners of transfer stations would be more likely to

         16  be approved.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am not sure

         18  that I am expert enough to address that question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         20                 And then the last question, I think

         21  we touched on it a little bit, what about --

         22  although, having just asked that question, what

         23  about the possibility of mixing commercial and

         24  residential?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The present
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          2  policy of the City is of course to address itself to

          3  the residential waste. Given the problems we are

          4  having and the limitations right now, I don't

          5  foresee any change in that policy.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: On that subject,

          7  if I can interrupt you, as I recall, one of the

          8  reasons when I spoke to the commercial carriers, and

          9  the Department of Sanitation, one of the reasons we

         10  have not been utilizing, or allowing our facilities

         11  to be utilized by commercial waste, is the high

         12  tipping fees that we charge.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly, the

         15  market --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They don't want

         17  to use us because we charge too much.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Market forces

         19  are such that the more efficient our system and the

         20  lower our prices, the more likely that some of those

         21  land-based private stations would cease operating.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We could close

         23  down the best of all possible worlds.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would prefer

         25  we not use the term we would close down, Council
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          2  Member, but in the give and take of normal economic,

          3  the marketplace, if we can underbid them, they will

          4  go out of business, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And another

          6  facility, and of course that would satisfy a

          7  neighborhood like Mr. Rodriguez' neighborhood.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Having conducted

         10  hearings, I know the unlimited outrage that exists

         11  out there.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I would

         13  say that is a goal that philosophically we share.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Just one last

         15  question. I know you said it would be about 30

         16  million to retrofit; any idea how much an EBUF would

         17  cost? Do you have any projections?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The EBUFs are

         19  of course private facilities.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How much would

         21  they cost to build?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, but how

         23  much would they cost?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I have to defer

         25  to people who have a longer background. I strictly
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          2  make policy and decisions, some of them apparently

          3  not wise ones.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are not

          5  asking you how to build a precinct, an EBUF.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

          7  estimates were anywhere between $60 million to $70

          8  million per EBUF.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Per.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, it's almost

         11  twice as much as retrofitting.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  Right. But you have to keep in mind that our

         14  transfer stations right now, I mentioned earlier,

         15  that they handle anywhere from 950 to 2,000 tons.

         16                 These EBUFs can handle upwards of

         17  4,000 tons a day. As a matter of fact, the ones we

         18  had in mind were to handle that amount of tonnage,

         19  so they could handle twice the amount of tonnage

         20  indoors and then get it onto barges and get it out

         21  of the City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you make the

         23  point that they are going to be private and paid for

         24  by the private corporations who are bidding; of

         25  course that is going to be included in the price of
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          2  whatever they do for us --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I am

          4  sorry, it is included in their price per ton that

          5  they would charge the City to tip at that facility.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Of course. We

          7  are not getting it for free.

          8                 And the other thing of course is

          9  there must be some way, if we do retrofit, and it

         10  will cost us $30 million, we can share that with the

         11  -- or maybe perhaps make the corporations, the

         12  private corporations utilizing those retrofitted

         13  MTS's to also pay that price, right?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, certainly

         15  the fee structure would be effected by the cost of

         16  retrofitting the MTS's.

         17                 Our goal of course is to lower the

         18  price of tipping, therefore undercutting -- I take

         19  that back, I didn't say our goal was to undercut

         20  anyone. But again, in supporting the democratic

         21  process in capitalism, if that should happen it

         22  would perhaps be a good thing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But your

         24  competition there would be the price of actually

         25  having to ship it out by truck and find a place by
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          2  truck, so that is just a matter of economics as to

          3  where it would go.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          5  You are correct. Economics.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Ms. Freed, are

          7  you finished?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, Mr.

         10  Robles.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 Commissioner Farrell, let me

         14  officially congratulate you on your appointment as

         15  Commissioner.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now it is

         17  official.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And since this

         19  is the first time that you have come before us, but

         20  let me also share with you, and I apologize and in

         21  no way is it being disrespectful, I am more

         22  comfortable calling you Kevin, since I worked with

         23  you --

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: A long time.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:-- In North
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          2  Brooklyn.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe my

          4  hair was not gray at the time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, we are

          6  both in the same boat, don't worry. And you were

          7  very helpful in this on working relationship in

          8  dealing especially within the Police Department and

          9  within North Brooklyn as you served, and as you

         10  moved ahead through the ranks, even when you got the

         11  stars I still called you Kevin.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's true.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And so often I

         14  forget and I call you Kevin --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It has something

         16  to do with retrofitting, right?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Whatever --

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, I like

         19  this. Let's not interrupt the man here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I don't want

         21  you to think that I am being disrespectful, I am

         22  not. I think you and I have been friends for many

         23  years and I want to continue that now as

         24  Commissioner of Sanitation.

         25                 Having said that, Kevin, let me just
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          2  say this to you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Do I sense an

          4  ambush again?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no.

          6                 Let me get to my point, because I

          7  came in late and my distinguished chair and my

          8  colleagues are briefing me on what took place before

          9  I came in, and I was told about this new

         10  announcement and I must tell you that I sat here and

         11  I thought I heard something and by the time the

         12  questions between the Chair, Council Member

         13  Rodriguez and others, I am a little confused of what

         14  was the announcement.

         15                 But let me just share with you on the

         16  issue at hand. For those of us, and I am one of the

         17  new ones on this Committee, and there is a reason

         18  why I am on this Committee, because of frustration

         19  of other announcements heaped upon the people of

         20  North Brooklyn, in particular within Community Board

         21  No. 1, that for awhile there you had two

         22  communities, clearly we are one now. So, let me say

         23  that any meeting with Council Member Fisher, I hope

         24  you also include this Council member, because in

         25  Community Board 1 those issues are common issues,
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          2  and they impact not only his district but mine, and

          3  there are outstanding, other announcements or

          4  policies that have been espoused, that haven't been

          5  resolved yet.

          6                 So, as the new Commissioner, where

          7  are we with what you come before us today, and

          8  clearly it is different from what we have heard

          9  before, because I am still a little leery about what

         10  was said; how does the other components of this

         11  whole solid waste plan, and especially within North

         12  Brooklyn, what is the timetable? We keep hearing

         13  about the Year 2001, and clearly we all know what

         14  was said about the Year 2001 and Freshkills, but to

         15  get to that point and to do that, there are other

         16  components that are just as important to be put into

         17  that puzzle before we get to the Year 2001, if we

         18  are really sincere about what we intend to do. And I

         19  hope that, although in general because I don't want

         20  the Chairman to call me out of order, there are

         21  other components that have not been resolved yet,

         22  which will impact upon North Brooklyn and this whole

         23  solid waste plan, besides what we are discussing

         24  today.

         25                 So, as the new Commissioner, perhaps
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          2  you can enlighten me about, one, what is it you are

          3  going to do to gust off and move on those prior

          4  commitments, and I must tell you I am sitting here

          5  and you are about the fourth commissioner that I

          6  have dealt with in the 15 years I have been in the

          7  Council.

          8                 So, I want to take those books that

          9  are sitting on the shelves and dust them and then

         10  either we are going to deal with it or get them out

         11  of the way, and then move ahead, and I think there

         12  is where I am still confused of what is it we are

         13  doing and how we are going to get to that 2001 to

         14  hopefully my colleagues from Staten Island who will

         15  see the closing of Freshkills.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, all

         17  right, I will make an attempt to clarify statements

         18  that I have made here and I hope that this works,

         19  and I acknowledge any mistake must be mine.

         20  Sometimes when you go over something in your mind

         21  you think it makes perfect sense, but of course it

         22  doesn't, perhaps when heard for the first time.

         23                 We have not yet, you know, heard,

         24  seen, been presented with and MTS retrofit or

         25  conversion scheme that works well.
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          2                 As I said, you can take an MTS and

          3  you can say, well, we can put the garbage in shoe

          4  boxes as it comes in, you know, it just takes a long

          5  time.

          6                 We can compact it. It takes less time

          7  but still longer than we are willing or able to

          8  allow at this point, without paying a large price in

          9  disruption of services to the community, not to the

         10  Department of Sanitation but to the community.

         11                 Now, there may be others out there in

         12  professional organizations and associations,

         13  professional, commercial interests, who may have new

         14  or better ideas, I am asking for those ideas. That

         15  was the sole purpose of my putting out an RFEI.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I accept that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sole purpose.

         18  But apparently that has caused some confusion.

         19                 If the ideas we receive are

         20  reasonable, we will incorporate them into our

         21  environmental review and decision-making process of

         22  which the Council is obviously an integral part, and

         23  that is the decision process for the long-term plan.

         24                 Okay, now, an effective MTS retrofit

         25  or conversion could be incorporated into a long-term
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          2  plan, I just don't know what it is, and that is what

          3  I am asking for. I am open, I will consider any

          4  reasonable idea.

          5                 The scoping document, and I have to

          6  tell you this, I am not totally comfortable yet with

          7  draft scoping documents, draft environmental impact

          8  statements -- you know, but the scoping document

          9  already contemplates or anticipates possibilities

         10  for MTS conversion to include expanding the

         11  footprint of these different MTS's, and that is all

         12  I am seeking to do is to follow through on what has

         13  already been stated, perhaps I put it in too

         14  confusing a way.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I see the

         16  Deputy Borough President of Brooklyn sitting in the

         17  audience, so let me perhaps take the advantage to

         18  ask you this question: As you know, I want to -- not

         19  Community Board 1, we, the people of Brooklyn, came

         20  together with not only elected officials but

         21  community activists and what have you and we went

         22  forward with a lawsuit. I don't believe that lawsuit

         23  has been disposed of yet, I believe it is still

         24  pending, so now having said that, how does this new

         25  suggestion fall within the overall -- what effort
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          2  does the DOS believe this lawsuit over the interim

          3  plan will have on the City's ability to close

          4  Freshkills on schedule?

          5                 And second, does your agency believe

          6  this lawsuit will have an effect on the long-term

          7  plan?

          8                 And third, does your agency consider

          9  other interim export alternatives, if the lawsuit is

         10  successful?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I know I like

         13  you. At least you are to the point, that's okay. You

         14  got one on me. It's not every day, but you're okay.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you.

         16                 You know, the outcome of the lawsuit

         17  is of course beyond my purview and it is one of

         18  those events, one of those circumstances that we

         19  have to -- we, actually we have to deal with as it

         20  happens, whichever way it goes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, if I

         22  may, I am sorry to cut you off. Well, let's get to

         23  the we. Yes, we are in court, I am not a lawyer, my

         24  colleagues can help me out, but I believe my

         25  experience tells me that sometimes the court tries
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          2  to get the parties together and see whether we can

          3  come to a amenable understanding so that the courts

          4  do not decide.

          5                 Then as you said that my question is,

          6  are there any attempts on the part of the City, to

          7  sit, to collaborate, to work towards a meaningful

          8  resolution, rather than having the courts make the

          9  decision, which eventually will have an impact on

         10  whatever plans you have.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. I believe

         12  that is certainly preferable to having a decision

         13  imposed on both parties, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: My question is

         15  are you doing that -- in fairness to you, it is just

         16  not you, is the City willing to move ahead to meet

         17  with the parties in order to work out some kind of

         18  meaningful --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Speaking for

         20  the Department of Sanitation, Council member, yes. I

         21  personally say, yes, I am willing to meet

         22  personally, period.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, my last

         24  thing, and then I thank the Chair, again I will

         25  repeat, there are like I said outstanding issues
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          2  that I still believe impacts upon the people of

          3  North Brooklyn, particularly within the Community

          4  Board 1, 3 and 4 communities. I look forward to this

          5  joint meeting on those issues, because it is not

          6  just about this issue, there is a whole host of

          7  other issues that I believe Sanitation had the time

          8  to deal with, we worked at the request of the chair.

          9  I know I have been one who had sat with your first

         10  deputy when Doherty was the Commissioner, when he

         11  was First Deputy Commissioner, Doherty, and yet

         12  certain outstanding issues are still not resolved,

         13  and I will tell you all we are doing is adding on

         14  top, upon top layers and somewhere along the line we

         15  are going to have to decide which layers we get rid

         16  of.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If I may,

         18  Councilman, did you not suggest that we worked

         19  together in the past.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That's why I

         21  called you Kevin.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, then we

         23  will work together in the future.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member
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          2  Adolpho Carrion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 Commissioner, welcome.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:

          8  Congratulations on your appointment.

          9                 My colleagues have been peeling off

         10  the layers and trying to understand the posture of

         11  the Department in this regard, and in a sense, you

         12  know, it is a little difficult because we have gone

         13  through a convoluted process for I guess now just

         14  about seven years since 1992 when we started to put

         15  this together, and there have been commitments on

         16  different levels to consider different options. I

         17  would assume that we are all interested in the best

         18  option for the City of New York, the most efficient

         19  and effective.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I assume we

         21  are, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And cost

         23  effective system.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Actually I am

         25  certain of it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And I have

          3  faith in that because I think we are all trying to

          4  serve the public as best we can.

          5                 And I have just a couple of

          6  questions, and I will preface it with a brief

          7  statement that I think that the waste management

          8  industry will only take us seriously if we are

          9  definitive about what we intend to do, and send a

         10  very clear statement that we are very serious about

         11  this option, if in fact we are serious about this

         12  option.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now you heard it

         14  from three of us.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, I think

         16  that maybe a word of admonition or advice is that

         17  the Department has to be much more definitive in its

         18  process and in its public statement, in order to

         19  attract the industry, because the industry is making

         20  important business decisions that are very long

         21  term, and if you respond to an RFEI that is a little

         22  waffly, you are going to expend a lot of money to

         23  make a statement about how you could run that

         24  business well. So, I think it is important that you

         25  be definitive in that regard.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Do we have an idea of the capacity

          3  for managing the entire stream of waste, if we use

          4  -- and barring your argument that there really can

          5  be three MTS's that can be retrofitted and possibly

          6  four, can we manage the entire stream of waste if an

          7  ideal world we were using all eight MTS's? Barring

          8  your arguments about the unfeasibility of the other

          9  four?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, barring

         11  -- the MTS's, depending on how you define the

         12  entire stream of waste.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: The entire

         14  stream of residential waste.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Residential

         16  waste, very good. Someone had raised the issue about

         17  commercial waste before and that is the only reason

         18  I asked for that clarification.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I was going

         20  to follow it up with that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The MTS's have

         22  been for years handling the stream of waste and

         23  would continue to do so, under their present

         24  circumstances, their present configuration.

         25                 But obviously in the proposals that
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          2  we have seen, if you were to reduce their capacity

          3  by 30 percent, God forbid by 50 percent, then some

          4  additional resources, either additional MTS's, or

          5  perhaps there are other options, I mean I haven't

          6  explored this problem completely, but some change in

          7  the system would be necessary, obviously.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, is the

          9  answer --

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The answer is

         11  no, if you retrofitted all of the MTS's, the three

         12  -- but you said to forget that? You did say to

         13  forget that?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: No, no, no. I

         15  said if in an ideal world we could retrofit all

         16  eight, would we have the capacity to manage the

         17  entire 13,000 tons of residential waste?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Not in the same

         19  manner that we are doing now. I mean, I would have

         20  to change --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Because of

         22  the model that we would be using in terms of size of

         23  facility?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         25                 Well, the question of the expeditious
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          2  handling, it would take twice as long.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In other words,

          5  and that is the essential factor, of course with

          6  time there is of course a cost factor, overtime or

          7  manpower, something like that, and there is the

          8  factor of the trucks backing up and that kind of

          9  thing.

         10                 There are some operational

         11  difficulties, substantial operational difficulties,

         12  that would have to be addressed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Probably or

         14  not insurmountable?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are very

         16  few problems that are insurmountable.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I was then

         18  going to ask if there is capacity for commercial

         19  waste to be moved through these retrofitted MTS's?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't want to

         21  be negative. I just said that there are a few

         22  problems that could be, you know, that can't be

         23  overcome.

         24                 But I think that that would be a

         25  tremendous challenge. I would be reluctant to say
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          2  that it could be done or it couldn't be done. If you

          3  were to press me on it and you said you must have an

          4  answer, my answer would be that it could not be

          5  done.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: To your

          7  current knowledge?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

          9  Exactly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Let me, Mr.

         11  Chairman, just go to the Bronx.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Certainly.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And to the

         14  South Bronx, one of the locations that you suggested

         15  this is feasible. That facility has now been closed

         16  for over a year.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: That

         19  community has all the negative indicators of an

         20  unhealthy environment, asthma, other

         21  respiratory-related illnesses, people with skin

         22  problems, a whole host of things, the quality of the

         23  air is poor, there is the issue of truck traffic, of

         24  spillage.

         25                 I have here in my hands a list of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  violations that were issued to different handlers,

          3  private, tipping floors not cleaned, open doors,

          4  dirty sidewalks, the pile exceeding acceptable

          5  heights, unlicensed operators, et cetera, et cetera,

          6  and this community has been inundated with trash for

          7  a long time. If we were to use the South Bronx as a

          8  retrofitted facility, one thing I understand is that

          9  the cost would be greater than other facilities

         10  because it has been rotting for awhile, it has been

         11  unused, I am assuming that -- and correct me if I am

         12  wrong?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It would cost

         14  more in my opinion, but I don't know that it would

         15  take so much more that it couldn't be done, I

         16  wouldn't say that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This is the one

         18  at Hunt's Point we are talking about?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The South Bronx

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Hunt's Point?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes, Hunt's

         23  Point.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But it is my

         25  understanding that you have given up the idea of
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          2  retrofitting and that you were going to build a new

          3  facility.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the

          5  question was would it cost more to retrofit than

          6  another facility --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was my

          8  understanding that prior to this there was a

          9  decision made that you were not going to even

         10  attempt to try to fix it and that you were going to

         11  build a new facility.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is

         13  correct. We don't have a proposal that would make it

         14  feasible yet, but it is conceivable yet. But it is

         15  conceivable that --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You can't

         17  retrofit something that is not going to be built.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: There is no

         19  plan.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is no

         21  plan to use it at this time, no.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: You would

         23  have to actually build a new facility almost.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am thinking,

         25  again, in simple terms, when you buy a house there
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          2  may be a brand new kitchen in the house, but you

          3  don't like the kitchen and you rip it out, so you

          4  put in a price of a new kitchen. And I am sorry if

          5  that is simplistic. All I am saying is, not knowing

          6  the physical requirements of any specific

          7  retrofitting plan, I could not say to you that you

          8  could not put it in the South Bronx facility.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay. But

         10  where I was going had more to do with the impact on

         11  the community if this facility were to be brought

         12  back on line, what are the traffic impacts?

         13                 And I have some prepared questions

         14  because I have thoughts about this, and let me just

         15  be exact. This Administration believes that major

         16  quality of life issues can be resolved by enforcing

         17  minor violations, and I think that is pretty clear,

         18  it is obvious. In reference to waste hauling, by

         19  enforcing minor violations, wouldn't the Department

         20  of Sanitation be able to catch major violations,

         21  such as illegal waste, poor truck conditions,

         22  unlicensed operators, et cetera?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay.

         25                 What is the role of the Department of
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          2  Sanitation police, besides summonsing shop-keepers

          3  and home owners, which we are all too familiar with,

          4  in enforcement activities involving waste haulers,

          5  especially trucks.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: What is the

          7  role? Well, we certainly have an enforcement role,

          8  and not only the Sanitation police but the

          9  Sanitation enforcement agents, not to differentiate

         10  between them. We have a certain -- we have a role

         11  and that role could be increased, there is no doubt

         12  about that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: What is the

         14  role right now, with regard to truck, garbage

         15  haulers?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         17  Department of Sanitation we have a permit inspection

         18  unit whose specific task is to go and visit all 78

         19  or 79 transfer stations, and their specific

         20  responsibilities are to make sure that, number one,

         21  they have a permit to operate, as well as they are

         22  operating under the terms and conditions that they

         23  got the permit. As you mentioned earlier, pile

         24  height, cleaning the tipping floor, making sure the

         25  doors are closed. Some of the summonses that you
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          2  just mentioned that were given were given by the

          3  permit inspection unit, as a result of their monthly

          4  inspections at these facilities.

          5                 So, that's it, I mean the unit goes

          6  out on a regular basis, we inspect --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't have

          8  to go into detail on this.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think you have

         11  answered it. We want to go back to the retrofitting

         12  aspect of this hearing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Well, thank

         14  you, but I think that this is relevant, because if

         15  for Hunt's Point, for the Hunt's Point community, if

         16  the Hunt's Point facility comes back on line, there

         17  is going to be a related impact that has to do with

         18  the truck traffic coming in and out of there.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: But we have no

         20  plan to do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's your

         22  answer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay, thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Fiala.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thanks, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 Commissioner Fiala, let me welcome

          5  you for the first time. I gave you a phone call to

          6  congratulate you on your appointment, obviously as a

          7  Staten Islander I am delighted and we look forward

          8  to working with you. I want to thank you for your

          9  accessibility and your openmindedness on this issue,

         10  and I want to thank your deputies as well.

         11                 I know this is a vexing issue, and I

         12  received this in the mail, I read it last night and

         13  continue to read on the car ride here, so that you

         14  believe me you see that it is highlighted, and one

         15  of the things that I note is that it says in Section

         16  3 that the Department does believe that modifying

         17  the existing MTS buildings to containerize waste

         18  warrants further evaluation.

         19                 Again, I thank you for your

         20  openmindedness and I think, and let me state that I

         21  am no expert either, but I think that these RFEIs,

         22  or the RFEI that you have suggested we move toward

         23  is a step in the right direction. I would urge all

         24  of us in this City and on this Council to recognize

         25  that there is nothing, there is no plan that has
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          2  been discussed or conceived of that will not in some

          3  way during some period of time have consequences on

          4  a community. That is sad commentary, but that is the

          5  result of a City that imposed in the Borough of

          6  Staten Island the largest environmental nightmare,

          7  environmental injustice, whatever, you want to call

          8  it, for 50 years. And as we go about now

          9  transforming the current system to allow for

         10  borough-based management, and fair share, we are

         11  going to have some bumps in the roads. But I think

         12  this is a huge step forward in your saying that you

         13  are willing to look at this. And the action that you

         14  have taken, this RFEI, is a huge step forward.

         15                 Having said that, let me say that it

         16  may have been said, and I was late because of

         17  traffic, which isn't under your jurisdiction, so I

         18  possibly missed the answer to this question in your

         19  testimony, but what is the time line for this RFEI?

         20  When do you estimate getting it out, and how long

         21  would it be out there before respondents have to

         22  respond?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, thank you

         24  for asking, and thank you for your previous

         25  comments.
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          2                 The RFEI will go out in one week, it

          3  will call for responses within two months. It's the

          4  best I could do.

          5                 And I would also like to make the

          6  point that one of the problems, as I see it, and

          7  everyone may not agree with this is in the waste

          8  management industry, there was a series of mergers

          9  going on so that it is my opinion that it is in the

         10  best interest of the City, its individual

         11  communities and the Department of Sanitation, to

         12  reach out to the widest possible audience. If I

         13  reach out only to people who are established in

         14  those companies, I am going to put myself in a

         15  position where I am at the mercy of a few, and while

         16  we know of course that they are all high-minded

         17  businessmen, I prefer to not deal with only a

         18  restricted few.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right,

         20  thank you very much, Commissioner. Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I just

         23  wanted to follow up on something. And I agree with

         24  you that we don't want to have to be dealing with a

         25  monopoly.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Did I say that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, I did. I am

          4  not putting words in your mouth.

          5                 The other thing is Mr. Fiala asked

          6  you about the time line with respect to the RFPEI,

          7  but more important, if you find an interest, or if

          8  you find something that strikes your interest, when,

          9  as a result in the best of all possible worlds, if

         10  you decide you are going to do an RFP, because you

         11  cannot award a contract without an RFP?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that's

         13  true.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, when, if you

         15  are satisfied within the two months of the RFPEI,

         16  are you thinking about what time frame issuing an

         17  RFP, or perhaps you should be designing an RFP at

         18  this particular point in time?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe that

         20  the process would be somewhere probably a minimum of

         21  six months.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's a long

         23  time. If you start now, maybe you can cut it down.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Perhaps given a

         25  viable solution, there might be motivation or
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          2  impetus or opportunity to speed up some part of the

          3  process, perhaps we can do a pilot project.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

          5  point I am making. Just to reiterate, we are trying

          6  to avoid the impact of the interim plan on

          7  neighborhoods, as Mr. Carrion pointed out in his

          8  neighborhood and other neighborhoods, and, yes, I

          9  believe that Staten Island has suffered immeasurable

         10  harm for a long time, but if I was a person from

         11  Staten Island, I would be the first one to see that

         12  these same things don't happen to any other borough

         13  as well.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, not that

         15  it plays a part here, but I am a Brooklyn resident.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we are all

         17  different residents.

         18                 Mr. Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Commissioner, welcome. Council Member

         22  Robles said that he was more accustomed to

         23  addressing you as Kevin, I am more accustomed to

         24  addressing you as Chief Farrell. But I am equally as

         25  delighted as Council Member Robles to now call you
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          2  Commissioner.

          3                 You may be a Brooklyn resident, but

          4  you are an adopted Staten Islander so.

          5                 You addressed the folks out on Staten

          6  Island earlier in the week at the Mayor's Town Hall

          7  Meeting and, frankly, you said that you would not be

          8  in that position as Commissioner if you were not

          9  committed to closing Freshkills on time, and

         10  committed to a plan that is fair to each and every

         11  community in the City and I am certainly happy to

         12  see you in the role as the Commissioner of the

         13  Department of Sanitation.

         14                 And also, one other last personal

         15  note. This is your first EP committee hearing in

         16  your new role and this is certainly my first EP

         17  committee in my new role as Council Member.

         18                 I have one very specific question,

         19  and that has to do with the shrink wrap technology

         20  in how it is related to the idea of retrofitting

         21  marine transfer stations.

         22                 I had the pleasure of joining my

         23  colleague Steve Fiala and the Borough President out

         24  at Freshkills, I guess it was several months ago,

         25  and watching the shrink wrap technology ECDC's;

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  where are we in terms of that technology and how can

          3  that potentially fit into the whole issue of

          4  retrofitting?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, thank you

          6  for your remarks, and for this question, because it

          7  provides an opportunity to give an example of a new

          8  technology and where does it play a part in our

          9  longer term plan, or for that matter should it

         10  become necessary in the retrofitting plan.

         11                 And that is, that this new

         12  technology, which is actually shrinkwrapping,

         13  wrapping in bales of approximately one ton,

         14  residential waste that is currently deposited in

         15  Staten Island.

         16                 We are entering into a pilot project

         17  where this company, ECDC, will in fact shrink wrap

         18  these bundles and ship them out of state.

         19                 Shrink wrapping, in my opinion,

         20  although I don't know the opinion will be shared by

         21  the DEC people or other state authorities, is

         22  another form of containerization. The bundles of

         23  garbage in one-ton parcels will be odor proof, leak

         24  proof and completely contained and in my opinion

         25  also eliminate the need for covered barges, for
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          2  instance. They are also much easier to handle, being

          3  smaller pieces.

          4                 We have decided to move forward with

          5  a pilot project because of the promise of this

          6  technology, but to be fair, we have the same

          7  misgivings or the same questions about this

          8  technology as we did in terms of the proposals that

          9  First Deputy Commissioner Carpinello presented; and

         10  that is to say, while you can shrink wrap, just like

         11  you can containerize, the question is, can we do it

         12  quickly enough, economically enough and will it in

         13  fact pass muster as far as the regulations of other

         14  agencies and other states. We hope it will, and that

         15  is why we are giving it a shot, we are giving it a

         16  trial.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So the pilot

         18  program will be using the one-ton baling?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there

         20  will be additional machines, but it is my

         21  understanding they will be using the one-ton baling

         22  machine.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Somewhere along

         24  the line, though, it is anticipated that they will

         25  be constructing a machine that will do five tons?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They have a

          3  five-ton machine. I don't believe that they have

          4  promised to deploy it in the pilot project, but

          5  certainly they would deploy it if we go to a

          6  contract with them, and I might point out because

          7  this is the retrofitting hearing, that I would

          8  welcome a chance to explore the possibility of

          9  retrofitting a marine transfer station with shrink

         10  wrap.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you,

         12  Commissioner.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         14  Boyland.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         16  gentlemen, for joining us here today.

         17                 I just want to piggy-back off of a

         18  question my colleague had in terms of the new

         19  technology and where we are looking at in terms of

         20  in 2000, 2001, 2002 and on, in terms of how we are

         21  going to deal with waste management, and also to

         22  reflect upon an article that I have in front of me,

         23  April 4th, quoting, "we have alternatives for

         24  finding a final resting place for our garbage", and

         25  also quoting the Governor of Virginia's statement on
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          2  where he is in terms of putting limits on the amount

          3  of garbage that New York sends to Virginia.

          4                 Are we now aggressively looking for

          5  alternatives or places in which to send our garbage,

          6  and in using in the new technology the shrink

          7  wrapping, and the transporting modes, are we

          8  aggressively looking at that now?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are

         10  aggressively looking at any proposal that comes to

         11  us, and the shrink wrapping of course is the most

         12  forward progress of those proposals so far.

         13                 We don't really have something else

         14  that we consider viable at this time, but should one

         15  come along we would certainly look at it.

         16                 The transport and the destination of

         17  all of New York City waste is of course germane to

         18  addressing our problems and is a major factor in

         19  finding sites.

         20                 As I said earlier, the City of New

         21  York's policy, kind of self-limiting, is that we

         22  will not send our waste to any community that

         23  doesn't want it, even though there may be a facility

         24  there, privately owned, that does want it.

         25                 Likewise, there are communities, and
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          2  there are no lack of communities that want our

          3  waste. I mean --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I understand

          5  that.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I mean, there

          7  is no problem with identifying such communities.

          8                 However, there are sometimes, as the

          9  case with the Governor of Virginia, other agencies

         10  that may in fact impede the process of our getting

         11  our waste which we want to get rid of, to those

         12  people who want it and can benefit from it.

         13  Remember, we are paying for them to take it.

         14                 The transportation of the waste is

         15  part of that. I mean, the environmentalists

         16  rightfully are concerned about pollution and

         17  spillage. Shrink wrap, in particular, I think

         18  addresses that issue, and that is the value of that

         19  proposal.

         20                 Whether it would be deemed sufficient

         21  by those agencies is something that only the test of

         22  time will tell.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Has there

         24  been any other state that has maybe put a mandate

         25  saying that we are only going to accept a certain
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          2  amount, or put a cap on the amount of trash that

          3  they will take from New York City?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is no

          5  such action taken yet, to my knowledge. And as for

          6  the Virginia mandate or pronouncement, I believe

          7  that is challengeable in court, although certainly

          8  we are not a party to that challenge.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         10  you so very much, gentlemen.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         12  DiBrienza.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 Commissioner, I know you are new at

         16  this job, but I see your Deputy who has been through

         17  these wars for a long time, some of the top echelon

         18  folks, so with all due respect to your newness, if

         19  some of the questions appear unfair, it really is

         20  because I am speaking to the agency as a whole and

         21  to this Administration.

         22                 Now, I don't think there is any

         23  question I have taken to quoting my colleague and

         24  agreeing clearly that the closure of Freshkills on

         25  time is non-negotiable, that is the starting point,
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          2  and I have adopted that particular phraseology

          3  because I think it is absolutely essential that

          4  everyone who always believed that, regardless of the

          5  borough they lived in or worked in, and that

          6  includes virtually every member of this Committee,

          7  continue to say it, but I amend that a little bit by

          8  saying, adding the following: How we get there is

          9  another story and a difficult question.

         10                 Now, your agency compounded this

         11  problem by making a mistake, some almost two years

         12  ago in issuing an RFP that specifically excluded

         13  anyone from considering retrofitting.

         14                 I know you are aware of that,

         15  correct? Not that you may not agree it's a mistake,

         16  but you are aware that technically, factually --

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let me

         18  say I know that that was the posture then, and it

         19  was my intention to address it during my tenure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: All right.

         21                 Now, again, that is why I said don't

         22  take it personally --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, I don't

         24  take it personally.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Now, as a
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          2  result of that mistake, and notwithstanding many

          3  people's efforts, Councilman Rodriguez, myself and

          4  other members of this Committee, the chairman and so

          5  on, to try to get this to change, to try to get this

          6  City Administration to listen and to issue a

          7  supplemental RFP, which would get us directly to the

          8  point of undoing the damage. We got a deaf ear so

          9  far. Now, you arrive, now just by way of summary.

         10  You are talking about an RFEI, a Request for an

         11  Expression of Interest, there, I submit to you, that

         12  there is no way -- and I have tried to read all of

         13  the notes in the interim because I got here, I was

         14  at another event, there is no way that a request for

         15  an expression of interest, it takes awhile to go

         16  out, several people may or may not be willing or a

         17  company may or may not be willing to spend the

         18  money, you know, to put together the right of a

         19  significant proposal to an administration that

         20  appears clearly not interested in this,

         21  notwithstanding your move, to then maybe lead to a

         22  review period, to then maybe lead to an RFP, to then

         23  have another series of months go by before an RFP

         24  could ever be issued, let alone answered, while at

         25  the same time we are committed, remember the opening
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          2  statement, to closing Freshkills on time, that we

          3  don't care to move away from, nor should we.

          4                 Why do you expect anyone to believe

          5  that this is anymore than lipservice to an idea that

          6  this Administration has already rejected? That is

          7  what I get out of it.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The people who

          9  proposed the shrink wrap proposal came forward, I

         10  expect that is a new technology, perhaps something

         11  else is out there that would come through.

         12                 As I said earlier, I would really

         13  like, I really would like to open it up.

         14                 Now, that is a philosophical thing,

         15  and I may have made a mistake, it may be that we

         16  should have put out, as you suggest, an RFP or an

         17  amended RFP. It is just my understanding that in

         18  conversations with industry executives that they

         19  were of the opinion that the present state, as they

         20  understand it, of engineering, did not allow for the

         21  successful retrofitting.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Let me help

         23  you out here a little bit.

         24                 All this is, is an extra layer. The

         25  creative new company you are thinking about and
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          2  imagining, who wants to ultimately get involved in

          3  retrofitting with a brand new technology that you or

          4  I and Martha and no one else every heard of, okay?

          5  Can respond to an RFP and tell you exactly how they

          6  are going to do it. All this is is an extra layer of

          7  bureaucracy no matter how you cut it.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I think

          9  that -- and you can correct me if I am wrong, of

         10  course, that the RFPs tend to be more specific.

         11                 I mean, if I am to water down an RFP

         12  but call it that --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: No, sir.

         14  Maybe we are misunderstanding each other.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: You tell

         17  people come up with a proposal to retrofit, reuse,

         18  you know, to expand, the marine transfer stations,

         19  just undo the damage. You don't limit them to what

         20  technology, to what new idea, to what broad, never

         21  seen before kind of technology - no, there is no way

         22  that an RFP limits them, and that an RFEI is somehow

         23  this broad a document, it is just another layer of

         24  bureaucracy, that is what it is. Because all they

         25  are doing is taking more time, if they are willing,
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          2  more energy and more money, to tell you about lots

          3  of ideas they might have, for what? Not for a way to

          4  magically get rid of it but for a way to ultimately

          5  retrofit, in full or in part, the marine transfer

          6  stations. So, let them tell you directly. That is

          7  what we asked almost a year and a half ago. But let

          8  me get to the main point.

          9                 You way, well, what's the difference,

         10  we've got to error on the side of caution, we better

         11  have all of the broad ideas and then get to the next

         12  stage, which is kind of what I am hearing, here is

         13  the problem: Are you prepared, is the Giuliani

         14  Administration prepared to stop the clock? To stop

         15  the long-term contracts dead in their tracks and to

         16  somehow not close Freshkills on time, which I

         17  suggest, as my colleague does, is non-negotiable?

         18  Because otherwise the question is, will long-term

         19  contracts be let while you are still reviewing RFEIs

         20  and then ultimately putting out an RFP; is that what

         21  is going to happen?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As I said

         23  earlier, Councilman, the RFEIs will be out in a week

         24  and responses will be back within two months, and

         25  that is the sum total of any delay that would take

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            124

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  place.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

          4  but I think you ought to inform the Councilman that

          5  in response to a question from me you said they are

          6  not necessarily mutually exclusive.

          7                 In other words, you can go ahead with

          8  the long-term situation as far as the EBUFs and at

          9  the same time do a retrofit, they might be able to

         10  have both.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Which could

         12  only, I would imagine, be worse, but that is another

         13  debate. That is another debate.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Again, I

         15  thought it was worth a shot, and it is a delay at

         16  most of two months and one week.

         17                 I thought it was easier to submit an

         18  RFEI. I am not certain of the process, but I am led

         19  to believe that in general the cost of submitting an

         20  RFP is three times that of submitting an RFEI, and I

         21  am just looking to expedite it at the minimal delay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: With a

         23  commitment that you will do an RFP --

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

         25  Absolutely. That is the whole purpose of getting the
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          2  RFEI.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA:

          4  Commissioner, two things: All well and good, number

          5  one, if we were starting at ground zero. But I

          6  submit to you the clock is ticking and we are in a

          7  hole because you had a full RFP process, a

          8  commitment to EBUFs, two of which will never

          9  materialize in New Jersey, if I read politics right,

         10  and the only one that may materialize is this 12,000

         11  ton destruction of the Red Hook waterfront, but,

         12  again, that is for another day, okay?

         13                 So, we are not at ground zero. We are

         14  in the hole already. So, this cautious approach, I

         15  think adds a layer of bureaucracy, number one.

         16                 Now, number two, let me make sure I

         17  understand this.

         18                 Are you testifying today, as the

         19  Commissioner of the Department of Sanitation, that

         20  some time after you get the RFEI responses and

         21  review them, that you are committed, this

         22  Administration is committed absolutely to issuing an

         23  RFP for retrofitting of the marine transfer

         24  stations?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Depending on
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          2  the quality and detail of the proposal, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I think he

          4  may have left. Okay, okay. That's good to hear.

          5                 My only concern is we are well into

          6  2000 at that point in time, because you have got

          7  another couple of months which gets us to midsummer,

          8  you have got another, you know, preparation time,

          9  you have got six months minimum, that is optimistic

         10  by the way, and we are well into 2000 and 2001 is

         11  coming real quick after that. January 1, 2001,

         12  non-negotiable -- 2002, I apologize. 2002. I meant

         13  2002. At the end of 2001, which would be January 1,

         14  2002.

         15                 Final question. Short question. Why,

         16  with the history we have of resisting this approach,

         17  retrofitting facilities that are somewhat more more

         18  fairly distributed among the boroughs, why would you

         19  keep two tracks going when on one of the tracks, I

         20  may be wrong, two out-of-state EBUFs, and the third

         21  component, a 12,000 ton mega waste transfer station

         22  on the waterfront in Red Hook Erie Basin, a stone's

         23  throw, if you are a good throw, I am not such a good

         24  thrower, away from the marine transfer station, if

         25  you can get it over everything, okay? Why is that
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          2  track still moving? You know, since it is still

          3  moving, why might I believe there is any seriousness

          4  about retrofitting, number one?

          5                 And number two, even if retrofitting

          6  ends of being impossible, why are you creating, why

          7  are you committed to create a 12,000 ton site, if

          8  the theory is every borough does its own? That is

          9  12,000 tons. More garbage than Freshkills gets

         10  currently every day each day as we sit here.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the

         12  facility that you described at Erie Basin is that it

         13  would have a maximum capacity of 12,000 tons. And

         14  that was, I believe not completely clear in the

         15  draft scoping document.

         16                 Let me say, no matter what was said

         17  or written before, the plan is that the Erie Basin

         18   -- you know, being in Brooklyn I have the tendency

         19  to say Mill Basin, can you imagine the concern that

         20  might cause?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: For your

         22  neighbors and friends.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: But there is no

         24  plan, there is no intention of putting 12,000 tons

         25  of waste in Erie Basin.
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          2                 The Erie Basin, even an EBUF is

          3  strictly barge bed --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA:

          5  Commissioner, you can't say that. You know, you can

          6  because you are a free thinker and independent

          7  person, but I have to tell you, you are new, and I

          8  have had my share of battles with Commissioners. I

          9  don't know you, so I have no reason to battle with

         10  you, okay?

         11                 But I can't believe you can sit there

         12  and say there is no intention to put 12,000 tons. I

         13  mean, if there is a facility that can hold 12,000

         14  tons with private business interests involved, you

         15  are not going to spend time, money and energy and

         16  waste that kind of money.

         17                 So, let me tell you, I hope you would

         18  be right on that narrow point.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: But it's a

         21  problem.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The fear I

         24  have is that your Administration, the ultimate irony

         25  here, not my colleague from Staten Island who does
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          2  and says what he is supposed to for his

          3  constituents, not virtually every other member of

          4  this Committee, Chairman, and on down who talks

          5  about Fresh Kills closures being non-negotiable,

          6  none of us, the ultimate irony here is, you, by

          7  extension of the Administration in your person, if

          8  there is going to be a problem with meeting that

          9  deadline, it is going to be because of your

         10  Administration's actions. That is the ultimate

         11  irony.

         12                 The Mayor wants to close this more

         13  than anybody, you know, if you listen to them, but

         14  you know what? Deadends, out-of-state problems,

         15  lawsuits, and you know, community opposition, that

         16  all takes time, that all drags things on for years.

         17                 I will tell you, that is the ultimate

         18  irony, if it doesn't happen, the Mayor wants it the

         19  most --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I just would

         21  like to say, just if I can, the proposed facility

         22  is, as I said, not a 12,000 ton per day facility.

         23  The Mayor has said that is a 3,900 ton per day

         24  facility, I say it is a 3,900 ton per day facility.

         25  I will review the scoping document to try to clarify
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          2  that.

          3                 And I don't like to bring up the term

          4  interim plan, but, again, everyone talks about the

          5  deadline of closing Freshkills, which I am

          6  ultimately and positively and philosophically

          7  committed to.

          8                 The interim plan is a series of

          9  three-year contracts with two one-year extensions.

         10  They haven't all been awarded yet. Nothing is going

         11  to happen on January 1st, 2002, except that the

         12  Freshkills landfill will close, even if I have to

         13  padlock it myself.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's not the

         15  issue. The issue is what do we do with the garbage

         16  after that?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And the

         18  interim sites could become permanent. Of course, if

         19  that is the implication of your comment, then they

         20  need to be reviewed with a full EIS in the subject

         21  of your draft, Environmental Impact Statement, which

         22  is the testimony I gave to the Deputy Commissioner,

         23  and I don't know the result of that yet.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Steve, there is

         25  no question the interim plan is a big problem here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez

          4  with two short questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have to be

          8  out of here at about 3:00 and I have given plenty of

          9  leeway and now we have to get finished.

         10                 Please proceed. Be less dramatic and

         11  let's get out of here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The

         13  proposed EBUF would be designed to process 6,000

         14  tons per day with a peak of 12,000 tons per day?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No assembly

         16  line operates at peak --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

         18  capacity.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is the

         20  absolute --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that is

         22  something you have to review.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: -- Outside.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The problem is

         25  -- when you say that, you cause problems for us.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me say

          3  this, if I may, I would direct the Council's

          4  attention to the first page, the cover actually, of

          5  that document, the green cover on which the first

          6  word is draft, we will look again at that document.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So we can expect

          8  that that language will be removed?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it will

         10  be clarified to whatever extent we need to clarify

         11  it, because I see that there is a great deal of

         12  confusion over this point. And perhaps the confusion

         13  may be on my side. I mean, I am not casting

         14  aspersions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But we don't

         16  want to tell the community they are going to have

         17  12,000 tons --

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am telling

         19  the community it will not have 12,000 tons.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Fine. But we

         21  tell a lot of things, and we are not always there,

         22  but once it is written and once the plan is

         23  conformed to that, then we know that will be the

         24  problem.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The current
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          2  MTS's operate on -- let me just check, what is our

          3  capacity?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Forty-eight

          5  hundred.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Forty-eight

          7  hundred over a 24 hour period.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Do they operate

         10  at 4,800 --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think we

         12  understand each other how important that issue is.

         13                 Mr. Rodriguez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: All right.

         15  We are here today because it was the Department's

         16  contention at some point, or I believe that is one

         17  of the reasons we are here today, that retrofitting

         18  couldn't work. And you went out there and you hired

         19  a consultant and the consultant came back and said

         20  retrofitting works, and much like my colleagues

         21  said, a couple of years later we are sitting here in

         22  a situation where time is ticking and the closure of

         23  Freshkills is not as clear, at least to me and to

         24  some of my colleagues, as I am sure it is to you and

         25  the Administration.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't know

          3  how I can make it clearer, I really don't.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well, if

          5  you are intending on taking an interim plan, and

          6  making it a permanent plan, then it is possible. But

          7  then you are not considering the impact that that is

          8  going to have on the communities. So, if that is the

          9  intention, then it is clear that your intent is to

         10  take the interim plan and say we don't care because

         11  we closed Freshkills and the communities are going

         12  to have to have the trucks and the garbage and all

         13  inside their communities, if that is the intent then

         14  it is clear.

         15                 If the intent was to come out with a

         16  plan that was fair and equitable, then it is not

         17  clear.

         18                 That wasn't a question, that was a

         19  statement. I only have two so I have to be careful

         20  with them.

         21                 Let me ask you, you said that if a

         22  host community didn't want the garbage to come in,

         23  it wouldn't go in.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I did say

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me say

          3  Red Hook doesn't want it to come in. Erie Basin

          4  doesn't want it to come in, so it is not going in?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The host

          6  community --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ; Red Hook is

          8  the host community in this point.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I have to be

         10  updated sometimes on the history and the terminology

         11  that we use here.

         12                 Unfortunately I think sometimes that

         13  I am speaking clearly when I am not.

         14                 The host community agreement that we

         15  adhere to without exception is for the final

         16  disposal -- well, for the final disposal, who is

         17  going to get it, out of state, in state, Newburgh,

         18  any place, final destination.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Out of the city.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And that is why

         21  we have to close Freshkills, because the final

         22  destination lacks a host community agreement.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It doesn't apply

         24  to Red Hook.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it has

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            136

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  got a final destination, I would hope.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

          4  what you are saying is, the EBUFs are not -- you

          5  don't need a host community agreement for the EBUFs?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, and

          8  that includes the EBUFs that are planned for New

          9  Jersey?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

         12  that is why you suspect that those will be able to

         13  go on line?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, that's

         15  true.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, let

         17  me get to really what my question is going to be,

         18  and that is with regard to technology. You mentioned

         19  the shrink wrapping technology.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Is there

         22  any other technology that you are looking at? Or

         23  that you have heard about, that you know about?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I hope to be

         25  looking at several different kinds, as soon as I get
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          2  my RFEI back.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Is there

          4  any technologies that you have had relationships

          5  with organizations that have contacted you and said

          6  we may have this or we may have that, or this exists

          7  or that exists?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In the six

          9  weeks and three days that I have been in office, the

         10  answer to that is no. Actually I would have to defer

         11  the question, if you don't mind.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Other

         14  than what we presented this morning in shrinkwrap,

         15  no companies have come to us with means of

         16  containerizing or otherwise --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Of

         18  technology? Any other technologies other than what

         19  we are looking at today?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  Nothing whatsoever.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: None. That

         23  is disturbing to me. I will tell you why that is

         24  disturbing to me. Because as a Councilman that is

         25  not on this Committee, as a Councilman that just
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          2  represents a part of New York City, I received mail

          3  for four or five different types of technology that

          4  are out there. Whether or not they work, I don't

          5  know. But I have received correspondence. You are

          6  saying that you don't know of any more. That is

          7  troubling to me that you have been doing this for so

          8  many years, you are in the process of figuring out a

          9  way to deal with this issue, and to this day, you

         10  sit here in front of me today and say I don't know

         11  of any other technology.

         12                 I am sitting here saying I have heard

         13  of some stuff. We probably will get testimony from

         14  people today that say we heard of some stuff, but

         15  you haven't heard of anything?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez,

         17  let me say this to you, as Chairman of this

         18  Committee, I will take any suggestion you have, any

         19  possibilities, any brochures, any plans, and we will

         20  make sure the Commissioner sees that, and we will

         21  have testimony here today of other people, if we

         22  ever get to it, who will testify to the possibility

         23  of other technology.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I am just

         25  trying to see if in fact they look at the technology
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          2  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Their answer is

          4  no. Their answer is no, so you got your answer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So that is

          6  very disturbing. Okay, that was my first question.

          7  Short question.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The second

         10  question would be with regard to access to the

         11  MTS's, to the people that proposed these two

         12  proposals that are using a study, were they able to

         13  go in and measure? Were they able to go in and take

         14  pictures? Were they able to bring their architects

         15  in? Were they able to bring their engineers in in

         16  order for them to be able to make the proper

         17  proposals for retrofitting the MTS's?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They did

         19  visit the MTS's.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: What?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They did visit.

         22  The answer is yes.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Next question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Companies
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          2  were able to go in there and measure --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. He said

          4  yes.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That's not

          7  what I heard out there, but that's okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I think

         10  that's it. I think I am done. I only had one.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, you had

         12  another question. I will ask the question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Go ahead.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Will those

         15  people who intend to answer the RFPEI have access to

         16  the MTS's so they can --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         19                 Now, my final question to you is

         20  whether or not the RFPEI pertains to all seven or

         21  possibly eight of the MTS or you are going to limit

         22  it to three?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Every single

         24  one.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,
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          2  gentlemen.

          3                 Thank you very much, we appreciate

          4  your being here.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you. A

          6  pleasure being here, really.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just ask,

          8  we would ask that you would accept, we limited

          9  ourselves, to some other questions and to some other

         10  information we need from you, as usual your agency

         11  has always very amenable to doing that, and we would

         12  ask you to continue that. Are we continuing that

         13  understanding?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We certainly

         15  are.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         17  much. You did very well and we appreciate you being

         18  here.

         19                 Jeanette Gatson, Deputy Borough

         20  President of Brooklyn, the Office of Borough

         21  President Howard Golden.

         22                 Welcome. We look forward to your

         23  testimony.

         24                 MS. GATSON: Thank you.

         25                 Good morning, I am Jeanette Gatson,
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          2  the Deputy Borough President of Brooklyn and I am

          3  giving testimony this afternoon on behalf of the

          4  President of the Borough of Brooklyn, the honorable

          5  Howard Golden.

          6                 I want to thank Chairman Michels and

          7  the Committee for holding this important hearing to

          8  gather information as to the proper role of the

          9  City's marine transfer stations in closing the

         10  City's last landfill.

         11                 Let me just first say that in regards

         12  to requests for expression of interest that I am

         13  just hearing about today, I am pleased that the

         14  Department is willing to issue an RFEI; however, I

         15  believe that an RFP would be more appropriate if we

         16  are serious about closing the landfill. Reasonable

         17  proposals should go directly into contract

         18  negotiations.

         19                 From the outset, as expressed in the

         20  Department of Sanitation's long-term waste export

         21  requests for proposals, the City Administration

         22  rejected altering the operations of the City's

         23  marine transfer stations, nearly three years after

         24  the State Legislature required the closure of the

         25  Freshkills landfill. The City Administration has
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          2  just begun making an assessment of the proper role

          3  of the MTS as a result of significant pressure

          4  brought by elected officials, community

          5  organizations and the Department of Environmental

          6  Conservation.

          7                 It is my hope that the City

          8  Administration will begin to understand that

          9  dialogue and compromise will ensure that the

         10  Freshkills landfill will close on schedule and in a

         11  sustainable manner. The broad consensus in Brooklyn

         12  cannot be clearer. The reuse, retrofit or conversion

         13  of its MTS will be supported. The plan to support

         14  garbage through private transfer stations in

         15  overburdened communities or to build huge waste

         16  export facilities on Brooklyn's waterfront, will be

         17  opposed vigorously and without exception.

         18                 After years of working to revitalize

         19  the vibrant communities along Brooklyn's waterfront,

         20  we understand all too well what is at stake.

         21                 In the most recent example, an

         22  entertainment studio came to Borough Hall to discuss

         23  its plans to build four film and television

         24  production studios in Red Hook, Brooklyn. The

         25  entertainment company is prepared to make a
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          2  multi-million dollar investment in Red Hook, adding

          3  hundreds of jobs and nearly completing the

          4  revitalization of its waterfront.

          5                 The company will not, however, make

          6  this investment if the City builds a garbage

          7  facility at this location.

          8                 When the company reached out to the

          9  Economic Development Corporation, it was told to

         10  look elsewhere in the City, because the City planned

         11  to build a garbage facility in Erie Basin.

         12                 Fortunately, the entertainment

         13  company understands Brooklyn's commitment to

         14  protecting its waterfront from being sacrificed for

         15  garbage, and it is hopeful that reason will prevail.

         16                 Despite the City Administration's

         17  initial lack of support for this project, the

         18  company remains committed to developing its

         19  production studios in Red Hook.

         20                 Having provided just one example of

         21  the stark implications of the City Administration's

         22  reluctance to reuse the MTS's, I will address DOS'

         23  April 1999 report on the feasibility of retrofitting

         24  the MTS's. I believe that DOS' report is flawed in

         25  several respects. First the report spends most of
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          2  its time evaluating two private sector proposals,

          3  submitted in response to the City's long-term waste

          4  export RFP.

          5                 These two proposals met the RFP's

          6  condition that no changes in operation at the MTS's

          7  would be allowed. Certainly the RFP's narrow

          8  constraint resulted in weak proposals.

          9                 Instead of looking at these two

         10  private proposals, the consultant should have

         11  assessed how the MTS's could be more fully

         12  integrated into the City waste export program.

         13                 Further, the evaluation of these

         14  constrained proposals is limited by DOS' arbitrary

         15  commitment that there should be no changes in its

         16  collection operations, tipping bays, the size of the

         17  barges, the amount of waste placed in each barge,

         18  the location of tipping bays or the maximum number

         19  of trucks that can tip its garbage inside the

         20  facility.

         21                 It is time for DOS to understand that

         22  the complex and important task of closing its last

         23  landfill may require changes in how it operates.

         24                 Second, the report only evaluates two

         25  MTS reuse options. After rejecting the two private
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          2  sector proposals, the report immediately assumes

          3  that no other MTS reuse options exist. The report

          4  immediately moves to evaluate the conversion of the

          5  MTS's through using surrounding upland space

          6  controlled by the City of New York. A more

          7  thoughtful evaluation of the MTS's would have

          8  creatively assessed the range of options available

          9  for the reuse of the MTS's.

         10                 Third, the report's assessment of

         11  using City-owned property surrounding the MTS fails

         12  to look again creatively at what could be reasonably

         13  accomplished.

         14                 For example, there seems to be no

         15  basis for the report to conclude that the Green

         16  point MTS's operations could not be modified to

         17  effectively manage waste so that loose garbage was

         18  not directly exposed to the environment.

         19                 The Greenpoint MTS is surrounded by

         20  3.5 acres of underutilized City-owned parking lots,

         21  and an abandoned incinerator.

         22                 Certainly, once the 1,000 tons per

         23  day of Queens waste that comes to this facility is

         24  sent to a facility in Queens, as has been committed

         25  by the Administration, the Greenpoint MTS could be
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          2  easily converted to avoid exposing loose garbage to

          3  the environment.

          4                 Fourth, the report fails to

          5  distinguish between MTS's and reuse or conversion

          6  options, based on the amount of waste processed at

          7  different MTS's.

          8                 For example, the Southwest Brooklyn

          9  East 91st Street and West 59th Street MTS's received

         10  relatively small amounts of waste as compared to the

         11  other MTS's. From 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., the

         12  Southwest Brooklyn MTS will receive on average 60

         13  collection trucks or 7.5 trucks per hour. Even with

         14  a significant peaking factor, it is hard to imagine

         15  how DOS could argue that any changes in this MTS's

         16  operations will result in significant problems.

         17                 Finally, the report fails to assess

         18  the implication of reusing some of the MTS's. If

         19  some MTS's can be retrofitted, how does that effect

         20  the need to build large waste export facilities?

         21                 Clearly, there are MTS reuse,

         22  retrofit or conversion options that have not been

         23  evaluated. It is often difficult for an agency

         24  engaged in significant and complex infrastructure

         25  changes to assess fully its options and respond to
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          2  community concerns.

          3                 In the past the City and state and

          4  provided community engineers on complex

          5  infrastructure projects to ensure that local

          6  communities were able to participate in the

          7  decision-making process and present their concerns

          8  properly to the agencies.

          9                 In Brooklyn, independent engineers

         10  have been provided for the reconstruction of the

         11  Williamsburg Bridge, the reconstruction and upgrade

         12  of the Newtown Creek, Sewerage Treatment Plan, and

         13  the reconstruction of the Brooklyn/Queens

         14  Expressway.

         15                 I believe that community-based

         16  engineering services should be provided to ensure

         17  that the reuse, retrofit and/or conversion of the

         18  MTS system is fully evaluated and that all parties

         19  are negotiating from a position of shared knowledge,

         20  so that delays in determining how to move forward

         21  can be avoided.

         22                 The success of this strategy is well

         23  documented. It is my hope that the City Council can

         24  work with the Mayor to provide the resources

         25  necessary to engage a community engineer.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            149

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 In closing, I would like to bring to

          3  the Committee's attention, that the Borough has

          4  written the Mayor and invoked Section 6.2 of the

          5  criteria for the siting of City facilities,

          6  developed pursuant to Section 203 of the New York

          7  City Charter, which requires the Mayor to initiate a

          8  consensus building process for the siting of City

          9  facilities. It is the Borough President's hope that

         10  the Mayor will act expeditiously on his request so

         11  that we can move quickly to determine Brooklyn's

         12  role in closing the Freshkills landfill.

         13                 The Borough President has also

         14  recommended that the Mayor establish this consensus

         15  building process in every borough. The people of

         16  Staten Island have waited too long for the closure

         17  of the landfill to delay negotiations on siting

         18  decisions any longer.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity of

         20  expression.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you, Ms.

         22  Gatson, we appreciate it.

         23                 Will you identify your associate for

         24  the record.

         25                 MS. GATSON: This is my expert.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

          3  that. He is one of our experts also.

          4                 MR. BOYD: Chris Boyd.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          6  much for being here, and my best regards to the

          7  Borough President.

          8                 MS. GATSON: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For a very well

         10  thought out and well presented plan.

         11                 MS. GATSON: Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Eric Goldstein,

         13  from the National Resources Defense Council.

         14                 Welcome.

         15                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you. Good

         16  afternoon, Mr. Chairman. My name is Eric Goldstein

         17  and I am an attorney with the Natural Resources

         18  Defense Council. We appreciate the opportunity to be

         19  here this afternoon and we appreciate the work that

         20  you and the other members of the Committee have done

         21  in moving this very important solid waste issue to

         22  the forefront of debate.

         23                 In general NRDC supports the maximum

         24  feasible use of the marine transfer stations or

         25  locations, and we do so because of our conviction
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          2  that the Freshkills landfill should close in a

          3  timely fashion and in a way that is environmentally

          4  sound and in a way that distributes the burdens of

          5  trash export facilities fairly, as opposed to

          6  saddling just one or several neighborhoods with huge

          7  new trash-handling facilities.

          8                 Because of the time we make four

          9  brief preliminary observations in view of the new

         10  details that have been discussed today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As usual, we

         12  look forward to them.

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: First, we are

         14  encouraged to hear DOS Commissioner Farrell say he

         15  is interested in new thinking on this issue, he has

         16  a tough job and we wish him well.

         17                 We do believe, however, that the

         18  business community needs clear signals on how to

         19  proceed on this issue and clear signals that the

         20  retrofit alternative is not a fall-back position,

         21  and so we share your statements, those of Councilman

         22  Rodriguez and Councilman DiBrienza on this issue and

         23  the need to be very clear about moving forward with

         24  retrofit, not as an after thought but as the main

         25  alternative.
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          2                 Second, Commissioner Farrell

          3  indicated that he didn't believe that so far DOS has

          4  a complete MTS retrofit blueprint, and that is

          5  understandable. The reason is that DOS has waited

          6  until now before even studying this issue. Over the

          7  years the Department of Sanitation has failed to

          8  give the retrofit issue a fair shake.

          9                 The RFPs, as you have discussed

         10  previously, that have been issued in the past,

         11  precisely excluded the possibility of MTS retrofit.

         12  Previous DOS Commissioners have long testified that

         13  MTS retrofit was infeasible even before in-depth

         14  review of the issue and even the latest report that

         15  was distributed several days ago by HDR consulting,

         16  even this report provides only a cursory analysis of

         17  the issue.

         18                 It talks about a lack of space and

         19  capacity at these facilities, but does it explore

         20  all of the options available if we are expanding the

         21  size of the facility onto adjacent land parcels,

         22  especially at Greenpoint and Hamilton Avenue where

         23  there are abandoned incinerators? No.

         24                 Does it examine the possibilities for

         25  building a second story onto MTS's to make available
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          2  more space for tipping floors? No.

          3                 Does it consider the use of the Con

          4  Edison Pier or other options at 59th Street which is

          5  such a crucial facility for environmental equity

          6  purposes and because Manhattan has such a

          7  significant portion of the waste stream? No.

          8                 Does it explore savings if peak load

          9  is spread out into evening hours, when there is less

         10  traffic and trucks will presumably be able to

         11  collect trash and get to these facilities more

         12  quickly? No.

         13                 When a consultant wants to come up

         14  with a solution to a report, to a problem, it

         15  produces a report that has all kinds of detailed

         16  analysis, that has beautiful schematics, that has

         17  pictures of streams and people strolling next to the

         18  facilities, and we have all seen those kinds of

         19  reports. When a consultant wants to give short

         20  shrift to an issue, it comes up with a report like

         21  this and the tone of this report suggests that it

         22  was written to document longstanding DOS position

         23  against retrofits. It may be a step forward, but

         24  much more analysis is needed.

         25                 Third, the Sanitation Department has
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          2  continued to make the problem of retrofit seem

          3  insurmountable by overestimating the needs for

          4  capacity and overlooking the role of recycling and

          5  waste reduction.

          6                 In recent documents like the

          7  long-term plan released by DOS in December 1998, and

          8  even in this document, the Department assumes that

          9  closure of Freshkills will necessitate development

         10  of up to 13,000 tons per day of trash transport

         11  capacity. But if the City meets its legally mandated

         12  recycling requirements by July 2001 of 4,250 tons

         13  per day, and assuming for the moment the City is now

         14  recycling about 2000 tons per day as defined by

         15  Local Law 19, and sending roughly 12,000 tons per

         16  day to Freshkills, the needed capacity for these

         17  transfer operations would be under 10,000 tons per

         18  day.

         19                 Waste reduction and composting

         20  expansion could bring these numbers down further. So

         21  that previous Department of Sanitation forecasts of

         22  capacity problems, while not insignificant, have

         23  certainly been overblown.

         24                 Finally, the need for independent and

         25  more in-depth review of the MTS retrofit issue could
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          2  not be more clear. There is a need for an RFP for

          3  these retrofits, it ought to come sooner, rather

          4  than later. We urge the City Council to undertake

          5  its own independent analysis of the possibility of

          6  retrofit, something we understand the Council has

          7  been considering, and as you stated at the beginning

          8  of this hearing, Chairman Michels, the public needs

          9  to have confidence that the review and analysis of

         10  the MTA retrofit issue is full, fair and gives MTA

         11  retrofits option a genuine chance to work.

         12                 There are a few solid waste

         13  objectives that are more important for this City in

         14  1999 and we urge you to continue to keep up the

         15  pressure on DOS, we think it is already having an

         16  impact, but as others have noted, the clock is

         17  ticking.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         20  much. As usual, your comments are well taken and we

         21  appreciate them.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Bradley Cohen.

         25                 MR. COHEN: Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, Bradley.

          3  Thank you very much for coming.

          4                 Unfortunately, I should tell people

          5  there is going to be a forum here at 4:00, so that

          6  we are going to be moving into the next room. I hope

          7  and I pray there will be enough room for everybody,

          8  all of us sitting here. But at this particular

          9  point, you are going to be the last witness sitting

         10  in the hallowed chair.

         11                 MR. COHEN: I am quite honored.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Bradley,

         13  continue, please.

         14                 MR. COHEN: Thank you.

         15                 I want to thank you, Chairman, and

         16  Council members, for the opportunity to testify. My

         17  name is Bradley Cohen, recently elected Co-chair of

         18  the Citywide Recycling Advisory Board, with Steve

         19  Hammer, who is from the Bronx. I am from Manhattan.

         20  You might have seen me here in that capacity with

         21  the Manhattan SWAB.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I have. And

         23  we eagerly await your comments.

         24                 MR. COHEN: Okay, well thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 I first want to reiterate some major

          3  points not directly related to the MTS retrofit or

          4  rebuilding, I should say, that we have come and

          5  testified for in the past, related to the scoping

          6  document in particular. I want to reiterate actually

          7  what Eric Goldstein of NRDC said as one of his major

          8  points that the DOS should really reevaluate the

          9  efficacy of waste prevention and recycling as an

         10  integral part of the DOS plan, and not just focus on

         11  a capacity that they have already and try to fit

         12  that capacity into an existing or an expanded

         13  transfer and disposal system that they will be

         14  creating.

         15                 I think we should aggressively be

         16  addressing the reduction of these tonnages, as

         17  pointed out specifically as, you know, targeting

         18  larger volumes to be diverted from the waste stream

         19  or reduced from the waste stream, either through the

         20  investigation of food waste, be it disposal systems,

         21  garbage disposal systems, which obviously entail

         22  DEP, the Department of Buildings even, and

         23  investigation from them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I should report

         25  to you that since we passed that law allowing for
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          2  disposal, there has been very few of them that have

          3  actually been permitted. There may be a lot going in

          4  there that we don't know about.

          5                 MR. COHEN: I think there were a lot

          6  more that went in even before the law, but that is

          7  also another issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't think

          9  that is going to be really a meaningful impact.

         10  Except maybe in ten years, 15 years down the road.

         11  But I think we really should investigate public

         12  space recycling, really push with the Housing

         13  Authority, with the Transit Authority, in

         14  particular, and with the Board of Ed, they are way

         15  behind with the levels they should be at, et cetera,

         16  et cetera.

         17                 Also, you know, I think we should

         18  focus on enforcement. I think that New York City

         19  residents at this point have gotten the message and

         20  if they are not participating, they should be

         21  properly summoned and we are not going to defend the

         22  actions of New York City residents who don't comply,

         23  as well.

         24                 Let me dovetail into my second point

         25  that we have been reiterating, and that is
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          2  enforcement of commercial recycling regulations. We

          3  see that the two waste streams really cannot be

          4  separated out, and we really have to look at the

          5  problem as a whole, in particular because the

          6  communities that are burdened possibly with these

          7  future facilities are the communities in many cases

          8  that have been burdened with the land-based transfer

          9  stations of commercial waste stream.

         10                 It would be I think putting blinders

         11  on to treat both waste streams mutually exclusively

         12  without looking at them as a whole.

         13                 Obviously, you know, we would like to

         14  see an inclusion of the commercial waste stream in

         15  either the MTS retrofit system or in the public

         16  trash EBUF situation, whatever the case may be,

         17  especially because this would take the burden in

         18  particular off of these areas that I have mentioned

         19  in the past.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That was one of

         21  the reasons I mentioned that, I don't know if you

         22  were here when I was discussing that.

         23                 MR. COHEN: Yes. I mean, you know,

         24  being from Manhattan I think there is a strict

         25  consideration as to Manhattan being the generator of
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          2  50 percent of the City's Commercial waste. I find it

          3  difficult even with my most expanded innovative

          4  ideas to see that all of Manhattan's commercial

          5  trash being addressed in Manhattan facilities. We

          6  have always promoted it the CRAB fair share, but,

          7  you know, it is very difficult for us to say borough

          8  self-sufficiency, especially on the commercial side

          9  without some further investigation of this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, let us not

         11  forget that the people who are creating that

         12  commercial trash in Manhattan are people for the

         13  most part, for a great part, who live in the other

         14  boroughs.

         15                 MR. COHEN: No doubt about it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let's be fair

         17  about it.

         18                 MR. COHEN: Yes, but they are not

         19  going to be taking it home on the subways.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, they are not

         21  going to be taking it home. They are leaving it in

         22  Manhattan, but since they are the creators of it,

         23  they bear some responsibility for it.

         24                 MR. COHEN: Yes.

         25                 One of the things that we think can
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          2  be done, and maybe the time is right now, is before

          3  1988 obviously when the tip fees for commercial

          4  waste at the MTS's were increased significantly,

          5  that pretty much stopped the dumping of commercial

          6  waste at these facilities.

          7                 There is some historical information

          8  that the DOS may have available. We would recommend

          9  that the Council maybe at this point request some of

         10  this commercial tonnage figures at the MTS system

         11  prior to 1988 -- well, actually much prior to 1988,

         12  as well, so we can really more fully investigate,

         13  you know, if the MTS's either as is or as retrofit,

         14  how they can handle possibly the commercial waste

         15  stream.

         16                 Anyway, the MTS system in general, I

         17  agree with Commissioner Farrell in the sense that

         18  for 40 years it has gone on without major upgrade,

         19  and has been pretty much, you know, done yeoman's

         20  work as far as the handling of New York City's

         21  waste.

         22                 But I think the current surplus in

         23  City budget, as well as economic climate we are in,

         24  does allow us to reconsider the capital investment

         25  without mortgaging the future of operational budget,
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          2  as far as the DOS is concerned. I think that the

          3  time for investment is now in the MTS rebuilding.

          4  Retrofitting I think is a strange word because we

          5  are really doing -- just taking it down to pretty

          6  much its pilings and going from there.

          7                 Also, as far as the pilings are

          8  concerned, many of these, because of the marine

          9  bores making a comeback into the Hudson, into the

         10  East River, et cetera. I think if they don't get

         11  rebuilt they may have to have extensive renovation

         12  done to the piling systems anyway because they are

         13  being deteriorated. So that is a minor point --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And watch out

         15  for the zebra mussels.

         16                 MR. COHEN: So true. No doubt. I don't

         17  want to play favorites with marine bores.

         18                 Anyway, I would hope that the DOS is

         19  not just doing this RFEI, or as some people have

         20  recommended an RFP, to appease the detractors of the

         21  final plan as it has come to this --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Your hopes are

         23  joined in by a huge number of people sitting behind

         24  this table.

         25                 MR. COHEN: Yes. I mean, you know, we
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          2  don't need the lip service. It is really just going

          3  to get bogged down in lawsuits, in communities.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's a given. We

          5  understand that, believe me.

          6                 MR. COHEN: Okay. And I just wanted to

          7  make that clear.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You made it very

          9  clear. You made it abundantly clear.

         10                 MR. COHEN: Yes.

         11                 Also, with the pro-renovating of the

         12  MTS's, it is obviously, just from a social

         13  behavioral point, as well as a political standpoint,

         14  it is much less distasteful to expand or improve an

         15  existing MTS that has been used for various years,

         16  versus creating of a new facility.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Correct.

         18                 MR. COHEN: The CRAB has recommended

         19  some sites throughout the City which we thought were

         20  appropriate for this type of activity above and

         21  beyond what was listed in the scoping document, but

         22  we do think that obviously the expansion of an MTS,

         23  also if you create a more state-of-the-art facility

         24  at that site, is a lot more acceptable to a lot of

         25  communities and I think you have seen that here
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          2  today, as well as in the past.

          3                 I want to keep it short. We

          4  understand the problems with down time during the

          5  rebuilding. Obviously I think what the DOS has to

          6  plan is to stagger the creation of some of the new

          7  MTS's, or rebuilding of some of the MTS's. We think

          8  that 59th Street and 135th Street can be retrofit in

          9  Manhattan, unlike the Department which does not,

         10  obviously you do not rebuild both of them at the

         11  same time. And we will accept, if we see an

         12  appropriate response by the DOS, the interim plans

         13  which we had problems with, if we see an MTS being

         14  retrofit, it makes it more palatable, that interim

         15  plan, if you see action going forward towards the

         16  final. But if the interim plan has no balance, as

         17  far what its future is, you know, future final plan

         18  that has relevancy towards environmentally sound and

         19  economically feasible, then we can't go along with

         20  it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         22                 MR. COHEN: And basically there are

         23  some individual sites I would like to talk about,

         24  but one particular situation, the throughput

         25  assumptions that the Commissioner, as well as Deputy
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          2  Commissioner Carpinello, discussed, we think are a

          3  little bit off. You know, they talk about that they

          4  need 300 tons per hour, there are MTS's right now

          5  that are not operating at 300 tons per hour, and 300

          6  tons per day, so I think there is a little bit of a

          7  aschewed view that they have been given either

          8  through their --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These criticisms

         10  are well put, and I know you don't have a statement

         11  with you, maybe you can give us some notes on this,

         12  something we should be looking at?

         13                 MR. COHEN: I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We would

         15  appreciate it.

         16                 MR. COHEN: I will put this in

         17  writing, as I am testifying at the last minute.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is always

         19  better because we like to have it, and of course

         20  anything we get from you we really put under a

         21  microscope.

         22                 MR. COHEN: Well, Steve Hammer twisted

         23  his ankle the other day, which is why I am here as

         24  the other co-chair so --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please tell him
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          2  I hope he feels better.

          3                 MR. COHEN: I will, okay. Thank you

          4  for this opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Folks, we are

          6  going to be adjourning to the other room. We will

          7  take a short recess and then we will move to the

          8  other room.

          9                 (Recess taken.)

         10                 MS. DeLaUz: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11  My name is Michelle DeLaUz, and I work with

         12  Congresswoman Nydia Velazquez, who I think many

         13  people know represents the 12th Congressional

         14  District, which spans many communities, but most

         15  important to this discussion the waterfront

         16  communities from Greenpoint, Williamsburg, all the

         17  way to Sunset Park. And I would like to preface my

         18  comments with the fact that the Congresswoman

         19  strongly believes that Freshkills should be closed

         20  on time, and that we are here today because DOS'

         21  actions and inactions have led us to this point.

         22                 Council Member Rodriguez stole my

         23  quote, but I was going to say something along the

         24  lines of I hope that DOS can understand the irony in

         25  their comment about not sending their waste to any
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          2  community that doesn't want it, and that obviously

          3  only seems to apply to out-of-state communities and

          4  not to communities here in New York City. It seems

          5  to me that perhaps we should be pursuing a host

          6  community agreement within the borders of the five

          7  boroughs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is good that

          9  you said that. There is a colleague of Congresswoman

         10  Velazquez named Congressman Charles Reingall who has

         11  said that everything has been said but not everybody

         12  has said it, so you have already said it again.

         13                 MS. DeLaUz: I appreciate that.

         14                 I just want to reiterate a few things

         15  that Council Member Rodriguez, Fisher and DiBrienza

         16  pointed out, in terms of the need to issue an RFP on

         17  the MTS's rather than an RFEI, to ensure the

         18  timeliness of the request, and questions properly

         19  the quantity and the quality of the responses are

         20  sure to improve. The cost isn't just the one they

         21  are putting on the table, but there are many hidden

         22  costs that need to be factored in as well.

         23                 Congresswoman strongly believes that

         24  no contracts should be let on the EBUFs or in the

         25  long-term plan before the proposals on the seven
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          2  MTS's are reviewed by the communities and by the

          3  Council.

          4                 The most equitable plan and the plan

          5  that has the least number of health and economic

          6  impacts on the communities should be rigorously

          7  pursued and finally adopted, and no plan should be

          8  pursued grudingly.

          9                 I think that what we have seen today

         10  in the earlier testimony is the reluctance, and we

         11  have seen it for year after year after year of DOS

         12  to really pursue these proposals in a fair and

         13  timely way.

         14                 In order for this to happen, DOS'

         15  orientation needs to change, retrofitting needs to

         16  be their primary pursuit, not their secondary

         17  pursuit, as was drawn out from them once they

         18  testified.

         19                 So, that is all I have. It is not

         20  formal, but --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is plenty.

         22                 MS. DeLaUz: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have

         24  practically summarized our whole hearing, which is

         25  very well done. Thank you.
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          2                 MS. DeLaUz: Well, thank you for

          3  keeping this issue on the front burner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are going to

          5  keep it on the front, back and side burners.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 The next witness is Lou Sones, from

          8  Red Hook GAGS. Mr. Sones, welcome again. You are not

          9  a stranger to this hearing.

         10                 MR. SONES: My name is Lou Sones and I

         11  am from Red Hook, and at another hearing

         12  Commissioner Michels said --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Councilman

         14  Michels. I am not a commissioner.

         15                 MR. SONES: That's right.

         16                 Councilman Michels said that --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Nor do I wish to

         18  be one.

         19                 MR. SONES: -- Everybody is saying the

         20  same thing, we are just saying it in a different

         21  way, and I guess that is the way it goes, but I am

         22  going to say some of the same things but in a little

         23  different way.

         24                 If you have ever remodeled a house,

         25  you bring your contractor in and the contractors
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          2  always say a couple of things. They say, you know,

          3  they say, you know, you say I want to put this here,

          4  I want to put that there, and they say anything is

          5  possible. We can do anything you want. I think the

          6  very goal and the primary method if transporting our

          7  waste at DOS is taking the quick and dirty way, the

          8  low road to the communities: So what if they ruin a

          9  couple of neighborhoods, so what if they violate all

         10  principles of fair share and Local Law 40, so what

         11  if they completely go against the Mayor's promise of

         12  every borough defending its own, so what if they

         13  give and lock in for 20 or 30 years of this contract

         14  to a company that has a criminal record and has paid

         15  almost $300 million in environmental fines over the

         16  past ten years, so what if they do that.

         17                 In our neighborhood we have a

         18  facility owned by this company and they were in

         19  violation every hour that they were open and when in

         20  front of this Committee Commissioner Carpinello was

         21  asked about that facility he said that is not ours.

         22                 Well, this 12,000 ton a day EBUF will

         23  not be theirs either. So there will be less

         24  regulation of this facility even than there is now.

         25  This is totally unacceptable.
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          2                 We request for community engineers to

          3  be part of this process. So I just want to finish by

          4  saying that just like the contractors say, anything

          5  is possible, all you have to do is have the will to

          6  do it, and we can either do it the quick and dirty

          7  way or we can do it the right way.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Mr. James Florio. I was looking

         11  around for the ex-Governor of New Jersey, how do you

         12  like that?

         13                 MR. FLORIO: Unfortunately not.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, no, he is

         15  not in office, so fortunately yes.

         16                 MR. FLORIO: Thank you very much for

         17  having me today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are welcome.

         19                 MR. FLORIO: I had the distinct

         20  pleasure of sitting at the back of the room and

         21  listening to your illustrious --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You will have to

         23  sit closer to the microphone so we can get your

         24  magnificent voice on the mic and be recorded.

         25                 MR. FLORIO: As I said, I had the
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          2  opportunity to sit in the back of the room and

          3  listen to your illustrious Commissioner, along with

          4  his Deputy Commissioner, speak about how they will

          5  entertain a solution to the closing of Staten Island

          6  landfill.

          7                 I had presented a solution to them

          8  some time ago. Mr. Carpinello had said that no one

          9  had brought any new technology to him. On December

         10  the 15th of 1998, I presented a solution to Michael

         11  Carpinello.

         12                 He said conveyors don't work, you

         13  can't do this. I presented a solution that did not

         14  use the retrofitting of the MTS's, we could use the

         15  MTS's the way they were. Every solution that he

         16  brought to you requires significant amount of

         17  mechanical equipment and additional manpower and at

         18  cost to the City.

         19                 Bearing that in mind, we have a great

         20  background in shipping throughout the world, we are

         21  also an environmental agency where we have dealt

         22  with odor control, we have dealt with leachate

         23  containment halfway around the world, so we looked

         24  at a system that would fit within the parameters of

         25  what the City wanted.
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          2                 We currently are willing to offer the

          3  City a system that will close Staten Island on time,

          4  you do not have to retrofit any MTS's, we can use

          5  the current MTS's just the way they are, we can use

          6  the current loading systems the way they are, we

          7  will use a barge design that fits exactly to what

          8  the City is using now. There will be no change in

          9  the hourly tonnage rate, there will be no change in

         10  their system, there will be no displacement of jobs,

         11  you don't have to spend $110 million. Why does the

         12  City want to spend $110 million when they don't have

         13  to?

         14                 I heard the Commissioner say also

         15  that he will entertain any and all proposals that

         16  come to him. He said let people come to me. So, I

         17  did. I just walked out in front of him and I said,

         18  well, let's sit down and talk. Bring your best

         19  engineers, bring your entire staff, and I will show

         20  you how we can do this in less than 15 months.

         21                 We also have a landfill that is

         22  associated with us, our company, that (a) we have

         23  the blessings of the state, where it is going to, we

         24  can bring 10,000 tons a day, it will take us about

         25  19 to 24 months to get to that period, we have a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            174

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  private road leading to that landfill, there is no

          3  people around for 18 miles, so we don't have an

          4  environmental problem, and everything that we do has

          5  an odor control system, a true odor control system

          6  and you can check my credentials, I control odor

          7  around the world, and a lot more serious odor than

          8  municipal solid waste. We did the Love Canal and we

          9  did 55 miles of sewerage in Mexico. We have a

         10  leachate containment system with a separation

         11  system. We also have the cheaper system. So if your

         12  Commissioner really wanted to do this, he should

         13  have sat down with us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Florio, it

         15  sounds very good. It sounds like it is our dream

         16  come true. Could we see any of this?

         17                 MR. FLORIO: I have shown this to some

         18  of the people in the room.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, not to me.

         20                 MR. FLORIO: Well, if we can meet in

         21  closed chambers I would certainly show you. The

         22  system that we are using was used for 30 years in

         23  other industries, but the type of system, it is

         24  very, very simple to convert.

         25                 Two of the people that have been with
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          2  me ran these systems for quite some time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where?

          4                 MR. FLORIO: Throughout the United

          5  States. They were not used to use waste.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have

          7  specifics?

          8                 MR. FLORIO: And they are used all

          9  over the world.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They are used

         11  for what?

         12                 MR. FLORIO: They transport various

         13  things, agricultural goods, they have transported

         14  weapons --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would love to

         16  see whatever you have. You have no materials with

         17  you today, right?

         18                 MR. FLORIO: Pardon me?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have no

         20  materials with you today?

         21                 MR. FLORIO: Yes, we have materials

         22  with us today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you want to

         24  leave something with us and then we will set up an

         25  appointment.
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          2                 MR. FLORIO: What I would like to do

          3  is I will present them to you in Chambers or in

          4  private.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will arrange

          6  for you to come to my office.

          7                 MR. FLORIO: Okay, that's no problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But I would love

          9  to see whatever materials you have today so that I

         10  can look over it.

         11                 MR. FLORIO: Okay, that is not a

         12  problem.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you give

         14  them to my assistant Steve Simon? I would really

         15  appreciate it.

         16                 MR. FLORIO: Okay, no problem.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is a

         18  question from Mr. Rodriguez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: When you

         20  went to the Commissioner and you told him let's

         21  meet, what was his response?

         22                 MR. FLORIO: Give me a phone call. I

         23  said well let's set up an appointment now and he

         24  walked away.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You are

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            177

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  kidding? Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

          4  very much. I appreciate it.

          5                 MR. FLORIO: You are welcome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next witness

          7  is Matty Stanislaus.

          8                 MR. STANISLAUS: Hello.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Stanislaus,

         10  it is nice to see you again.

         11                 MR. STANISLAUS: Thank you. My name is

         12  Matty Stanislaus, let me give you a couple of my

         13  affiliations. I am the Director of Environmental

         14  Compliance at Environ Sciences Engineering, which is

         15  an environmental engineering and consulting firm. I

         16  am also the Chair of the Waste Transfer Station

         17  Working Group, which is a working group of the USEPA

         18  that has been conducting fact findings and has

         19  conducted fact findings in New York City and

         20  Washington, D.C., and issuing recommendations for a

         21  national approach to waste transfer stations siting

         22  and operation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         24                 MR. STANISLAUS: I should note that

         25  the Department of Sanitation has yet to answer any
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          2  of our questions, or did not attend the hearing that

          3  we requested them to attend.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, if there

          5  is any question that you have that you want an

          6  answer to that you want us to help you with, we will

          7  attempt to take those questions and adopt them for

          8  our own use and our own information and share the

          9  answers with you.

         10                 MR. STANISLAUS: Thank you.

         11                 I also work with the Organization of

         12  Waterfront Neighborhoods, in particular the

         13  communities that are impacted by the clustering of

         14  waste transfer stations in their community.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. You have

         16  been before us before and you have also recited your

         17  credentials, and I waive the reading of your

         18  credentials and I accept you as an expert.

         19                 MR. STANISLAUS: Thank you.

         20                 I guess let me first say that I think

         21  it is wonderful that the Department of Sanitation

         22  has seen the light to examine retrofitting of marine

         23  transfer terminals.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Rhetoric is not

         25  action.
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          2                 MR. STANISLAUS: Exactly.

          3                 But also, you should note that their

          4  seeing the light has been one and a half to two

          5  years of delay. So clearly the delay and the

          6  consideration of this falls squarely, and as the

          7  Council has stated, squarely on this Administration

          8  in terms of failing to look at all of the

          9  alternatives.

         10                 And I guess I don't have a prepared

         11  statement here today, but I will provide a critique

         12  of the Department of Sanitation's consultants'

         13  analysis.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you are

         15  doing it with enthusiasm.

         16                 MR. STANISLAUS: Okay.

         17                 But I want to point out a couple of

         18  what I believe to be limits and flaws in their

         19  analysis. And I guess first I want to point out some

         20  overarching problems that I see with the philosophy

         21  of the Department of Sanitation. And I refer to page

         22  24 in the first paragraph, and apparently the

         23  Department of Sanitation has a real aversion to the

         24  mechanization to any of their facilities, and it is

         25  a constant theme that in their responses to us that
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          2  they have thrown out.

          3                 In fact, let me just cite, in their

          4  view they would prefer a simple waste handling

          5  operation, as opposed to a mechanically complex

          6  system, set forth in the compaction and

          7  containerization of garbage.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They seem to

          9  have a great fear of Murphy's law. One in which we

         10  didn't pass and Mr. Rodriguez says he would like to

         11  omit.

         12                 MR. STANISLAUS: And let me point out

         13  two inconsistencies with that. One is, the EBUFs

         14  will in fact have mechanical components to it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Of course they

         16  will.

         17                 MR. STANISLAUS: The second is, the

         18  concept of containerization and compaction is not a

         19  new technology, it is very basic, is used around the

         20  world. So their aversion to containerization is

         21  simply, apparently to justify their failure to look

         22  at MTS to this point.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next point.

         24                 MR. STANISLAUS: Let me go through the

         25  limits of their analysis and I will point to page
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          2  12, and in page 12 they identify what they call

          3  ideal criteria.

          4                 Their first bullet is to maintain the

          5  existence of the waste transfer station capacity.

          6                 1) this is not considered the

          7  commercial waste stream at all. So, again, they are

          8  limited the consideration of the full waste stream

          9  in this City.

         10                 And contrary to earlier statements

         11  today, the MTS's have historically handled both the

         12  commercial and residential waste stream through

         13  those systems.

         14                 Secondly, by the failure to consider

         15  the combined waste stream, it in effect eliminates a

         16  consideration of the communities that are currently

         17  burdened by the commercial waste stream right now

         18  and the clustering of waste transfer facilities in

         19  Hunt's Point, in Red Hook and Greenpoint.

         20                 The failure to consider commercial

         21  waste stream is particularly important because the

         22  total volume that is currently handled by the

         23  commercial waste stream is twice that than is

         24  currently handled by Freshkills landfill today.

         25                 The second item, the second bullet
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          2  that they have used --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is a big

          4  distinction with a difference. Freshkills handles

          5  putrescible and mostly commercial is not

          6  putrescible.

          7                 MR. STANISLAUS: That's right.

          8  Exactly.

          9                 And DOS has acknowledged in the past,

         10  you can combine both those waste streams within the

         11  MTS, with different features within the MTS to

         12  handle the different kinds of waste to segregate

         13  those waste.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The problem has

         15  been the tipping fees.

         16                 MR. STANISLAUS: That's right. That's

         17  right. The second bullet that they have limited the

         18  analysis, they talk about the need for a permit from

         19  Army Corps, I mean that is just a regulatory

         20  process, that does not limit technical engineering

         21  feasibility of an MTS. So have already limited the

         22  potential options that could be considered among

         23  retrofit, reuse of MTS's.

         24                 In analyzing particularly the

         25  compaction option, they have concluded that they
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          2  could only use, and I cite to page 20, they could

          3  only use two compaction units at a facility. And

          4  that is based on a presumption that you need to have

          5  another two compaction units for redundancy.

          6                 In fact, the current process in this

          7  City is where there is emergencies at any MTS to

          8  divert waste to the other MTS's. So if the

          9  Department of Sanitation is proposing three or five

         10  of the marine transfer stations, they do not need

         11  the level of redundancy they are talking about, and

         12  they could in emergency situations divert it to the

         13  other marine transfer stations or other options.

         14                 The ultimate consequence of this is

         15  that there is probably double the capacity that

         16  could be handled in the MTS's than Department of

         17  Sanitation is currently stating.

         18                 The Department of Sanitation is

         19  stating it can only handle 150 tons, or in fact if

         20  you can use all four compaction units, you can

         21  double that to approximately 300 tons.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think a lot of

         23  this has to wait until we see what they are doing

         24  with the RFEI, and what comes up with an RFP.

         25                 MR. STANISLAUS: That's right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we are

          3  just speculating as to what they are going to be

          4  doing with the type of retrofitting, and thus serves

          5  no purpose, except to say that you have pointed out

          6  other areas of credibility, lack of credibility.

          7                 MR. STANISLAUS: Okay. And I would

          8  like to point to page 24, that main paragraph,

          9  essentially where they are talking about the tons

         10  for hour, and again, I believe through a greater

         11  reuse of compaction you can increase that

         12  significantly, maybe up to 300 tons.

         13                 But they have failed to look at some

         14  existing technologies that is used throughout the

         15  world. They have not looked at multi-level facility

         16  operation, and along with my submission of my

         17  comments, I will include documents pertaining to a

         18  Hong Kong facility, which is a tri-level facility

         19  which handles compaction and containerization.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. I think we

         21  have to bring you to a close, because there are a

         22  lot of other people here to testify.

         23                 MR. STANISLAUS: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have given a

         25  written submission, believe me, we will read it and
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          2  digest it and pass it on.

          3                 MR. STANISLAUS: Okay, I guess in

          4  closing, and I will hand in the written comments, I

          5  would suggest that what is necessary is a

          6  comprehensive RFP of the entire waste stream to take

          7  a look at, options to look at all seven of the

          8  MTS's. The private waste trade has told our work

          9  group off the record that the City has unduly

         10  limited the options that it could propose in its

         11  options, and their belief that the MTS's could be

         12  retrofit and reused for the entire waste stream.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         15  much. I appreciate it.

         16                 Eve Martinez. Thank you for coming,

         17  Eve. I appreciate your waiting. I hope you think

         18  this is as productive as we seem to think it is.

         19                 MR. MARTINEZ: Excuse me. I didn't

         20  hear what you said.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I hope you think

         22  that what has been going on, with waiting around a

         23  long time --

         24                 MR. MARTINEZ: Oh, definitely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We hope it is
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          2  not in vain, that perhaps you feel it is productive.

          3                 MR. MARTINEZ: No, it has definitely

          4  not been in vain. I am very happy to be here and I

          5  am very happy that the City Council and this

          6  Committee chose to offer another opportunity to

          7  discuss this and to put the heels or the feet of the

          8  Department of Sanitation closer to the fire.

          9                 I am testifying on behalf of the

         10  Brooklyn Solid Waste Advisory Board. My name is Eve

         11  Martinez, and since so much has been said about many

         12  things that I agree with completely and the Deputy

         13  Borough President's testimony on behalf of the

         14  Borough President covers a lot of those main topics.

         15                 I just wanted to discuss a little bit

         16  the marine transfer stations, and that I feel the

         17  Department of Sanitation is -- and the need to not

         18  even build the EBUF in Erie Basin at all.

         19                 The Hamilton Avenue marine transfer

         20  station, for instance, which the DOS has eliminated

         21  as capable of being retrofitted, I feel that the

         22  Department of Sanitation has to come back and talk

         23  to us more about why they don't feel that is the

         24  case.

         25                 Because the elected officials and the
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          2  residents feel that it can happen, and one thing I

          3  wanted to pass on to you about the Hamilton Avenue

          4  marine transfer station, the SWAB has learned that

          5  if the EBUF is built, the garbage trucks, the

          6  Department of Sanitation trucks that ordinarily come

          7  to the Hamilton Avenue transfer station will drive

          8  directly to Erie Basin and dump the garbage at the

          9  EBUF. And the residents of Red Hook have been

         10  promised many times that that EBUF was going to be

         11  barge only, and it also invites the question of what

         12  is going to happen to the Hamilton Avenue Marine

         13  Transfer Station if the trucks are going directly to

         14  the EBUF in Erie Basin.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The EBUF is

         16  right next to an MTS?

         17                 MS. MARTINEZ: Well, it is not right

         18  next to it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The question is

         20  whether we need both of them there --

         21                 MS. MARTINEZ: And especially in

         22  Brooklyn.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is why we

         24  insisted that when they do the retrofitting, the

         25  proposal, that includes all seven of the presently
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          2  existing retrofits, which would then include that

          3  one as well.

          4                 MS. MARTINEZ: Personally I feel that

          5  whatever marine transfer stations can be retrofitted

          6  or redesigned should be, I don't agree with this all

          7  or nothing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are certainly

          9  not saying all or nothing, but we believe

         10  practically all of them can have some degree of

         11  retrofitting that could be helpful.

         12                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes.

         13                 And relative to two other marine

         14  transfer stations in Brooklyn, in the scoping

         15  document, the Department of Sanitation listed the

         16  Greenpoint Marine Transfer Station and the Southwest

         17  Brooklyn Marine Transfer Station for

         18  containerization, which I thought was interesting.

         19  And in their presentation today they did not mention

         20  those two. And I am curious as to why they put it in

         21  a scoping document. Is there another kind of

         22  containerization that they may be suitable for?

         23                 The Greenpoint Marine Transfer

         24  Station has ample land to containerize, and it just

         25  seems to me, for Brooklyn, with Hamilton Avenue and
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          2  Greenpoint, if those two could be containerized, I

          3  don't see the need for the EBUF at all, and it

          4  creates enough capacity in Brooklyn to take care of

          5  Brooklyn's residential and commercial garbage put

          6  together, and which would be consistent with the

          7  Mayor's repeated remarks about each borough taking

          8  care of its own garbage.

          9                 And the only other thing that I would

         10  really want to say is that I would strongly stress

         11  that the commercial and the residential waste stream

         12  should be analyzed together, and if we are going to

         13  redesign these marine transfer stations, that the

         14  easing of the Greenpoint Wiliamsburg community by

         15  having some of the commercial garbage is coming from

         16  Manhattan would make an immeasurable difference, and

         17  it doesn't make sense to me to redesign our whole

         18  waste transfer system if you are not going to

         19  combine the commercial and the residential.

         20                 And I wish the Department of

         21  Sanitation were here because I really am impressed

         22  by all of the boroughs who are really working hard

         23  to find solutions in their own borough to this

         24  problem of closing the landfill. And I don't feel

         25  the Department of Sanitation acknowledges that. I
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          2  feel they think that we are all the enemy and we are

          3   -- each borough is doing its best to take its

          4  burden and deal with it, and I will close on that

          5  note.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is

          7  unfortunate. We are all trying to do this together.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. MARTINEZ: You're welcome. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Your testimony

         12  is well taken.

         13                 John McGettrick, Red Hook Civic

         14  Organization of Waterfront Neighborhoods.

         15                 Mr. McGettrick.

         16                 MR. McGETTRICK: Good afternoon. My

         17  name is John McGettrick. I am co-chair of the Red

         18  Hook Civic Association, and I am also here today

         19  speaking on behalf of the Organization of Waterfront

         20  Neighborhoods.

         21                 We work closely with barge and the

         22  Brooklyn Borough President's office as well.

         23                 OWN is a coalition of over 20

         24  community-based organizations representing

         25  low-income communities and communities of color in
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          2  all five boroughs. OWN's mission is to make sure the

          3  City develops an environmentally and economically

          4  sound solid waste management strategy, the impacts

          5  of which are equitably distributed throughout the

          6  City.

          7                 I will not reiterate here all of the

          8  problems associated with the operation of solid

          9  waste transfer stations in these communities.

         10                 Suffice it to say that the clustering

         11  of currently operating facilities in these

         12  communities has caused significant adverse impact on

         13  the residents' health and wellbeing. It is OWN's

         14  position that the New York City Department of

         15  Sanitation, behind closed doors, and without any

         16  meaningful review or public input continue to

         17  develop plans for the future of solid waste

         18  management in New York City that are poorly designed

         19  and economically unsound and which will result in

         20  even greater harm to the public health and the

         21  environment.

         22                 OWN has consistently argued for over

         23  two years that in order to achieve a solid waste

         24  management program for the City of New York upon the

         25  closure of the Freshkills landfill, a complete and
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          2  honest evaluation of the retrofit and use of the

          3  already equitably distributed marine transfer

          4  stations for the containerization and export of

          5  solid waste through direct export or rail must be

          6  performed by DOS, before any short-term or long-term

          7  plans for exporting waste can be developed.

          8                 Instead, DOS steadfastly refuses to

          9  consider the retrofitting of the MTS's,

         10  notwithstanding their RFEI that they are suggesting

         11  for today, and response to repeated requests, refuse

         12  to provide any specific engineering or economic

         13  evaluation to justify its position.

         14                 In response to a letter sent to DOS

         15  on behalf of several community and environmental

         16  organizations, DOS convened a meeting in late

         17  January, purportedly to discuss the issue of

         18  retrofitting the MTS's.

         19                 Again, DOS merely reiterated its

         20  previous position that the MTS's cannot be used in

         21  that fashion and refused once again to release any

         22  technical or economic studies.

         23                 As one of the major concerns raised

         24  by the Department of Sanitation, in fact the

         25  previous speaker alluded to it, in their opposition
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          2  to retrofitting, the MTS -- they consistently stated

          3  mechanical equipment, if used, might break down, and

          4  also ignored the redundancy issue and cast it in a

          5  way as to reduce total through process.

          6                 They also, the shallowness of that

          7  logic was further highlighted by the fact --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is so shallow

          9  and transparent you don't even have to comment on

         10  it.

         11                 MR. McGETTRICK: Fair enough. But at

         12  the main facility that they are proposing to put on

         13  the Brooklyn Waterfront, it will have all of the

         14  mechanical processes that they are suggesting was

         15  spread throughout the system would break down.

         16                 Beyond that, they intend to attempt

         17  to put all of this garbage through a water body that

         18  is far less than 200 feet in width, they totally

         19  ignore the possibility of grounding or accident or

         20  in fact hitting a submerged vessel that will in fact

         21  keep it inoperable for any period of time, it is

         22  attempting to put all of the waste of the City

         23  through the eye of the needle.

         24                 I will continue, as I said the

         25  comments are written, they can be submitted, the
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          2  only thing here today, while I see the earnestness

          3  of the Council in attempting to address and work on

          4  this issue, I am hesitant to suggest I am sort of

          5  encouraged by the position of the Department of

          6  Sanitation. It does not go far enough. This has to

          7  be an RFP. The Council has to withhold any action on

          8  the swamp until it in fact becomes an RFP.

          9                 The one thing that the Commissioner

         10  said that was extremely disconcerting, when he was

         11  asked as to how long this might delay the process,

         12  he said it would delay the process two months and

         13  one week.

         14                 In his earlier comments he said it

         15  would take one week to disseminate the RFEI, it

         16  would take two months to get it returned. I assume

         17  on the next day, without opening the envelopes, they

         18  will dispose of them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I hope not.

         20                 MR. McGETTRICK: I hope not either.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Our next speakers are Goodwill and

         24  Miller.

         25                 Welcome.
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          2                 MR. GOODWILL: My name is George

          3  Goodwill, I am the second vice chair of Community

          4  Board 9, but I am here representing Marida Dunne,

          5  the chair of the Board.

          6                 I have with me Joyce Miller, also a

          7  member of the Board who will pick up, I will give a

          8  brief statement on behalf of the Board.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For the purpose

         10  of openness I should say that you two are friends of

         11  mine, and that Board 9 is a board within my

         12  Councilmanic district and I am very proud of the

         13  fact that you are here.

         14                 MR. GOODWILL: Okay, thank you. We

         15  also are quite proud of the work you do for us,

         16  Councilman Michels.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         18                 MR. GOODWILL: You are there for us

         19  all the time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. GOODWILL: The residents of

         23  Manhattan Community Board No. 9 stand opposed to any

         24  enhancement and/or retrofitting of the existing

         25  City-owned marine transfer station in our area,
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          2  which is at the 135th Street and Riverside Drive.

          3                 Since we presently do not have any

          4  tangible information to change our position, we will

          5  await more education on the matter or any type of

          6  technical assistance in terms of someone who can

          7  come to our Board meetings and talk to us. We are

          8  not really up on all of the aspects of it, despite

          9  hearing all of the testimony today there is still a

         10  lot that we need to go back to educate the

         11  community.

         12                 I also would like to say that one of

         13  the issues that our community residents have brought

         14  to us repeatedly, is that we just feel that we have

         15  been saturated with a number of these very

         16  environmentally unhealthy facilities, and it brings

         17  to mind the sewage plant at 145th Street which we

         18  from time to time have worked out the various

         19  issues, but what in effect this retrofitting will do

         20  for a facility only ten blocks away, we certainly

         21  stand ready to get all of the information possible.

         22                 And finally, I am saying that we

         23  stand opposed to it because of what we perceive

         24  right now as what it will do to the health of our

         25  community residents, what it may affect, our natural
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          2  resources, mainly our water, trees, et cetera, and I

          3  will turn it over to Ms. Miller who will expound on

          4  it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MS. MILLER: Well, I was already

          7  introduced, my name is Joyce Miller, I chair the

          8  Health, Human Services and the Environmental

          9  Committee, I should say co-chair.

         10                 I reviewed the proposed plan, it was

         11  dated I think '96, so I may not be quite up to date

         12  on what I understood from the material. I am here to

         13  make comments on the New York City Department of

         14  Sanitation Comprehensive Solid Waste Management

         15  Plan, retrofitting the existing City-owned marine

         16  transfer station located on the Hudson River 135th

         17  Street.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         19                 MS. MILLER: The plan calls for this

         20  existing marine transfer station to be retrofitted

         21  and expanded to accommodate transfer and unloading

         22  of waste from the City collection trucks to barges

         23  at the marine transfer station.

         24                 The waste will then be transferred to

         25  private barges for its ultimate disposal. Won't the
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          2  transfer of hazardous waste create a problem? It's a

          3  question because we know that we do have an

          4  environmental problem because of the water pollution

          5  plant and --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are not

          7  talking about hazardous waste.

          8                 MS. MILLER: Oh, yes, hazardous waste

          9  was mentioned there. I have that material.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Hazardous waste

         11  is not to be used in these MTS's. Hazardous waste

         12  gets a special treatment.

         13                 MS. MILLER: Let me just read what I

         14  copied.

         15                 The Comprehensive Solid Waste

         16  Management -- oh, I see what you are saying, okay.

         17  All right, let me take that out.

         18                 However, as I get down further, you

         19  will see the point I was trying to make. It states

         20  that it will address all sectors of solid waste

         21  generation, including residential, institutional and

         22  commercial, as well as sludge, medical waste, I

         23  think that is where I err --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Hazardous waste

         25  will not be in this facility.
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          2                 MS. MILLER: Right, okay. Medical

          3  waste was in that brochure, because I underlined it.

          4  But it is a small draft of their plan dated 1996.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the Dark

          6  Ages.

          7                 MS. MILLER: Pardon me?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the Dark

          9  Ages.

         10                 MS. MILLER: Okay, it is a long time

         11  ago, but I had to begin somewhere, so I started

         12  reading that for information.

         13                 Also, harbor debris, dredge spoils,

         14  construction and demolition waste; okay, now, we

         15  have a high incidence of asthma, which you have

         16  helped us to address even in front of the St. Luke's

         17  meeting we had, and there --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. And we

         19  also know that comes from those bus depots that are

         20  there using diesel fuel.

         21                 MS. MILLER: Right. And there is an

         22  improvement --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right, you don't

         24  want to add insult to injury.

         25                 MS. MILLER: Right, but I wanted to
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          2  bring that in.

          3                 Okay, the next thing I am talking

          4  about here is the dumping, the oversaturation issue

          5  that we face which you are aware of with the high

          6  incidence of patients, you know, mental ill patients

          7  being put into the community --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have had

          9  incidences when they were fixing up the 57th Street

         10  facility --

         11                 MS. MILLER: I know I am mixing apples

         12  and oranges, but I just want to make a point that

         13  services that are not wanted in other communities,

         14  somehow they seem to push it on us and we feel that

         15  we are oversaturated and I just want to use that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We use the

         17  expression "environmental racism?

         18                 MS. MILLER: Okay.

         19                 Okay, let me get to the most

         20  important part now.

         21                 We are currently making plans to

         22  develop our waterfront. That is the point, because

         23  you have covered the environmental piece very well,

         24  but you didn't talk about the plans. We have had

         25  several meetings, we had one at Columbia University
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          2  where you were there with us, and also at City

          3  College in the plans to develop the waterfront in

          4  conjunction with what is taking place in Lower

          5  Manhattan.

          6                 We have been working with the

          7  empowerment zone on economic development in the

          8  community. And my question is, will it make sense to

          9  improve our economic base, develop our waterfront,

         10  work on improving the quality of life in the area,

         11  and then on the other hand, join with the City to

         12  have the area prepare for the trucks which will be

         13  packed with solid waste from most of the

         14  metropolitan area, to line up to discharge their

         15  cargo in the midst of our development.

         16                 I think that this is ridiculous if we

         17  don't look at what our plans are for the future

         18  development in the community.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just say,

         20  the idea here is not to increase the truck traffic

         21  over than where it is now.

         22                 The only thing is that all of the

         23  waste that goes to the 135th Street plant presently

         24  goes to Freshkills, the idea was to retrofit it so

         25  it no longer has to go to Freshkills but it goes
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          2  some place else, which is what we are hoping for,

          3  but not to increase the traffic.

          4                 MS. MILLER: But the trucks will not

          5  be unloading their cargo to the barges.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They will be

          7  unloading it the same way they unload it now, the

          8  only difference would be where the barge would go.

          9  That's the plan. It won't go to Freshkills, it will

         10  go to another facility.

         11                 MS. MILLER: Okay, so you won't have

         12  the trucks there?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You will have

         14  trucks there, but the same trucks you have now. We

         15  have got to bring our waste some place.

         16                 MS. MILLER: Okay, because that was

         17  one of my concerns.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The

         19  retrofitting, if it goes through, will not increase

         20  the traffic.

         21                 MS. MILLER: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It just changes

         23  the destination and gives relief to the people of

         24  Staten Island, which we are hoping to give them.

         25                 MS. MILLER: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Without

          3  envisaging any problems on us, and we would be

          4  against increasing the capacity there.

          5                 MS. MILLER: So because of the

          6  retrofitting and the upgrading of that facility, it

          7  means that we may not have as many trucks. It won't

          8  increase?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No.

         10                 MS. MILLER: Okay. All right, so then

         11  my last statement is that we oppose the retrofitting

         12  because I didn't know that the retrofitting would

         13  reduce it, and the expansion of the marine transfer

         14  station at 135th and Seventh, and that's it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MR. GOODWILL: I just wanted to add

         18  that we will submit a report in writing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please do.

         20                 MR. GOODWILL: And I would also like

         21  to add that one of the things that Board 9 has

         22  embarked on, we have, in conjunction with St.

         23  Luke's, started a study to see how these

         24  environmental deficient places affect our health,

         25  particularly with asthma and high incidence of
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          2  cancer. So, a study is on the way with St. Luke's,

          3  we have survey forms, and there is definitely -- we

          4  have established there is a linkage. So, whatever

          5  data we have done, and the entire community board,

          6  we will submit it to you in writing.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          9  much. I appreciate it.

         10                 MS. MILLER: I will say the same,

         11  thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Julia

         13  Willebrand. She is gone.

         14                 Neil Cohen.

         15                 Mr. Cohen. You realize you have the

         16  same name as the head of the Department of Health.

         17  The only difference is he is called Dr. Neal Cohen.

         18                 MR. COHEN: He doesn't spell it the

         19  right way, it is N-e-a-l.

         20                 Good afternoon. I want to thank you

         21  for holding these hearings and for the opportunity

         22  to speak today. My name is Neil Cohen, I am a

         23  registered architect and I am a founding member and

         24  Board member of BRAGS and BARGE.

         25                 The City is basing its study on two
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          2  fundamentally faulty claims. First, by stating that

          3  10,000 to 13,000 tons per day of unrecyclable waste,

          4  must be exported. The Administration is indicating

          5  they did not and will not explore the positive

          6  effects of increased waste production.

          7                 We all know that increasing recycling

          8  and composing capacities will reduce the amount of

          9  total waste that requires export. But second, and

         10  perhaps most glaringly, the City has linked closing

         11  the landfill along with the present collection

         12  method, the MTS's. Simply put: The MTS's, especially

         13  if they are coupled with a single handling

         14  procedure, are the most economical and least

         15  environmentally offensive way to collect waste and

         16  prepare it for export.

         17                 The disposal point has nothing

         18  whatsoever to do with the collection method, it is

         19  akin to throwing out the baby with the bathwater.

         20  The City has failed to demonstrate that there truly

         21  is a need for new infrastructure. They consistently

         22  refuse to produce their engineering analysis or even

         23  the raw data upon which it is based, to support this

         24  arbitrary posture.

         25                 To show just how capricious their

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            206

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  position is, the export of Bronx waste was

          3  originally done only temporarily to allow for the

          4  refurbishment of their MTS. This action, completely

          5  unrelated to the SWMP and the closure of Freshkills,

          6  is instead now being used to permanently close this

          7  needed facility.

          8                 The feasibility report issued by the

          9  City builds its premise on a fundamentally flawed

         10  arbitrary decision, let's assume that retrofitting

         11  doesn't work, and here is why. However, if you

         12  started with the premise how do you make

         13  retrofitting work, you would probably have a very

         14  different result.

         15                 The additional self-imposed

         16  limitation of not addressing operational procedures

         17  is another liability.

         18                 For example, there are three

         19  low-volume MTS's, East 91st Street, West 59th

         20  Street, and Southwest Brooklyn with low, average

         21  peak throughput.

         22                 Southwest Brooklyn, average peak

         23  Tuesday, approximately 62 trucks, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00

         24  p.m. shift.

         25                 59th Street, average peak Monday,
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          2  approximately 97 trucks, 8:00 a.m. to4:00 p.m.

          3  shift.

          4                 East 91st Street, average peak

          5  Tuesday, approximately 90 trucks 8:00 a.m. to 4:00

          6  p.m. shift, all get very few trucks on their other

          7  shifts.

          8                 These are facilities that can benefit

          9  from relatively simple operational changes, not even

         10  considered by the report. And the Greenpoint MTS,

         11  which has an upland area of approximately four

         12  acres, currently being used as parking areas, has

         13  the area required for retrofitting, although it is

         14  not even addressed by the report.

         15                 It has been made pretty clear, if you

         16  want to achieve a certain objective, you can

         17  successfully limit your proposal with a faulty

         18  examination of the data, and that is what occurred

         19  here.

         20                 In fact, Brooklyn, Queens and

         21  Manhattan do currently contain the facilities

         22  necessary for export through MTS's. These stations

         23  currently export 2,600 tons per day of Manhattan

         24  trash, 3,300 tons per day of Queens trash, and 3,900

         25  tons per day of Brooklyn trash to Freshkills.
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          2                 Being that the collection and export

          3  facility is independent of the disposal area,

          4  retrofitting existing facilities is the best

          5  alternative to the Administration's long-term waste

          6  export plan, of course it will not only allow us to

          7  remove a step in the proposed double handling export

          8  process, but it also provides us with a way to

          9  eliminate the need for siting and building EBUFs in

         10  New York.

         11                 Alarming, and adding to our concerns,

         12  Brooklyn is the only borough that will have excess

         13  capacity. We all know that it does not make business

         14  sense for waste management to allow this capacity to

         15  remain idle, especially when the City does not pay

         16  to keep the capacity free.

         17                 Ultimately the plan is not equitable

         18  for Brooklyn how ever you try to examine it.

         19                 Ironically, by leaving out

         20  construction and demolition, and commercial waste

         21  from its analysis, the City is turning its back on

         22  the problems of the very same private sector it is

         23  seeking to install Citywide with the SWMP.

         24                 More than 90 percent of the

         25  commercial waste generated every day in New York
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          2  City ends up in Brooklyn and the Bronx. And why

          3  doesn't the EIS examine the adverse environmental

          4  impacts exerted on our neighborhoods of the private

          5  waste stations which currently process more than 8.4

          6  million tons of waste per year, especially since

          7  this is the City's solution for its long-term needs.

          8                 These emissions will indisputably

          9  result in the increased burden on neighborhoods of

         10  people of color, neighborhoods that are already

         11  disproportionately burdened with these private waste

         12  stations.

         13                 Tragically many of these

         14  neighborhoods have expended great amounts of time,

         15  effort and money to put plans in place, such as bids

         16  in 197-A plans, intended to improve their quality of

         17  life and economic wellbeing. But even more

         18  perplexingly, while the draft revised SWMP was

         19  released late last year, this EIS surprisingly bears

         20  little relation to the provisions of the proposed

         21  SWMP.

         22                 Why this disconnect? How can the City

         23  promulgate such a drastic change to managing the

         24  present waste stream, without studying in-depth all

         25  the alternatives and all of the existing practices,
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          2  and this includes retrofitting of the MTS's.

          3                 Why doesn't the Administration even

          4  minimally discuss the issues of fairness,

          5  clustering, and environmental justice and

          6  environmental suitability? As an absolute minimum,

          7  these factors should be the framework of any and all

          8  analyses that occur. Their omission speaks volumes

          9  about the unfairness of this ill-conceived process.

         10  Let's do more than just pay lip service to truly

         11  balancing the equity of the issues. Any solution we

         12  adopt now will be in effect for literally decades

         13  into the next century and we owe to all of our

         14  neighborhoods in the City to get it right.

         15                 All this shows the dangers of

         16  conducting an EIS and a feasibility report proforma,

         17  merely to minimally meet the mandates of applicable

         18  environmental law.

         19                 These reports should be a lawful

         20  legitimate tool by which all alternatives must be

         21  considered.

         22                 The result of an intellectually

         23  rigorous process should assist the City in making

         24  decisions that affect so many of its communities.

         25  Why aren't all of the proposed sites and facilities
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          2  being comprehensively studied contextually for the

          3  adverse impacts they exert on their host

          4  communities? Why aren't the interim phases of the

          5  plan included in the EIS when it is actually the

          6  interim plan that is closing Freshkills and not the

          7  permanent plan?

          8                 Besides, the way it now appears, the

          9  interim plan will certainly overlap the landfill

         10  mandated closure date, simultaneously the onset of

         11  the permanent plan.

         12                 If this proves to be the case, its

         13  omission is unwarranted. Consequently I am left with

         14  the inescapable conclusion that the City's efforts

         15  to date are merely to provide cover for this

         16  Administration's efforts or intention to install a

         17  new trash cartel here in New York City. While

         18  exposing our neighborhoods and citizens to the

         19  questionable actions of a new monopoly of private

         20  waste haulers is in the best interest of the

         21  eventually designated corporations, it is certainly

         22  not in the best interests of our City.

         23                 Thank you for letting me come here

         24  today.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Cohen.

          3                 Is Dr. Nancy Goldner, the Brooklyn

          4  Green Party here?

          5                 Welcome, Dr. Goldner.

          6                 DR. GOLDNER: Thank you very much.

          7                 New York City is the largest producer

          8  of municipal solid waste in the United States and we

          9  believe with leadership from the City Council and

         10  from all of us, we as a City have an opportunity to

         11  move from Giuliani's profit and export-driven plan

         12  for waste disposal, to a publicly-run and

         13  community-oriented approach, which will

         14  substantially reduce the amount of residential

         15  waste, if not fully eliminate it.

         16                 As a practical solution to reduce

         17  overall truck traffic, we, the Brooklyn Greens, have

         18  the position that marine transfer stations are

         19  useful in this interim period, that is from now

         20  until we can fully realize waste elimination.

         21                 However, retrofits are just that,

         22  retro. It is still old thinking. In the service of

         23  profiteering, garbage burning, land despoiling,

         24  corporate giant waste-haulers, like Waste

         25  Management, a company who is now an indicted felon
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          2  in the State of California, with nine counts of

          3  stock fraud, and 14 felony counts in the written

          4  indictment, including wiretapping, receiving and

          5  concealing stolen property, manipulating computer

          6  data, forging documents, stealing trade secrets,

          7  offering false evidence in connection with a land

          8  deal, which is their attempt to destroy a

          9  competitor. And so much for background checks.

         10                 Waste is built into the manipulations

         11  of manufacturers as a general principle, we

         12  euphemistically call that "planned obsolescence".

         13  From candy wrappers to refrigerators, the principle

         14  is the same, only the life expectancy varies.

         15                 So, we believe as an essential

         16  corollary to any waste disposal plan, we must

         17  support waste prevention.

         18                 For example, we must extend

         19  warranties or durable goods, making them truly

         20  durable. We must have packaging laws for all

         21  commercial and consumer packaging, thereby

         22  minimizing excessive packaging, by charging

         23  significant disposal costs to the manufacturers, or

         24  simply banning excessive packaging outright.

         25                 We have to ban the manufacture of
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          2  heavy metals, PCBs, dioxin and other organichloride

          3  so that our source sludge is relatively

          4  uncontaminated.

          5                 We must have non-polluting

          6  community-based recycling facilities for paper and

          7  cardboard. We would like to substitute refillable,

          8  returnable, non-plastic containers for plastic jugs,

          9  jars, bags, requiring items that can be sold in bulk

         10  to be made available so that refillable containers

         11  may be utilized.

         12                 We also are advocating that the City

         13  establish textile recycling centers citywide, and

         14  create a City subsidy for the use of cloth diapers,

         15  as well as laundry facilities to eliminate

         16  disposables which are a huge proportion of the

         17  municipal waste stream at this time.

         18                 And finally, composting has already

         19  been mentioned. I am particularly keen to do that

         20  more as a community gardener. I wanted to bring this

         21  to your attention, because waste prevention through

         22  composting is also being thwarted, as it relates to

         23  another profit-driven anti-community policy being

         24  pursued by the Giuliani Administration, destruction

         25  of the community gardens. Composting of food scraps
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          2  and yard waste in a network of community gardens, as

          3  well as municipal composting sites, will divert the

          4  14 percent of New York City's waste stream

          5  consisting of food scraps and yard waste. That

          6  amounts to 1,600 tons a day that will not need to be

          7  trucked or barged anywhere.

          8                 Instead, a publicly run

          9  not-for-profit Citywide composting program will

         10  yield nutrients for growing food for New Yorkers and

         11  sustaining of the City's green places.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Thank you

         14  very much, Dr. Goldner.

         15                 Irene Clementowicz. Forgive me if I

         16  am pronouncing that wrong.

         17                 Cecil Corbin Mark, West Harlem

         18  Environmental Action Committee.

         19                 Welcome.

         20                 MR. MARK: Thank you. Thank you. No

         21  committee, just West Harlem Environmental Action,

         22  Inc.

         23                 Good afternoon, to all of the Council

         24  Members and their staffs, and to all of the

         25  colleagues behind me.
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          2                 Cecil Corbin Mark is my name and I am

          3  the Program Director of West Harlem Environmental

          4  Action. I want to start out by saying that our

          5  organization very much supports the closure of

          6  Freshkills landfill, but we firmly believe that the

          7  piecemeal process that we have been thrust into by

          8  the City Administration with regards to planning for

          9  the future of solid waste, is not a smart one.

         10                 It has thus far locked out

         11  communities, and it has locked out community-based

         12  organizations, as well as other stakeholders,

         13  businesses included, from taking a comprehensive

         14  look at planning for our future with regards to

         15  solid waste.

         16                 With regards to the scope that was

         17  trotted out recently, one of our biggest concerns is

         18  the fact that no other MTS in Manhattan is being

         19  considered.

         20                 In our minds that is really, other

         21  than the one at 135th Street in Northern Manhattan,

         22  a community as you have already heard documented, is

         23  very beset by other siting burdens of facilities.

         24                 That in our mind is tantamount to

         25  environmental racism, and once again the City has
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          2  engaged in a process that allows our neighborhoods

          3  to be the ones that are dumped on.

          4                 Now, while as a member of SWAB, as a

          5  member of OWN, we do believe that the retrofitting

          6  of the MTS can in some ways help us deal with the

          7  solid waste crisis that we are in. If the Department

          8  of Sanitation does not believe in the ability of

          9  converting or retrofitting 59th Street, we have a

         10  very solid problem with that.

         11                 As far as a new and expanded truck

         12  facility, truck fed facility at 135th Street, we are

         13  concerned about the potential for increased diesel

         14  truck traffic. In spite of the earlier comments of

         15  our strong and vigorous representative, Councilman

         16  Michels, we are very concerned about that. And this

         17  is in light of an already burdened neighborhood by

         18  heavy volumes of diesel truck traffic.

         19                 By DOS' own recognition, the proposed

         20  135th Street MTS is within a quarter mile area of

         21  the Roberto Clemente School, with hundreds of young

         22  minds and bodies, and what an irony, an

         23  environmental sub school. It is but a mere two

         24  blocks away.

         25                 Now, where they are clear in terms of
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          2  footage of other distances, they conveniently

          3  neglect to mention that this school is just two

          4  blocks away.

          5                 Many of the children of that school,

          6  according to some of their teachers and some of the

          7  children who have come through our Earth Crew Youth

          8  Leadership Program themselves, suffer from

          9  respiratory illnesses that they have to battle on a

         10  daily basis.

         11                 I do not have to establish for this

         12  body and its esteemed chair the nexus between

         13  facilities in our community and public health

         14  problems. More trucks, in our mind, equal more

         15  public health problems, either from respiratory

         16  illnesses or the street fatalities that could

         17  potentially occur.

         18                 The proposed expansion would also

         19  bring mechanization of a fairly simple system

         20  currently in use.  We are very concerned that this

         21  mechanization would be introducing additional

         22  non-clean fuel burning machinery, a clear negative

         23  for northern Manhattan.

         24                 This would be a sad setback, given

         25  the plans afoot to convert the engines of the huge
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          2  North River Sewage Treatment Plant, it's ugly bear

          3  (sic) of the neighbor to the North, to natural gas.

          4                 On the front of noise, noise from the

          5  ever-present trucks running into the 135th Street

          6  MTS, which by the way is the only MTS in Manhattan

          7  that operates on a 24-hour basis, we believe will

          8  grow with an expanded MTS.

          9                 This, in my mind, is an unacceptable

         10  negative impact in light of the proximity of the

         11  Roberto Clemente School and the thousands of homes

         12  in the earshot of the facility.

         13                 The DOS on page 2-20 of the, under

         14  methodology to correlate distance with noise and

         15  stationary source levels said, monitoring sites will

         16  be select, and I quote, "monitoring sites will be

         17  selected at locations where maximum project impacts

         18  are likely to occur."

         19                 Given that Fairway, the one decent

         20  food market in the neighborhood, and the clear

         21  relationship of the schools and homes in this area

         22  to the DOS MTS facility, we believe that these homes

         23  and schools and the grocery store will be impacted.

         24                 This stands in star contrast to the

         25  59th Street facility, which the Department has
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          2  excluded from its latest stratscope, citing that

          3  there is not enough room for expansion.

          4                 However, if you look at the site

          5  plans for 59th Street, you will note that while

          6  there are problems obviously expanding north and

          7  south of that facility, that it is not near the US

          8  pier head line, and certainly could expand westward.

          9                 This is a policy that will lead, in

         10  our minds, to a disproportionate burden, and in

         11  short, yet another example of environmental racism

         12  rearing its ugly head.

         13                 On the issue of odors, an expanded

         14  facility, we are concerned already that the 135th

         15  Street MTS, in comparison to other MTS's in

         16  Manhattan, does not receive as much treatment with

         17  pine oil, which is one of the technologies that is

         18  employed to keep the odors down, as per se the 91st

         19  Street MTS, which is behind Gracie Mansion, which of

         20  all the MTS's uses the most pine oil in the entire

         21  MTS system.

         22                 Yet, it shuts down at 2:00 p.m., does

         23  not receive truck traffic after that, and, you know,

         24  because of the tide situations within Hell Gates, we

         25  can understand that that MTS may not be considered
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          2  to retrofit.

          3                 Sorry that the Hudson River tide

          4  function doesn't create such a problem for us at

          5  135th Street. I wish we could have such good

          6  fortune.

          7                 In summary, the lack of a

          8  comprehensive planning process -- oh, I am sorry, I

          9  am missing a piece here. The other thing that is

         10  appalling to us with regards to potential expansion

         11  without the consideration of other facilities, such

         12  as the 59th Street MTS, is that the DOS by its own

         13  admission in the draft scope talks about the fact

         14  that there are no significant natural resources

         15  within proximity of this particular MTS. Yet they go

         16  on in the next paragraph to cite that the Hudson

         17  River has been coined as one of the littoral

         18  treasures of the United States.

         19                 We believe that our waterfront in

         20  West Harlem has already been burdened by a number of

         21  obstructing facilities, which destroy our view, and

         22  that this in other instances would not be permitted

         23  in other communities, ala 79th Street, where the

         24  boat basin is, or 70th Street where the North River

         25  Sewage Treatment Plant was originally proposed for.
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          2                 In summary, a lack of the

          3  comprehensive planning process that involves

          4  communities, community-based organizations,

          5  businesses and government and the willingness of DOS

          6  to be more aggressive in waste reduction strategies

          7  and recycling is destined to doom this piecemeal

          8  approach to solid waste management.

          9                 While many from the Vice President of

         10  the United States to the Mayor of Rochester, are

         11  talking about, and more importantly, practicing

         12  smart growth on the solid waste issue in New York

         13  City, it is sad to say that we are still playing

         14  dumb.

         15                 DOS must include the 59th Street MTS

         16  if it wants to look at 135th Street, and we must

         17  also begin to at least make some good faith effort

         18  to deal with the commercial waste in Manhattan. And

         19  with that, I conclude.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Corbin Mark.

         23                 Blanca Ramirez.

         24                 MS. RAMIREZ: My name is Blanca

         25  Ramirez. I am a member of Mothers On The Move, and
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          2  Mothers on the Move is also a member of OWN. We are

          3  located in the South Bronx.

          4                 Thank you for these hearings today.

          5  Mothers On The Move supports using the City's

          6  transfer stations for direct export of residential

          7  waste for the following reasons: Retaining City

          8  ownership of waste transfer facilities for

          9  residential garbage will allow the City to hold the

         10  private companies accountable for the operations.

         11                 If a company performs poorly, the

         12  City can let them go. If the garbage is processed to

         13  privately-owned facilities, however, these

         14  corporations will be able to hold the City hostage.

         15                 If we do not retrofit the marine

         16  transfer stations and just give contracts to these

         17  private corporations for the EBUFs, the City is in

         18  for some big trouble.

         19                 One corporation which has already

         20  benefitted from the interim contracts and is likely

         21  to win the lucrative long-term contracts is Waste

         22  Management. Waste Management has a long history of

         23  problems, including accusations of bribery of public

         24  officials in Chicago, Florida, Texas and Ohio. A $2

         25  million fine in Argyle, Pennsylvania, for exceeding
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          2  trash limits, and illegal mixing of red bag medical

          3  waste with regular trash.

          4                 Between 1980 and '90, Waste

          5  Management was issued over 600 government citations

          6  for pollution violations in which they paid $45

          7  million in fines. Again, allowing companies like

          8  Waste Management to control our entire waste export

          9  system is a recipe for disaster.

         10                 If we do not retrofit and use

         11  City-owned waste transfer facilities, we already

         12  know that the Department of Sanitation is doing a

         13  poor job of regulating existing private waste

         14  transfer stations. We heard a little bit about that

         15  today from Adolpho Carrion.

         16                 In Hunt's Point we have fighting to

         17  keep our streets safe from the dangerous truck

         18  traffic and make sure that trucks stay on the legal

         19  truck routes away from most residential streets. But

         20  according to our figures, almost half the trucks

         21  traveling to Hunt's Point and Port Morris each day

         22  are going to waste transfer stations, over 27 truck

         23  trips a day.

         24                 The Police Department, in response to

         25  community pressure from Mothers On The Move, in one
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          2  month, in one month wrote 97 summonses for trucks

          3  being off the truck route, and in an 18-month

          4  period, between 1997 and 1998, the Department of

          5  Sanitation only wrote 13 truck-related summonses,

          6  okay? We have a problem here.

          7                 However, the Bronx is in a unique

          8  position because our borough's marine transfer

          9  station right now is closed. I just want to go back

         10  to something, though. When it was closed there was

         11  not an environmental impact statement that was done.

         12                 So, the garbage was contracted to

         13  private corporations, using the existing waste

         14  transfer station, increasing the truck traffic in

         15  our area.

         16                 While we support the Citywide

         17  community demand to use the marine transfer stations

         18  for direct export, we can support the reopening of

         19  the Bronx marine transfer station, but only if the

         20  tonnage handled in the borough is reduced by an

         21  equal amount, or else we will have the marine

         22  transfer station open in the Bronx and all of these

         23  other transfer stations that are now handling the

         24  garbage, will probably get more commercial garbage

         25  or maybe handle other residential garbage.
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          2                 And I am not even sure when they were

          3  testifying earlier today, if they made it clear that

          4  the Bronx marine transfer station is closed. So, if

          5  they are having trouble opening it up, or if they do

          6  it in a staggered amount, close one while they

          7  retrofit one, if they do the Bronx one first, the

          8  others will be able -- they will be able to do the

          9  others because the Bronx will be able to handle some

         10  of the garbage.

         11                 Finally, we want to point out again

         12  how unwilling the Department of Sanitation is to

         13  enter into a dialogue with the communities most

         14  directly affected by the decisions that are about to

         15  be made. Even simple pieces of information are

         16  required to be FOIL'd. The Department of

         17  Transportation and the Police Department have agreed

         18  to be part of a multi-agency task force to look at

         19  the impact of truck traffic in our neighborhood in

         20  Hunts Point. Despite DOS' significant role in

         21  regulating trucks traveling to and from transfer

         22  stations, DOS has never responded to repeated

         23  invitations to be part of such a task force.

         24                 This lack of response is typical of

         25  DOS, their attitude towards community groups and
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          2  elected officials.

          3                 We are the ones who are directly

          4  affected by the South Bronx Transfer Stations and

          5  the thousands of truck trips they make daily. We

          6  must consider all of the alternatives for

          7  residential use, including retrofitting the marine

          8  transfer stations and not accept the Department of

          9  Sanitation's plan as is.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Thank you,

         12  Ms. Ramirez, and thank Mothers On The Move.

         13                 Mr. John McCrory. I welcome Mr.

         14  McCrory.

         15                 MR. McCRORY: Thanks. Good afternoon.

         16  And thanks for staying through to the bitter end.

         17                 My name is John McCrory, and I

         18  publish the Big Apple Garbage Sentinel, which is a

         19  regular newsletter on garbage recycling issues here

         20  in New York, and it is available by E.mail, fax,

         21  World Wide Web and postal mail. I am also a student

         22  in the planning program at Pratt Institute in

         23  Brooklyn, where I have been studying garbage and

         24  recycling issues for two years and am performing a

         25  master's thesis on the issue of waste transfer
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          2  stations with a special interest in retrofitting.

          3                 So, I was glad to see that the

          4  Committee wasn't really fooled by this report, which

          5  is really an infeasibility report on MTS conversion.

          6  And I have to say, if I turned this in for a class

          7  at school, I would probably get an F either for

          8  plagiarizing ten-year-old studies or for relying on

          9  rejected proposals that I just deemed unacceptable a

         10  few months ago.

         11                 Most of the things that are in my

         12  written testimony have already been said, so I am

         13  just going to skip to things that I know and that

         14  are germane.

         15                 One thing that came up, it was very

         16  interesting in the testimony earlier by the

         17  Department, is that we basically learned that to

         18  retrofit costs about $30 million, to build an EBUF

         19  costs about 60 to 70 million. So, either way,

         20  whether it is seven retrofits or three new EBUFs, it

         21  is going to be around $200 million, right? So, why

         22  not spend a little extra money to retrofit so we can

         23  combine the waste streams, commercial and

         24  residential at the marine transfer stations, because

         25  ultimately they are going to be combined in the end
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          2  anyway when they go to the landfills, in whatever

          3  state that might be.

          4                 The other thing I want to comment on

          5  is this notion that keeps getting repeated by folks

          6  at the Department of Sanitation that they have to

          7  maintain this level of service where they can

          8  process 300 tons per hour or 240 trucks per day over

          9  an eight-hour shift. As others pointed out, it is a

         10  rare day that that happens now and at many of the

         11  transfer stations, even on peak days they barely

         12  accept half that number, you just don't have that

         13  many routes that are allocated to certain transfer

         14  stations like East 91st, like Southwest Brooklyn, so

         15  there would be no way you could have anything up to

         16  that level of capacity required.

         17                 The other thing is, if that is so

         18  important, if maintaining that level of service is

         19  so important, why didn't they require this in their

         20  interim plans, where clearly the waste transfer

         21  stations in Brooklyn at least can't provide that

         22  level of service. The privately-owned waste transfer

         23  stations they are relying on now aren't sufficient

         24  to maintain 300 tons per hour, and so as a result,

         25  not all of the collection trucks can finish their
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          2  routes, get to the transfer station, tip in time and

          3  go on to their next route or go home in a single

          4  shift.

          5                 As a result, what the drivers have to

          6  do is return at the end of their collection route,

          7  instead of going to the transfer station, they go

          8  back to their depot where the truck is stored until

          9  someone on the nightshift who is not getting

         10  overtime can then drive the full truck of garbage to

         11  the transfer station when it is not as busy.

         12                 That is about all I have to say. I

         13  think it is great that the Department is finally

         14  coming around to embrace the idea or to consider the

         15  idea of retrofitting, but they could have taken a

         16  big political headache off their minds and off of

         17  Staten Islander's minds if they had done this three

         18  years ago.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Well, Mr.

         21  McCrory, thank you very much for your testimony.

         22                 I think Chairman Michels would be

         23  interested, as would his counsel, on receiving a

         24  copy of your thesis when you are done, maybe we will

         25  learn something.
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          2                 MR. McCRORY: I will try to finish.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: I am

          4  possibly going to get this wrong, I don't know if it

          5  is Eddie or Edie Stone. Not here.

          6                 MS. PEEBLES: She has left. I will

          7  take her place.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Okay. Just

          9  identify yourself for the record when you sit down.

         10                 MS. PEEBLES: I am Sue Peebles. I live

         11  in Red Hook. I am going to make this as brief as I

         12  can.

         13                 Of course I am very distressed about

         14  what you are going to do to my neighborhood. I mean,

         15  while the facility in Staten Island is an outrage,

         16  it is just as much of an outrage in Brooklyn and in

         17  the EBUF that the Department thinks is such a great

         18  idea, is much closer to home, schools, parks, it is

         19  50 feet from a park. What is has that makes it so

         20  attractive to the Administration is that it is in a

         21  poor, 90 percent minority area, that makes it a

         22  great place to locate it.

         23                 But I really want to talk to you

         24  about the City, and I want to talk to you about what

         25  happens if you build an EBUF and the barges have no
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          2  place to go? What happens to that money?

          3                 And infrastructure. I have noted on

          4  the City's plans where they promised us no trucks,

          5  there are very clearly marked truck accesses, so

          6  obviously the City plans to have trucks there. I

          7  believe that the reason for the 12,000 tons is that

          8  Waste Management is saying the cost of this

          9  infrastructure is so great that while it will take

         10  the 4,000 tons or less that Brooklyn produces, we

         11  have to take another 8,000 tons per day imported,

         12  trucked in, so we can maintain this facility.

         13                 The other thing that we need to talk

         14  about is the total money involved. I heard Deputy

         15  Mayor Lhota say they are willing to pay a premium to

         16  close Freshkills. Nice, guys. I mean, I am glad that

         17  your plans are so bad that you are willing to do

         18  anything at this point. But I want to know what

         19  happens to the rest of the City when this premium is

         20  paid?

         21                 What happens at the economic

         22  downturn? I am an ex-school teacher, I know that New

         23  York City has the largest class size around. I know

         24  that I sat in a sixth grade classroom with 42 kids

         25  at the last economic downturn. It is going to be
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          2  worse because now we are not going to be able to

          3  save any money on sanitation, we are going to be

          4  spending it. We are going to be locked into these

          5  guys, and you have already heard what a fine

          6  corporate player Waste Management is.

          7                 So, we are looking to you to help us.

          8  We are looking to you to help the whole city. Make

          9  this a good plan that doesn't destroy any

         10  neighborhood and doesn't destroy any other things

         11  that the City relies on.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         13  much. I appreciate you being here.

         14                 Suzanne Chambers. Welcome. Thank you

         15  very much for coming. I have seen you here all

         16  morning, and it is nice to have you here.

         17                 MS. CHAMBERS: Thank you. Good

         18  afternoon. I did indeed.

         19                 My name is Suzanne Chambers, for the

         20  record. Good afternoon.

         21                 I am a citizen. I live in the Park

         22  Slope, I live very close to the Red Hook area, I am

         23  one of the few Park Slope residents who knows we are

         24  going to smell the garbage and realizes that Ninth

         25  Street and Third Street and Union Street were not
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          2  repaved for us.

          3                 It deeply concerns me that we would

          4  dishonor our waterfronts and do great harm to

          5  neighborhoods that have had historically nothing but

          6  have historically worked together to try to make the

          7  neighborhood, neighborhoods with great spirit and

          8  pride.

          9                 I have another sort of a side issue,

         10  and that is, today was the second day in a row that

         11  I was held at that gate, until a Council Member I

         12  recognized, who recognized me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did you tell

         14  them you were going to a hearing?

         15                 MS. CHAMBERS: Yes.

         16                 And admittedly I was part of the

         17  press conference earlier that got a little loud and

         18  out of hand and maybe --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Tell us about

         20  the press conference, we didn't know anything about

         21  it.

         22                 MS. CHAMBERS: It was for Chadas

         23  Aboheel (phonetic) on the Lower East Side, a

         24  20-year-old community center, City-owned building

         25  that was auctioned off.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oh, I

          3  understand. It had nothing to do with this hearing?

          4                 MS. CHAMBERS: No.

          5                 But because I walked out with that

          6  bunch, I was afraid --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: By association.

          8                 MS. CHAMBERS: Exactly. And you see, I

          9  am also a community gardener, and known very well

         10  here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are a known

         12  troublemaker.

         13                 MS. CHAMBERS: I am a real bad person,

         14  I garden, I work with kids, I volunteer in schools

         15  and libraries. I throw myself on the mercy --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, thank you

         17  for coming here.

         18                 MS. CHAMBERS: I wanted to ask you one

         19  thing, though, if you see me standing outside, will

         20  you let me come in?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will

         22  definitely let you in.

         23                 MS. CHAMBERS: And maybe, Council

         24  Member Fiala, I could talk to you about how

         25  important community gardens are to neighborhoods who
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          2  don't have 25 acres worth of trees to plough away

          3  for baseball fields. We don't have any trees and we

          4  don't have any baseball fields either. So, I thank

          5  you.

          6                 I am trying to learn. I am trying to

          7  learn how this process works. I care very deeply.

          8  Thank you for the opportunity.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         10  much, I appreciate it.

         11                 The meeting is now adjourned. Thank

         12  you all for coming. To be continued.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 29th day of April 1999.
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         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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